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Cautionary Statement

Except for the historical financial information damed herein, the matters discussed in this repaorForm 10-K (as well as documents
incorporated herein by reference) may be considéf@dvard-looking" statements within the meaningsefction 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the SecugfiXielsange Act of 1934, as amended. Such forwarkidgstatements include declarations
regarding the intent, belief or current expectasaf Silicon Laboratories Inc. and its managemert may be signified by the words "belie
"estimate," "expect," "intend," "anticipate," "pldr'project," "will" or similar language. You areaationed that any such forward-looking
statements are not guarantees of future performamckinvolve a number of risks and uncertaintiesuAl results could differ materially from
those indicated by such forward-looking statemdrastors that could cause or contribute to sucliedénces include those discussed under
"Risk Factors" and elsewhere in this report. Sitidcaboratories disclaims any intention or obligatito update or revise any forward-looking
statements, whether as a result of new informafigmyre events or otherwise.
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Part |
Iltem 1. Business
General

Silicon Laboratories Inc. designs and depselproprietary, analog-intensive, mixed-signatgnated circuits (ICs) for a broad range of
applications. Mixed-signal ICs are electronic comgaats that convert real-world analog signals, sachound and radio waves, into digital
signals that electronic products can process. Thieremixed-signal ICs are critical components lread range of applications in a variety of
markets, including communications, consumer, ingalsautomotive, medical and power management.

Our world-class, mixed-signal ICs use staddcomplementary metal oxide semiconductor (CM@&)nology to dramatically reduce the
cost, size and system power requirements of deth@our customers sell to their end-user custen@ur expertise in analog-intensive,
mixed-signal IC design in CMOS allows us to devete and innovative products that are highly irdéepl, simplifying our customers'
designs and improving their time-to-market.

Industry Background

Communications, computing and consumetrtanics continue to converge, driving semiconductmrsumption. Growth in these markets
has been driven primarily by the pervasivenest®finternet, development of new communicationsrtetdgies and applications, the demand
for higher-speed, highly reliable networks andrif@/ement towards greener electronics with reducezep consumption. This demand has
fueled tremendous growth in the number of electral@ivices. Demand for functionality in mobile, haaltl devices has increased as
manufacturers attempt to further differentiate tipeoducts. Demand for smart devices, mobilityeriative telephony services and the
transition to digital radio and video are also keynds driving demand for innovative, mixed-sigi@zs.

All of these applications are characteribgdn intersection between the analog world we ilivand the digital world of computing, and
therefore require analog-intensive, mixed-signadwts. Traditional mixed-signal designs relied nwlutions built with numerous, complex
discrete analog and digital components. While thesiitional designs provide the required functiggathey are often inefficient and
inadequate for use in markets where size, costepoansumption and performance are increasinglpitapt product differentiators. In order
to improve their competitive position, electroninanufacturers need to reduce the cost and compleikiheir systems and enable new feat
or functionality to differentiate themselves frohetr competitors.

Simultaneously, these manufacturers facelaating time-to-market demands and must betabigpidly adapt to evolving industry
standards and new technologies. Because analagsimée mixedsignal IC design expertise is difficult to findetfe manufacturers increasin
are turning to third parties, like us, to providkvanced mixed-signal solutions. Mixed-signal desigguires specific expertise and relies on
creative, experienced engineers to deliver solsttbat optimize speed, power and performance detgtnoisy digital environment and wit|
the constraints of standard manufacturing proce3¢esdevelopment of this design expertise typjoatjuires years of practical analog design
experience under the guidance of a senior enginedrengineers with the required level of skill @xgertise are in short supply.

Many IC providers lack sufficient analogoextise to develop compelling mixeiynal ICs. As a result, manufacturers of electrai@vice:
value IC providers that can supply them with mixsdghal solutions with greater functionality, smalié&ze and lower power requirements at a
reduced cost and shorter time-to-market.
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Products

We provide analog-intensive, mixsignal ICs for use in a variety of electronic protun a broad range of applications including ol
devices, AM/FM radios and other consumer electmmetworking equipment, test and measurement egprip industrial monitoring and
control, and customer premises equipment. Our mtadategrate complex mixed-signal functions thatfeequently performed by numerous
discrete components in competing products intmglsichip or chipset. By doing so, we are ableréate products that, when compared to
many competing products:

. Require less board spa¢

. Reduce the use of external components loweringyhgem cost and simplifying design;
. Offer superior performance improving our customensl products;

. Provide increased reliability and manufacturabjlitgproving customer yields; and/

. Reduce system power requirements enabling smalier factors and/or longer battery i

We group our products into the followindegories:

. Broad-based products, which include our microcdlere, timing products (clocks and oscillators)reléss receivers, isolation
devices and human interface sensors and controllers

. Broadcast products, which include our broadcastoaatad video product:
. Access products, which include our Voice over IBIR) products, embedded modems and our Power dherriet devices; ar
. Mature products, which include certain devices #ratat the end of their respective life cycles #edefore receive minimal «

no continued research and development investmeitiding our DSL analog front end ICs and IRDA de4.

The following table summarizes the divgrseduct areas and applications for the variousth@swe have introduced to customers:

Product Areas and Description Applications

Broad-based Products

Microcontrollers
Our C8051F family of 8-bit mixed-signal microcoritess integrates intelligent data ¢ Industrial automation and contt
capture in the form of high-resolution data coreesta traditional MCU computing « Automotive sensors and contr
funcltion, flash memor:y an?] a hightl)y prograrpmmion;]mun;cation interfacI:es ina o Medical instrumentatio
single system on a chip. The combination of corrh igh-performance analog, up to ; -
10gMiII?/on InstructionspPer Second (MIPS), 8051&:and?n-§ystem field P * Electronic test and measurement equipr
programmability provides the user with design fiility, improved time-to-market,
superior system performance and greater end pratiffietentiation. These products are i
designed for use in a large variety of end-marketdyding the automotive, * Computer peripherals
communications, consumer, industrial, medical amagr management marke * White goods

e Consumer electronics
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Product Areas and Description

Precision Clocks and Oscillato
Leveraging our DSPL® and MultiSynth technologies to offer frequency agéxtremel
low jitter clock and oscillator products, these ideg replace traditional solutions
implemented using expensive, bulky modules, numeooystal sources, complicated
discrete circuitry requiring numerous componentd)ytrid IC/discrete solutions that
offer limited functionality.

EZRadi® Shor-Range Wireless Transceive
Our EZRadio family of fully integrated, low powédow data rate and low cost short ra
wireless ICs are designed to meet the needs dfroiess developing applications
requiring a secure, point to point transmissiorhsag industrial monitoring and control.
These products are still in the early stages dfotner adoption.

Digital Isolators and Related Produc

Our digital isolators and related products levenaatented isolation techniques to enable,

for example, multiple channels of isolation onregée device, simplifying design and
reducing system cost. These products are stiiéretarly stages of customer adoption.

Human Interface Sensors and Controll
Our QuickSense™ family of human interface prodirttudes touch sense controllers,
proximity sensors and ambient light sensors. Thles&ces leverage our mixed-signal
capability to provide high accuracy, quicker resgwtime and lower power consumption
than competing parts. These products are in tHg s@ges of customer adoption.

Broadcast Products

Broadcast Radio Receivers and Transmit
Our AM and FM receivers deliver the entire tunenirantenna input to audio output ii
single chip. The broadcast audio products are baseah innovative digital architecture
that enables significant improvements in perforneaméhich translates to a better

consumer experience, while reducing system cosbaadd space for our customers. The

AM/FM receivers enable AM and/or FM radio in virtlyaany device and the transmitte
allow customers to cost effectively add wireless/AM audio playback capability.

Applications

Networking equipment
Telecommunications

Wireless base stations

Test and measurement equipment
HDTV video

High-speed data acquisition
SONET/SDH line cards

Storage area networks

Remote keyless ent
Home security monitor
Smart Meter:

Remote control

Switch mode power supplit
Isolated analog data acquisiti
Industrial networking

Motor control

Isolated D(-DC supplies
Electronic ballasts for lightin

Smartphones and handhe
Industrial controls

Toys and consumer electron
Monitors and lavatory contro

Mobile phones
Stand-alone AM/FM radios
Portable audio devices

¢ MP3/digital media players
¢ Navigation/GPS devices
e Satellite radios

Home stereos
Automotive infotainment systems
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Product Areas and Description

Video tuners and demodulatc
Our complete, global-compliant hybrid TV tuners with analog TV demodolah a
single CMOS IC leverage our proven digital low-Keldtecture and exceed the
performance of traditional discrete TV tuners, dimgbTV makers to deliver improved
picture quality and better reception for both agadod digital broadcasts. Our small, low
power and high performance digital video demodutasoipport DVB-T/T2, DVB-S/S2,
and/or DVB-C in a single chip and are ideal foripquent receiving digital terrestrial,
satellite and/or cable service

Access Products

ProSLIC® Subscriber Line Interface Circui
Our ProSLIC provides the analog subscriber linerface on the source end of the
telephone which generates dial tone, busy tonkerdél and ring signal. Our ProSLIC
product family has offerings for shdmtul applications suitable for the customer pres
as well as long-haul applications suitable forttaeitional telephone company central
office.

ISOmode® Embedded Moden
The ISOmodem embedded modems leverage innovaliversdirect access arrangement
(DAA) technology and a digital signal processod#diver a globally compliant, very
small analog modem for embedded applications.

Power over Etherne
Our Power over Ethernet (PoE) Power Source Equiparah Powered Device ICs off
highly differentiated solutions with a reduced tddifl of materials (BOM) cost and
improved performance and reliability. Our soluti@iso offer an integration level that
enables functionality not available with competsgjutions.

Applications

Integrated digital televisions (iDTV)
Free-to-Air (FtA) or pay-TV set-top box
receivers

PC-TV applications

DVD/HDD personal video recorde

Wireless local loop remote access syst
Voice over broadband modems ¢

terminal adapters

VolIP residential gateways

PBXs

Wired long loop and central office systems

Set-top and digital cable boxes

Industrial monitoring

Postage meters

Security systems

Remote medical monitoring

Gaming consoles

Personal Video Recorders (PVRS)

Point of sale (POS) terminals

Fax machines and multi-function printers

Wireless access points (WAP)
VolIP phones

Radio frequency identification (RFID) tag
readers

POS terminal:
Networking routers and switch
Security camera

During fiscal 2011, 2010 and 2009, saleswfmixed-signal products accounted for substhytiél of our revenue.
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Customers, Sales and Marketing

We market our products through our dired¢s force and through a network of independeltssalpresentatives and distributors. Direct
and distributor customers buy on an individual pase order basis, rather than pursuant to long-agneements.

We consider our customer to be the encboust purchasing either directly from a distributcontract manufacturer or us. An end
customer purchasing through a contract manufactypésally instructs such contract manufactureoliéain our products and incorporate such
products with other components for sale by suctirachmanufacturer to the end customer. Althoughaeteally sell the products to, and are
paid by, the distributors and contract manufacgjnee refer to such end customer as our customer.

Three of our distributors, Edom Technolo§ynet and Macnica, represented 24%, 12% and 108tiofevenues during fiscal 2011,
respectively. No other distributor accounted fo¥il@r more of revenues for fiscal 2011.

During fiscal 2011, our ten largest endteosers accounted for 38% of our revenues. We hadccastomer, Samsung, whose purchases
across a variety of product areas represented I3Mraevenues during this period. Our major cugminclude Cisco, Huawei, LG
Electronics, Pace, Panasonic, Sagem, Samsung, i€eldmVarian Medical Systems and ZTE.

We maintain numerous sales offices in Néutierica, Europe and Asia. Revenue is attributea geographic area based on the shigped-
location. The percentage of our revenues derivem foutside of the United States was 86% in fis@4l12 For further information regarding
revenues and long-lived assets by geographic seed\ote 165egment Informationto the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Our direct sales force includes regionlsaanagers in the field and area business maagérrther support customer communicati
We also utilize independent sales representatindsisstributors to generate sales of our prodWfs have relationships with many
independent sales representatives and distributorsiwide whom we have selected based on their nstateding of the mixed-signal IC
marketplace and their ability to provide effectfiedd sales applications support for our products.

Our marketing efforts are targeted at bdémtified industry leaders and emerging marketigipants. Direct marketing activities are
supplemented by a focused marketing communicagéfost that seeks to raise awareness of our compadyproducts. Our public relations
efforts are focused on leading trade and busineslcations. Our external website is used to deloagrporate and product information. We
also pursue targeted advertising in key trade patitins and we have a cooperative marketing proginatrallows our distributors and
representatives to promote our products to theallmarkets in conjunction with their own advertgiactivities. Finally, we maintain a
presence at strategic trade shows and industrjt®vEnese activities, in combination with diredesaactivities, help drive demand for our
products.

Due to the complex and innovative naturewfICs, we employ experienced applications eregmeho work closely with customers to
support the design-win process, and can signifigaaicelerate the customer's time to market. Agfesiin occurs when a customer has
designed our ICs into its product architecture arttered product from us. A considerable amounffofteto assist the customer in
incorporating our ICs into its products is typigalequired prior to any sale. In many cases, onovative ICs require significantly different
implementations than existing approaches and, filvesesuccessful implementations may require extercommunication with potential
customers. The amount of time required to achiedesign-win can vary substantially depending onstamer's development cycle, which can
be relatively short (such as three months) or {@mg (such as two years) based on a wide varietpsfomer factors. Not all design wins
ultimately result in revenue.
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However, once a completed design architecture das bmplemented and produced in high volumes, astoeners are reluctant to significal
alter their designs due to this extensive desigmjwbcess. We believe this process, coupled withirtellectual property protection, promotes
relatively longer product life cycles for our ICschhigh barriers to entry for competitive produegen if such competing products are offered
at lower prices. Our close collaboration with oustomers provides us with knowledge of derivatikedpct ideas or completely new product
line offerings that may not otherwise arise in othew product discussions.

Research and Development

Through our research and development sffare leverage experienced analog and mixed-segigiheering talent and expertise to create
new ICs that integrate functions typically perfodieefficiently by multiple discrete components.i§ mtegration generally results in lower
costs, smaller die sizes, lower power demands ahdreed price/performance characteristics. We attémreuse successful techniques for
integration in new applications where similar bésefan be realized. We believe that we have aédamany of the best engineers in our
industry. We believe that reliable and precise @gpalnd mixed-signal ICs can only be developed Agnteof engineers who have significant
analog experience and are familiar with the intriea of designing these ICs for commercial volumapction. The development of test
methodologies is just one example of a criticaivétgtrequiring experience and know-how to enalble tapid release of a new product for
commercial success. We have accumulated a vast gsatle secrets that allow us to pursue innovaiygroaches to mixed-signal problems
that are difficult for competitors to duplicate. Wighly value our engineering talent and striven@intain a very high bar when bringing new
recruits to the company.

Research and development expenses were@Bddion, $123.8 million and $104.4 million instal 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
Technology

Our product development process facilitétesdesign of highly-innovative, analog-intensingxed-signal ICs. Our engineers' deep
knowledge of existing and emerging standards anidmeance requirements helps us to assess theitatfensibility of a particular IC. We
target areas where we can provide compelling produyzrovements. Once we have solved the primarjleriges, our field application
engineers continue to work closely with our custsheesign teams to maintain and develop an uradetstg of our customers' needs, allov
us to formulate derivative products and refinedufess.

In providing mixed-signal ICs for our custers, we believe our key competitive advantages are

. Analog and RF design expertise in CMOS;

. Digital signal processing, firmware and system giegixpertise;
. Microcontroller and system on a chip design expertanc
. Our broad understanding of systems technology ramdis.

To fully capitalize on these advantageshaee assembled a world-class development teamexdbptional analog and mixed-signal
design expertise led by accomplished senior enggnee

Analog and RF Design Expertise in CMOS

We believe that our most significant cooenpetency is world-class analog and RF design dlitgalddditionally, we strive to design
substantially all of our ICs in standard CMOS pisees. While it is significantly more difficult teedign analog ICs in CMOS, CMOS provides
multiple benefits versus existing alternatives)udag significantly reduced cost, reduced techggldsk and greater
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worldwide foundry capacity. CMOS is the most comigarsed process technology for manufacturing dig@€a and as a result is most likely
to be used for the manufacturing of ICs with fitiee geometries. These finer line geometries cabkensmaller and faster ICs. By designing
our ICs in CMOS, we enable our products to berfiedit this trend towards finer line geometries, whadlows us to integrate more digital
functionality into our mixed-signal ICs.

Designing analog and mixed-signal ICs gm#icantly more complicated than designing stalwhe digital ICs. While advanced software
tools exist to help automate digital IC designy¢hare far fewer tools for advanced analog and dasignal IC design. In many cases, our
analog circuit design efforts begin at the fundataktnansistor level. We believe that we have aalestrated ability to design the most diffic
analog and RF circuits using standard CMOS teclyiedo

Digital Signal Processing, Firmware and System Degi Expertise

We consider the partitioning of a circaitite a proprietary and creative design technigeep3ystems knowledge allows us to use our
digital signal processing (DSP) design expertisméximize the price/performance characteristidsath the analog and digital functions and
allow our ICs to work in an optimized manner to@oplish particular tasks. Generally, we attemphtive analog functions into the digital
domain as quickly as possible, creating systensiefities without compromising performance. Thegergad approaches require our adval
DSP and systems expertise. We then leverage oowéire know-how to change the 'personality’ of awickes, optimizing features and
functions needed by various markets we serve. ¥ample, our broadcast audio products use a proig#aldow-IF receiver and transmitter
architecture to deliver superior RF performance iatetference rejection compared to traditionahlag-only approaches. Digital signal
processing is utilized to optimize sound qualitglenvarying signal conditions, enabling a betterstomer experience. Firmware has enable
to rapidly expand the portfolio to address multiplarkets without substantial silicon changes, idiclg shortwave, longwave, analog tuned,
digital tuned and even high performance HD-capahtemotive radios.

Microcontroller and System on a Chip Design Experse

We have the talent and circuit integratioethodologies required to combine precision andiag)-speed digital, flash memory and in-
system programmability into a single, monolithic O integrated circuit. Our microcontroller produate designed to capture an external
analog signal, convert it to a digital signal, carrgpdigital functions on the stream of data ane ttemmunicate the results through a standard
digital interface. The ability to develop standardducts with the broadest possible customer agidic base while being cost efficient with
silicon area of the monolithic CMOS integrated gitecequires a keen sense of customer value anidegring capabilities. Additionally, to
manage the wide variety of signals on a monoligiiéce of silicon including electrical noise, harrtsnand other electronic distortions requires
a fundamental knowledge of device physics and actated design expertise.

Understanding of Systems Technology and Trends

Our focused expertise in mixed-signal I€thie result of the breadth of engineering talemtiave assembled with experience working in
analog-intensive CMOS design for a wide varietgpjplications. This expertise, which we consideomgetitive advantage, is the foundation
of our in-depth understanding of the technology tedds that impact electronic systems and mark®ris expertise includes:

. Isolation, which is critical for existing and emarg telecom networks;

. Frequency synthesis, which is core technology fioeless and clocking applicatior
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. Integration, which enables the elimination of ditercomponents in a system; and
. Signal processing and precision analog, which fdimsheart of consumer, industrial, medical andmotive electronic
applications.

Our understanding of the role of analogtdignterfaces within electronic systems, standardolution, and end market drivers enables us
to identify product development opportunities aagitalize on market trends.

Manufacturing

As a fabless semiconductor company, we ecink€ design and development in our facilities afettronically transfer our proprietary IC
designs to third-party semiconductor fabricator®wphocess silicon wafers to produce the ICs thatieggn. Our IC designs typically use
industry-standard CMOS manufacturing process tdogiydo achieve a level of performance normallyoagsted with more expensive special-
purpose IC fabrication technology. We believe the af CMOS technology facilitates the rapid protcdf our ICs within a lower cost
framework. Our IC production employs submicron gsxgeometries which are readily available frorditeafoundry suppliers worldwide,
thus increasing the likelihood that manufacturiagacity will be available throughout our produtfe’ cycles. We currently partner principally
with Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Co. (TSML)ts affiliates to manufacture our semiconducetafers. We believe that our fabless
manufacturing model significantly reduces our cpiequirements and allows us to focus our reseupoedesign, development and marketing
of our ICs.

Once the silicon wafers have been produiteyy, are shipped directly to our third-party aslsgnsubcontractors. The assembled ICs are
then moved to the final testing stage. This openatian be performed by the same contractor thatrdsded the IC, other third-party test
subcontractors or within our internal facilitiesqurto shipping to our customers. During fiscal 20fnost of our units shipped were tested by
offshore third-party test subcontractors. We expieat our utilization of offshore third-party testbcontractors will remain substantial during
fiscal 2012.

Backlog

As of December 31, 2011, our backlog wag@agmately $83.3 million, compared to approximgi®87.5 million as of January 1, 2011.
We include in backlog accepted product purchasersriiom customers and worldwide distributor stogkbrders. We only include orders w
an expected shipping date from us within six monffieduct orders in our backlog are subject to gharin delivery schedules or cancellation
at the option of the purchaser typically withoubhaky. Our backlog may fluctuate significantly dagang upon customer order patterns which
may, in turn, vary considerably based on rapidigraing business circumstances. Shipments to disbrib are not recognized as revenue until
the products are sold by the distributors. Addgilbn our arrangements with distributors typicalipvide for price protection and stock rota
activities. Accordingly, we do not believe that daacklog at any time is necessarily representatiactual sales for any succeeding period.
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Competition

The markets for semiconductors generatig, far analog and mixed-signal ICs in particulae mtensely competitive. We anticipate that
the market for our products will continually evolaed will be subject to rapid technological chanyfe. believe the principal competitive
factors in our industry are:

¢ Product size; e Power requirement;

¢ Level of integration; e Customer support;

¢ Product capabilities ¢ Reputation

¢ Reliability; ¢ Ability to rapidly introduce new products to markehd
¢ Price; ¢ Intellectual property.

¢ Performance

We believe that we are competitive withpesgt to these factors, particularly because ourty@isally are smaller in size, are highly
integrated, achieve high performance specificatarnewer price points than competitive productd are manufactured in standard CMOS
which generally enables us to supply them on divels rapid basis to customers to meet their pobdhtroduction schedules. However,
disadvantages we face include our relatively sbpetrating history in certain of our markets andribed for customers to redesign their
products and modify their software to implement s in their products.

Due to our diversified product portfoliocathe numerous markets and applications we sergd¢arget a relatively large number of
competitors. We compete with Analog Devices, AtrBehadcom, Conexant, Cypress, Epson, Freescale,lUantiq, Maxim Integrated
Products, Microchip, Microsemi, NXP Semiconducté&esnesas, Sony Semiconductor, ST-Ericsson, STMéxtenics, Texas Instruments,
Vectron International and others. We expect to fawmapetition in the future from our current compes, other manufacturers and designel
semiconductors and start-up semiconductor desigrpaaies. Our competitors may also offer bundledtgnis offering a more complete
product, which may negatively impact our compeditposition despite the technical merits or advasgagj our products. In addition, our
customers could develop products or technologiesnally that would replace their need for our protd and would become a source of
competition. We could also face competition fromdule makers or other systems suppliers that mdydeanixed-signal components in their
products that could eliminate the need for our ICs.

Many of our competitors and potential cotitpes have longer operating histories, greater@amcognition, access to larger customer
bases, complementary product offerings, and sicanitly greater financial, sales and marketing, rfeturing, distribution, technical and ott
resources than us. Current and potential competitave established or may establish financial &natlegjic relationships between themselves
or with our existing or potential customers, remwllor other third parties. Accordingly, it is pibds that new competitors or alliances among
competitors could emerge and rapidly acquire sicgnift market share.

Intellectual Property

Our future success depends in part upompmmprietary technology. We seek to protect ouhmetogy through a combination of patents,
copyrights, trade secrets, trademarks and confaléptprocedures. As of December 31, 2011, we d&ggroximately 1,140 issued or pending
United States patents in the IC field. We alsoudrayly file for patent protection in a variety atérnational jurisdictions with respect to the
proprietary technology covered by our U.S. patents patent applications. There can be no assuthatpatents will ever be issued with
respect to these applications. Furthermore, ib&sible that any patents held by us may be invi@ijacircumvented, challenged or licensed to
others. In addition, there can be no assurancestizdt patents will provide us with competitive atkages or adequately safeguard our
proprietary rights. While we continue to
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file new patent applications with respect to owerg developments, existing patents are grantegréscribed time periods and will expire at
various times in the future.

We claim copyright protection for proprigtalocumentation for our products. We have filedrEgistration, or are in the process of filing
for registration, the visual images of certain i@t the U.S. Copyright Office. We have registetied "Silicon Labs" logo and a variety of
other product and product family names as tradesniarkhe United States and selected foreign juisatis. All other trademarks, service
marks or trade names appearing in this reportrer@roperty of their respective owners. We alsenaptt to protect our trade secrets and other
proprietary information through agreements with customers, suppliers, employees and consultamdsth@ough other customary security
measures. We intend to protect our rights vigosgusit there can be no assurance that our effaltbevsuccessful. In addition, the laws of
other countries in which our products are sold matyprotect our products and intellectual propeidits to the same extent as the laws of the
United States.

While our ability to effectively competepnds in large part on our ability to protect miellectual property, we believe that our
technical expertise and ability to introduce newdurcts in a timely manner will be an important feéh maintaining our competitive position.

Many participants in the semiconductor aefettronics industries have a significant numbevaiénts and have frequently demonstrated a
readiness to commence litigation based on allegaiid patent and other intellectual property irdgment. From time to time, third parties r
assert infringement claims against us. We may retgil in any such litigation or may not be ablditense any valid and infringed patents
from third parties on commercially reasonable terifrat all. Litigation, regardless of the outconieelikely to result in substantial cost and
diversion of our resources, including our managdted¢ime. Any such litigation could materially adsely affect us.

Our licenses include industry standardngss with our vendors, such as wafer fabricatiohltoraries, third party core libraries,
computer-aided design applications and busines&a applications.

Employees

As of December 31, 2011, we employed 9GQfee Our success depends on the continued sexf/mar key technical and senior
management personnel and on our ability to contiawstract, retain and motivate highly skilled laggand mixed-signal engineers. The
competition for such personnel is intense. We hexeer had a work stoppage and none of our U.S.@mpes are represented by a labor
organization. We consider our employee relationsetgood.

Environmental Regulation

Federal, state and local regulations imp@s®us environmental controls on the storage, diseharge and disposal of certain chemicals
and gases used in the semiconductor industry. @upliance with these laws and regulations has adtehmaterial impact on our financial
position or results of operations.

Available Information

Our website address is www.silabs.com. &unual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports omi&0-Q, current reports on Formk8anc
amendments to those reports filed or furnishedyamsto Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitiesiaxge Act of 1934 are available through
the investor relations page of our website freehafrge as soon as reasonably practicable afteleweanically file such material with, or
furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange Comrais$5EC). Our website and
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the information contained therein or connectedetreare not intended to be incorporated into thissal Report on Form 10-K.
Item 1A. Risk Factors

Risks Related to our Business

We may not be able to maintain our historical growth and may experience significant period-to-period fluctuationsin our revenues and
operating results, which may result in volatility in our stock price

Although we have generally experienced mereegrowth in our history, we may not be able tstain this growth. We may also experience
significant period-to-period fluctuations in ourvezues and operating results in the future duentonaber of factors, and any such variations
may cause our stock price to fluctuate. In someréuperiod our revenues or operating results mayeklmwv the expectations of public market
analysts or investors. If this occurs, our stodkgpmay drop, perhaps significantly.

A number of factors, in addition to thosied in other risk factors applicable to our busieanay contribute to fluctuations in our rever
and operating results, including:

. The timing and volume of orders received from austomers
. The timeliness of our new product introductions #rerate at which our new products may cannibaizeolder products;
. The rate of acceptance of our products by our custs, including the acceptance of new products @& develop for

integration in the products manufactured by sudtauers, which we refer to as "design wins";

. The time lag and realization rate between "desigrstand production orders;

. The demand for, and life cycles of, the product®iporating our ICs;

. The rate of adoption of mix-signal ICs in the markets we targ

. Deferrals or reductions of customer orders in gvditoon of new products or product enhancements fug or our competitors

other providers of ICs;
. Changes in product mi;

. The average selling prices for our products coutgpuddenly due to competitive offerings or coritpwet predatory pricing
especially with respect to our mobile handset petsiu

. The average selling prices for our products gehedsicline over time;

. Changes in market standar

. Impairment charges related to inventory, equipnegmther long-lived assets;

. The software used in our products, including sofengrovided by third parties, may not meet the seddur customers;

. Significant legal costs to defend our intellectoidperty rights or respond to claims against ud;

. The rate at which new markets emerge for produetsng currently developing or for which our deségpertise can be utilize

to develop products for these new markets.

The markets for consumer electronics, k@neple, are characterized by rapid fluctuationdémand and seasonality that result in
corresponding fluctuations in the demand for owdpicts that
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are incorporated in such devices. Additionally, e of technology acceptance by our custometstseis fluctuating demand for our produ

as customers are reluctant to incorporate a neinttCtheir products until the new IC has achieveatkat acceptance. Once a new IC achieves
market acceptance, demand for the new IC can quazidelerate to a point and then level off such ithpid historical growth in sales of a
product should not be viewed as indicative of qured future growth. In addition, demand can quidedgline for a product when a new IC
product is introduced and receives market acceptdbge to the various factors mentioned abovereghelts of any prior quarterly or annual
periods should not be relied upon as an indicatfopur future operating performance.

If we are unable to develop or acquire new and enhanced products that achieve market acceptancein a timely manner, our operating results
and competitive position could be harmed

Our future success will depend on our ghib develop or acquire new ICs and product enbarents that achieve market acceptance in a
timely and cost-effective manner. The developmémiiged-signal ICs is highly complex, and we hatvéraes experienced delays in
completing the development and introduction of meaducts and product enhancements. Successful grdduelopment and market
acceptance of our products depend on a humbectafrfa including:

. Requirements of custome

. Accurate prediction of market and technical requeets;

. Timely completion and introduction of new designs;

. Timely qualification and certification of our ICerfuse in our customers' products;

. Commercial acceptance and volume production optbducts into which our ICs will be incorporatt
. Availability of foundry, assembly and test capar

. Achievement of high manufacturing yields;

. Quality, price, performance, power use and sizeuofproducts;

. Availability, quality, price and performance of cpating products and technologi

. Our customer service, application support cap@&sliaind responsiveness;

. Successful development of our relationships witisteng and potential customers;

. Technology, industry standards or -user preferences; al

. Cooperation of thir-party software providers and our semiconductor vesitb support our chips within a syste

We cannot provide any assurance that ptedugich we recently have developed or may deviglape future will achieve market
acceptance. We have introduced to market or adevelopment of many ICs. If our ICs fail to achiewarket acceptance, or if we fail to
develop new products on a timely basis that achieaeket acceptance, our growth prospects, operegsigts and competitive position could
be adversely affected.

Our research and development efforts are focused on a limited number of new technologies and products, and any delay in the development,
or abandonment, of these technologies or products by industry participants, or their failure to achieve market acceptance, could compromise
our competitive position

Our ICs are used as components in electidenices in various markets. As a result, we ttexeted and expect to continue to devote a
large amount of resources to develop products basew and emerging technologies and standartsvtthébe commercially introduced in
the future.
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Research and development expense in fiscal 20159260 million, or 27.7% of revenues. A numbelan§e companies are actively involv
in the development of these new technologies amttistrds. Should any of these companies delay oidabaheir efforts to develop
commercially available products based on new telclyies and standards, our research and developefferts with respect to these
technologies and standards likely would have noegpable value. In addition, if we do not corredlyticipate new technologies and stande
or if the products that we develop based on thesetachnologies and standards fail to achieve maideeptance, our competitors may be
better able to address market demand than we wbBufthermore, if markets for these new technologies standards develop later than we
anticipate, or do not develop at all, demand farmroducts that are currently in development waultfer, resulting in lower sales of these
products than we currently anticipate.

We depend on a limited number of customers for a substantial portion of our revenues, and the loss of, or a significant reduction in orders
from, any key customer could significantly reduce our revenues

The loss of any of our key customers, sigaificant reduction in sales to any one of themuld significantly reduce our revenues and
adversely affect our business. During fiscal 2@iLk,ten largest customers accounted for 38% ofexgnues. Some of the markets for our
products are dominated by a small number of patkatistomers. Therefore, our operating resulthénforeseeable future will continue to
depend on our ability to sell to these dominantausgrs, as well as the ability of these customesset! products that incorporate our IC
products. In the future, these customers may dewtléo purchase our ICs at all, purchase fewerth@a they did in the past or alter their
purchasing patterns, particularly because:

. We do not have material long-term purchase corgnaith our customers;

. Substantially all of our sales to date have beedenmm a purchase order basis, which permits odomess to cancel, change or
delay product purchase commitments with little omotice to us and without penalty;

. Some of our customers may have efforts underwagtively diversify their vendor base which coulduee purchases of o
ICs; and

. Some of our customers have developed or acquikatlpts that compete directly with products thessarmers purchase fro

us, which could affect our customers' purchasingsiens in the future.

While we have been a significant supplielGs used in many of our customers' products,coistomers regularly evaluate alternative
sources of supply in order to diversify their sug@pbase, which increases their negotiating leveraigh us and protects their ability to secure
these components. We believe that any expansionrofustomers' supplier bases could have an adeéesg on the prices we are able to
charge and volume of product that we are ableltaseur customers, which would negatively affeat revenues and operating results.
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Significant litigation over intellectual property in our industry may cause us to become involved in costly and lengthy litigation which could
seriously harm our business

In recent years, there has been signifilitigdtion in the United States involving pateatsd other intellectual property rights. From time
to time, we receive letters from various industaytigipants alleging infringement of patents, tradeks or misappropriation of trade secrets or
from customers or suppliers requesting indemnificetor claims brought against them by third parti€he exploratory nature of these
inquiries has become relatively common in the semdactor industry. We respond when we deem apmtgand as advised by legal counsel.
We have been involved in litigation to protect mtellectual property rights in the past and magdmee involved in such litigation again in the
future. In the future, we may become involved idiidnal litigation to defend allegations of infgament asserted by others, both directly and
indirectly as a result of certain industry-standiaidemnities we may offer to our customers or sigppl Legal proceedings could subject us to
significant liability for damages or invalidate copnoprietary rights. Legal proceedings initiatedusyto protect our intellectual property rights
could also result in counterclaims or countersagfginst us. Any litigation, regardless of its oumeo would likely be time-consuming and
expensive to resolve and would divert our managésgme and attention. Most intellectual propditigation also could force us to take
specific actions, including:

. Cease selling or manufacturing products that useltiallenged intellectual property;

. Obtain from the owner of the infringed intellectpabperty a right to a license to sell or use tlevant technology, whic
license may not be available on reasonable terns, all;

. Redesign those products that use infringing int&li@l property; or

. Pursue legal remedies with third parties to enfatceindemnification rights, which may not adeqlafgotect our interest:
We may be unable to protect our intellectual property, which would negatively affect our ability to compete

Our products rely on our proprietary tedbgg, and we expect that future technological adearmade by us will be critical to sustain
market acceptance of our products. Therefore, weuethat the protection of our intellectual prayeights is and will continue to be
important to the success of our business. We melg combination of patent, copyright, trademark tade secret laws and restrictions on
disclosure to protect our intellectual propertyhtgy We also enter into confidentiality or licermggeements with our employees, consultants,
intellectual property providers and business pastrend control access to and distribution of aauinentation and other proprietary
information. Despite these efforts, unauthorizedips may attempt to copy or otherwise obtain aselaur proprietary technology. Monitoring
unauthorized use of our technology is difficultdame cannot be certain that the steps we have taltlieprevent unauthorized use of our
technology, particularly in foreign countries whéne laws may not protect our proprietary rightudly as in the United States. We cannot be
certain that patents will be issued as a resutuofpending applications nor can we be certaindhgtissued patents would protect or benefit us
or give us adequate protection from competing petsll-or example, issued patents may be circumgeanrtehallenged and declared invalic
unenforceable. We also cannot be certain that sthi#irnot develop effective competing technologiestheir own.

Failure to manage our distribution channel relationships could impede our future growth

The future growth of our business will degén large part on our ability to manage our ietahips with current and future distributors
and sales representatives, develop additional @tafor the distribution and sale of our producetd enanage these relationships. As we
execute our indirect sales strategy, we must mathegpotential conflicts that may arise with ouredi sales
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efforts. For example, conflicts with a distributony arise when a customer begins purchasing dirrotin us rather than through the
distributor. The inability to successfully execotemanage a multi-channel sales strategy coulddmjpeir future growth. In addition,
relationships with our distributors often involeetuse of price protection and inventory returhtsg This often requires a significant amount
of sales management's time and system resourceartage properly.

We are subject to increased inventory risks and costs because we build our products based on forecasts provided by customers before
receiving purchase ordersfor the products

In order to ensure availability of our puats for some of our largest customers, we startrianufacturing of our products in advance of
receiving purchase orders based on forecasts mo\ig these customers. However, these forecaststdepresent binding purchase
commitments and we do not recognize sales for thesucts until they are shipped to the customsraAesult, we incur inventory and
manufacturing costs in advance of anticipated s&8esause demand for our products may not mategiainanufacturing based on forecasts
subjects us to increased risks of high inventoryy@gg costs, increased obsolescence and increassrdting costs. These inventory risks are
exacerbated when our customers purchase indirgctiygh contract manufacturers or hold componersritory levels greater than their
consumption rate because this causes us to haseisdisility regarding the accumulated levels oféntory for such customers. A resulting
write-off of unusable or excess inventories wouddexsely affect our operating results.

Our products are complex and may contain errorswhich could lead to product liability, an increase in our costs and/or a reduction in our
revenues

Our products are complex and may contaiorgy particularly when first introduced or as nesvsions are released. Our new products are
increasingly being designed in more complex preeesgich further increases the risk of errors. A primarily on our in-house testing
personnel to design test operations and procedoidstect any errors prior to delivery of our protuto our customers. Because our products
are manufactured by third parties, should probleotsir in the operation or performance of our ICs,may experience delays in meeting key
introduction dates or scheduled delivery datesurocostomers. These errors also could cause ustio significant re-engineering costs, divert
the attention of our engineering personnel fromproduct development efforts and cause significastomer relations and business repute
problems. Any defects could require product repiaeet or recall or we could be obligated to acceptipct returns. Any of the foregoing
could impose substantial costs and harm our busines

Product liability claims may be assertethwespect to our products. Our products are tylpisald at prices that are significantly lower
than the cost of the end-products into which threyiacorporated. A defect or failure in our prodoculd cause failure in our customer's end-
product, so we could face claims for damages tteatisproportionately higher than the revenuesganéits we receive from the products
involved. Furthermore, product liability risks grarticularly significant with respect to medicabeautomotive applications because of the risk
of serious harm to users of these products. Themeébe no assurance that any insurance we mainthsufficiently protect us from any such
claims.

Any acquisitions we make could disrupt our business and harm our financial condition

As part of our growth and product diversition strategy, we continue to evaluate opporiesib acquire other businesses, intellectual
property or technologies that would complementaurent offerings, expand the breadth of our marketenhance our technical capabilities.
The acquisitions
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that we have made and may make in the future emtailmber of risks that could materially and adelgraffect our business and operating
results, including:

. Problems integrating the acquired operations, teldgies or products with our existing business prradiucts;
. Diversion of management's time and attention framamre business;

. Need for financial resources above our plannedsiment levels;

. Difficulties in retaining business relationshipgiwsuppliers and customers of the acquired comg
. Risks associated with entering markets in whicHag& prior experience

. Risks associated with the transfer of licensesialiectual property;

. Increased operating costs due to acquired overhead;

. Tax issues associated with acquisitic

. Acquisition-related disputes, including disputegiogarn-outs and escrows;

. Potential loss of key employees of the acquiredpamy; and

. Potential impairment of related goodwill and intdolg assets

Future acquisitions also could cause usdor debt or contingent liabilities or cause usstue equity securities that could negatively
impact the ownership percentages of existing slwéddehs.

Our customers require our productsto undergo a lengthy and expensive qualification process without any assurance of product sales

Prior to purchasing our products, our comrs require that our products undergo an extengiaéfication process, which involves test
of the products in the customer's system as welbasous reliability testing. This qualificationqgress may continue for six months or longer.
However, qualification of a product by a customeesinot ensure any sales of the product to th&bmes. Even after successful qualification
and sales of a product to a customer, a subsecguésion to the IC or software, changes in the l@anufacturing process or the selection of a
new supplier by us may require a new qualificapoocess, which may result in delays and in us hgléixcess or obsolete inventory. After our
products are qualified, it can take an additiomahsonths or more before the customer commencaswelproduction of components or
devices that incorporate our products. Despitectiuegertainties, we devote substantial resourcekiding design, engineering, sales,
marketing and management efforts, toward qualifgingproducts with customers in anticipation oesalf we are unsuccessful or delayed in
qualifying any of our products with a customer,Istailure or delay would preclude or delay saleswth product to the customer, which may
impede our growth and cause our business to suffer.

We have substantial international activities, which subjects usto additional businessrisksincluding logistical and financial complexity,
political instability and currency fluctuations

We have established international subsisaand have opened offices in international martesupport our activities in Europe and A
This has included the establishment of a headgsarteSingapore for nobkS. operations. The percentage of our revenuégedefrom outsid:
of the United
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States was 86% during fiscal 2011. We may not leetabmaintain or increase international market dedfor our products. Our international
operations are subject to a number of risks, irintyd

. Complexity and costs of managing international apens and related tax obligations, including oeadiquarters for n-U.S.
operations in Singapore;

. Protectionist laws and business practices thatrfloeal competition in some countries;
. Difficulties related to the protection of our inttual property rights in some countri
. Multiple, conflicting and changing tax and othew$aand regulations that may impact both our intonal and domestic tax a

other liabilities and result in increased complgxihd costs;

. Longer sales cycle!

. Greater difficulty in accounts receivable colleatiand longer collection perioc

. High levels of distributor inventory subject to geiprotection and rights of return to us;

. Political and economic instability;

. Greater difficulty in hiring and retaining qualifi¢echnical sales and applications engineers aminéstrative personnel; ar

. The need to have business and operations systamsatih meet the needs of our international busiaed©perating structure.

To date, all of our sales to internatiotizdtomers and purchases of components from intenadisuppliers have been denominated in
dollars. As a result, an increase in the valudefu.S. dollar relative to foreign currencies comake our products more expensive for our
international customers to purchase, thus rendenimgproducts less competitive. Similarly, a desecim the value of the U.S. dollar could
reduce our buying power with respect to internatiauppliers.

Werely on third partiesto manufacture, assemble and test our products and the failure to successfully manage our relationships with our
manufacturers and subcontractors would negatively impact our ability to sell our products

We do not have our own wafer fab manufacatufacilities. Therefore, we rely on third-partgndors to manufacture the ICs we design.
We also currently rely on Asian third-party assegndalbcontractors to assemble and package thersiticips provided by the wafers for use in
final products. Additionally, we rely on these ditse subcontractors for a substantial portion eftédsting requirements of our products pric
shipping. We expect utilization of third-party sebtractors to continue in the future.

The cyclical nature of the semiconductaluistry drives wide fluctuations in available capaeit third-party vendors. On occasion, we
have been unable to adequately respond to unexpecieases in customer demand due to capacityredms and, therefore, were unable to
benefit from this incremental demand. We may bélento obtain adequate foundry, assembly or tgsdaity from our third-party
subcontractors to meet our customers' deliveryirements even if we adequately forecast customerade.

There are significant risks associated wéliiing on these third-party foundries and subi@otors, including:

. Failure by us, our customers or their end custorteegsialify a selected supplie
. Potential insolvency of the third-party subcontoast
. Reduced control over delivery schedules and quality
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. Limited warranties on wafers or products suppledg;

. Potential increases in prices or payments in advéorccapacity

. Increased need for international-based supplystimgi and financial management;
. Their inability to supply or support new or chargipackaging technologies; and
. Low test yields

We typically do not have long-term suppbntracts with our third-party vendors which oblig#te vendor to perform services and supply
products to us for a specific period, in specifi@ntities, and at specific prices. Our third-pdoiyndry, assembly and test subcontractors
typically do not guarantee that adequate capadityoe available to us within the time requiredni@et demand for our products. In the event
that these vendors fail to meet our demand for exr@treason, we expect that it would take up tenbaths to transition performance of these
services to new providers. Such a transition mag e¢quire qualification of the new providers by oustomers or their end customers.

Since our inception, most of the silicorfeva for the products that we have shipped wereufeatured either by TSMC or its affiliates.
Our customers typically complete their own quadifion process. If we fail to properly balance costo demand across the existing
semiconductor fabrication facilities that we utlliar are required by our foundry partners to ineeear otherwise change the number of fab
lines that we utilize for our production, we migtut be able to fulfill demand for our products andy need to divert our engineering resources
away from new product development initiatives tpmart the fab line transition, which would adveysaffect our operating results.

Our products incorporate technology licensed from third parties

We incorporate technology (including softe)dicensed from third parties in our products. ¥éeld be subjected to claims of
infringement regardless of our lack of involvementhe development of the licensed technology. édih a third party licensor is typically
obligated to indemnify us if the licensed technglagfringes on another party's intellectual propeights, such indemnification is typically
limited in amount and may be worthless if the Ie@nbecomes insolvent. S8gnificant litigation over intellectual property iour industry
may cause us to become involved in costly andhgrgigation which could seriously harm our busisd-urthermore, any failure of third
party technology to perform properly would adveys#fect sales of our products incorporating swaihbology.

Our inability to manage growth could materially and adversely affect our business

Our past growth has placed, and any fujuogth of our operations will continue to placesignificant strain on our management
personnel, systems and resources. We anticipatevéhaill need to implement a variety of new andtguled sales, operational and financial
enterprise-wide systems, information technologyaistiructure, procedures and controls, includingrfgrovement of our accounting and other
internal management systems to manage this gravdimaintain compliance with regulatory guidelinesjuding Sarbanes-Oxley Act
requirements. To the extent our business growsindeimal management systems and processes wiltodeprove to ensure that we remain
in compliance. We also expect that we will needdntinue to expand, train, manage and motivatenaukforce. All of these endeavors will
require substantial management effort, and we ipatie that we will require additional managemenspenel and internal processes to manage
these efforts and to plan for the succession fiam to time of certain persons who have been keyagament and technical personnel. If we
are unable to effectively manage our expandingajloperations, including our international headtprarin Singapore, our business could be
materially and adversely affected.
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We are subject to risks relating to product concentration

We derive a substantial portion of our reves from a limited number of products, and we ekfleese products to continue to account for
a large percentage of our revenues in the near teomtinued market acceptance of these produdiseisfore, critical to our future success. In
addition, substantially all of our products that e sold include technology related to one orenudrour issued U.S. patents. If these patents
are found to be invalid or unenforceable, our caiitgrs could introduce competitive products thatldareduce both the volume and price per
unit of our products. Our business, operating testihancial condition and cash flows could therefbe adversely affected by:

. A decline in demand for any of our more significantducts;

. Failure of our products to achieve continued maaceeptance;

. Competitive products;

. New technological standards or changes to existagdards that we are unable to address with @aupts;
. A failure to release new products or enhanced olessof our existing products on a timely basis;

. The failure of our new products to achieve markeeatance.

We are subject to credit risks related to our accounts receivable

We do not generally obtain letters of ctediother security for payment from customerstritistors or contract manufacturers.
Accordingly, we are not protected against accotatsivable default or bankruptcy by these entifiéds current economic situation could
increase the likelihood of such defaults and bapticias. Our ten largest customers or distributepsesent a substantial majority of our
accounts receivable. If any such customer or distoir, or a material portion of our smaller custosnar distributors, were to become insolvent
or otherwise not satisfy their obligations to ug, @ould be materially harmed.

We depend on our key personnel to manage our business effectively in a rapidly changing market, and if we are unable to retain our current
personnel and hire additional personnel, our ability to develop and successfully market our products could be harmed

We believe our future success will depankthige part upon our ability to attract and retaighly skilled managerial, engineering, sales
and marketing personnel. We believe that our fusueeess will be dependent on retaining the sesvo€eur key personnel, developing their
successors and certain internal processes to reduceliance on specific individuals, and on prypenanaging the transition of key roles
when they occur. There is currently a shortageualified personnel with significant experiencelie tlesign, development, manufacturing,
marketing and sales of analog and mixed-signal liCparticular, there is a shortage of engineers ate familiar with the intricacies of the
design and manufacturability of analog elementd,@mpetition for such personnel is intense. Oyrtkehnical personnel represent a
significant asset and serve as the primary sowrceur technological and product innovations. Weymat be successful in attracting and
retaining sufficient numbers of technical persorinedupport our anticipated growth. The loss of ahgur key employees or the inability to
attract or retain qualified personnel both in th@teld States and internationally, including engisesales, applications and marketing
personnel, could delay the development and intrboluof, and negatively impact our ability to selyr products.
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Any dispositions could harm our financial condition

Any disposition of a product line would aihta number of risks that could materially and exdely affect our business and operating
results, including:

. Diversion of management's time and attention framamre busines:

. Difficulties separating the divested business;

. Risks to relations with customers who previouslychased products from our disposed product line;

. Reduced leverage with suppliers due to reducedeggtg volume

. Risks related to employee relatio

. Risks associated with the transfer and licensinigtetflectual property;

. Security risks and other liabilities related to thensition services provided in connection with thisposition;
. Tax issues associated with dispositions;

. Dispositior-related disputes, including disputes over -outs and escrow

Our stock price may be volatile

The market price of our common stock hanblatile in the past and may be volatile infitere. The market price of our common
stock may be significantly affected by the follogifactors:

. Actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operatiegults;

. Changes in financial estimates by securities atatysour failure to perform in line with such estites;

. Changes in market valuations of other technologymanies, particularly semiconductor companies;

. Announcements by us or our competitors of signifidechnical innovations, acquisitions, strategdiperships, joint ventures
or capital commitments;

. Introduction of technologies or product enhancemémit reduce the need for our products;

. The loss of, or decrease in sales to, one or meyekstomers;

. A large sale of stock by a significant sharehol

. Dilution from the issuance of our stock in conneatwith acquisitions

. The addition or removal of our stock to or fromt@ck index fund;

. Departures of key personnel; and

. The required expensing of stock awal

The stock market has experienced extrertadility that often has been unrelated to the preenimnce of particular companies. These mg
fluctuations may cause our stock price to fall rdigss of our performance.
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Most of our current manufacturers, assemblers, test service providers, distributors and customers are concentrated in the same geographic
region, which increases the risk that a natural disaster, epidemic, labor strike, war or political unrest could disrupt our operations or sales

Most of TSMC's foundries and several of assembly and test subcontractors' sites are thaafEaiwan and most of our other foundry,
assembly and test subcontractors are located iRah#ic Rim region. In addition, many of our custrs are located in the Pacific Rim region.
The risk of earthquakes in Taiwan and the Pacifio FRegion is significant due to the proximity of jpaearthquake fault lines in the area.
Earthquakes, tsunamis, fire, flooding, lack of wateother natural disasters, an epidemic, politiceiest, war, labor strikes or work stoppages
in countries where our semiconductor manufactuessemblers and test subcontractors are locaktet), Would result in the disruption of our
foundry, assembly or test capacity. There can bassarance that alternate capacity could be oldt@indavorable terms, if at all.

A natural disaster, epidemic, labor strikar or political unrest where our customers' fies are located would likely reduce our sales to
such customers. North Korea's geopolitical manéngsthave created unrest. Such unrest could ceeatgomic uncertainty or instability,
could escalate to war or otherwise adversely aBecith Korea and our South Korean customers antteegur sales to such customers, which
would materially and adversely affect our operatiegults. In addition, a significant portion of tagsembly and testing of our products occurs
in South Korea. Any disruption resulting from thesents could also cause significant delays inmshigts of our products until we are able to
shift our manufacturing, assembling or testing frithva affected subcontractor to another third-peaetydor.

The semiconductor manufacturing process is highly complex and, from time to time, manufacturing yields may fall below our expectations,
which could result in our inability to satisfy demand for our productsin atimely manner and may decrease our gross margins due to higher
unit costs

The manufacturing of our products is a higlomplex and technologically demanding procedthdugh we work closely with our
foundries and assemblers to minimize the likelihobdeduced manufacturing yields, we have from ttméme experienced lower than
anticipated manufacturing yields. Changes in mastufang processes or the inadvertent use of defecti contaminated materials could result
in lower than anticipated manufacturing yields nacceptable performance deficiencies, which camlel our gross margins. If our foundries
fail to deliver fabricated silicon wafers of satisfory quality in a timely manner, we will be unald meet our customers' demand for our
products in a timely manner, which would adversdfgct our operating results and damage our custoaheionships.

We depend on our customers to support our products, and some of our customers offer competing products

Our products are currently used by ouramstrs to produce modems, telephony equipment, mbhihdsets, networking equipment and a
broad range of other devices. We rely on our custsrto provide hardware, software, intellectuaperty indemnification and other technical
support for the products supplied by our customémmur customers do not provide the required fiomality or if our customers do not provide
satisfactory support for their products, the demfandhese devices that incorporate our productg diainish or we may otherwise be
materially adversely affected. Any reduction in theemand for these devices would significantly redoar revenues.

In certain products, some of our custonodfier their own competitive products. These custaameay find it advantageous to support their
own offerings in the marketplace in lieu of promgtiour products.

22




Table of Contents

We could seek to raise additional capital in the future through the issuance of equity or debt securities, but additional capital may not be
available on terms acceptable to us, or at all

We believe that our existing cash, cashvadents and investments will be sufficient to meet working capital needs, capital
expenditures, investment requirements and commirfenat least the next 12 months. However, jitdssible that we may need to raise
additional funds to finance our activities or taiftiate acquisitions of other businesses, produntellectual property or technologies. We
believe we could raise these funds, if neededgbing equity or debt securities to the public @istlected investors. In addition, even though
we may not need additional funds, we may still elecell additional equity or debt securities btain credit facilities for other reasons.
However, we may not be able to obtain additionabiion favorable terms, or at all. If we decidestige additional funds by issuing equity or
convertible debt securities, the ownership pergagaf existing shareholders would be reduced.

We are arelatively small company with limited resources compared to some of our current and potential competitors and we may not be able
to compete effectively and increase market share

Some of our current and potential competit@ave longer operating histories, significantigajer resources and name recognition and a
larger base of customers than we have. As a reélsaie competitors may have greater credibilitywitir existing and potential customers.
They also may be able to adopt more aggressivangraplicies and devote greater resources to theldpment, promotion and sale of their
products than we can to ours. In addition, somauofcurrent and potential competitors have alrezstgblished supplier or joint development
relationships with the decision makers at our atrog potential customers. These competitors maghihe to leverage their existing
relationships to discourage their customers fromelpasing products from us or persuade them to cemar products with their products. Our
competitors may also offer bundled solutions offgra more complete product despite the technicaltsm advantages of our products. Th
competitors may elect not to support our produdiglvcould complicate our sales efforts. Theseahdr competitive pressures may prevent
us from competing successfully against currentuture competitors, and may materially harm our fresss. Competition could decrease our
prices, reduce our sales, lower our gross margidfoadecrease our market share.

Provisionsin our charter documents and Delaware law could prevent, delay or impede a change in control of usand may reduce the market
price of our common stock

Provisions of our certificate of incorpacat and bylaws could have the effect of discourggitelaying or preventing a merger or
acquisition that a stockholder may consider favierabor example, our certificate of incorporatiorddylaws provide for:

. The division of our Board of Directors into thrdasses to be elected on a staggered basis, osecelals year;

. The ability of our Board of Directors to issue sfsof our preferred stock in one or more serieBawit further authorization of
our stockholders;

. A prohibition on stockholder action by written cens,
. Elimination of the right of stockholders to calépecial meeting of stockholders;
. A requirement that stockholders provide advanceeadatf any stockholder nominations of directorany proposal of new

business to be considered at any meeting of stéaéisy and

. A requirement that a supermajority vote be obtaieegimend or repeal certain provisions of our fiegtie of incorporation.
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We also are subject to the aatieover laws of Delaware which may discourageaydel prevent someone from acquiring or mergindn
us, which may adversely affect the market pricelofcommon stock.

Risks related to our industry
We are subject to the cyclical nature of the semiconductor industry, which has been subject to significant fluctuations

The semiconductor industry is highly cyaliand is characterized by constant and rapid tdolgical change, rapid product obsolescence
and price erosion, evolving standards, short prolifeccycles and wide fluctuations in product slyppnd demand. The industry has
experienced significant fluctuations, often conedawith, or in anticipation of, maturing producictss and new product introductions of both
semiconductor companies' and their customers' ptedund fluctuations in general economic conditi@eteriorating general worldwide
economic conditions, including reduced economiovagt concerns about credit and inflation, incred&nergy costs, decreased consumer
confidence, reduced corporate profits, decreaseddipg and similar adverse business conditions)dvmake it very difficult for our
customers, our vendors, and us to accurately fetecal plan future business activities and coulded).S. and foreign businesses to slow
spending on our products. We cannot predict thangrstrength, or duration of any economic slowdameconomic recovery. If the economy
or markets in which we operate deteriorate, ouirass, financial condition, and results of operagiosould likely be materially and adversely
affected.

Downturns have been characterized by dshedl product demand, production overcapacity, imgéntory levels and accelerated erosion
of average selling prices. In the recent past, @liee the semiconductor industry suffered a downtlue in large part to adverse conditions in
the global credit and financial markets, includdigninished liquidity and credit availability, dees in consumer confidence, declines in
economic growth, increased unemployment rates andrgl uncertainty regarding the economy. Such tlawa may have a material adverse
effect on our business and operating results.

Upturns have been characterized by inctepseduct demand and production capacity const@irgated by increased competition for
access to third-party foundry, assembly and tgsacity. We are dependent on the availability ofhscapacity to manufacture, assemble and
test our ICs. None of our third-party foundry, asbé or test subcontractors have provided assusathed adequate capacity will be available
to us.

The average selling prices of our products could decrease rapidly which may negatively impact our revenues and gross margins

We may experience substantial period-téepeftuctuations in future operating results dughte erosion of our average selling prices. We
have reduced the average unit price of our prodod@sticipation of or in response to competitiveeing pressures, new product introductions
by us or our competitors and other factors. If weewmnable to offset any such reductions in ouragyeiselling prices by increasing our sales
volumes, increasing our sales content per appticair reducing production costs, our gross margitsrevenues will suffer. To maintain our
gross margin percentage, we will need to devela@piatnoduce new products and product enhancemendstimnely basis and continually
reduce our costs. Our failure to do so could causgevenues and gross margin percentage to decline
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Competition within the numerous markets we target may reduce sales of our products and reduce our market share

The markets for semiconductors in genarad, for mixed-signal ICs in particular, are intdpsmmpetitive. We expect that the market for
our products will continually evolve and will belgect to rapid technological change. In additianhwe target and supply products to nume
markets and applications, we face competition feoralatively large number of competitors. We corapeith Analog Devices, Atmel,
Broadcom, Conexant, Cypress, Epson, Freescale,Udntiq, Maxim Integrated Products, Microchip, Misemi, NXP Semiconductors,
Renesas, Sony Semiconductor, ST-Ericsson, STMiettrehics, Texas Instruments, Vectron Internatiamal others. We expect to face
competition in the future from our current compm@st, other manufacturers and designers of semiatody and start-up semiconductor design
companies. As the markets for communications prizdgiow, we also may face competition from traditibcommunications device
companies. These companies may enter the mixedisggmiconductor market by introducing their owis & by entering into strategic
relationships with or acquiring other existing piders of semiconductor products. In addition, latgempanies may restructure their operations
to create separate companies or may acquire newdsses that are focused on providing the typ@sarfucts we produce or acquire our
customers.

Our products must conform to industry standards and technology in order to be accepted by end usersin our markets

Generally, our products comprise only & paa device. All components of such devices nngftormly comply with industry standards
order to operate efficiently together. We depend¢@mpanies that provide other components of thécds\to support prevailing industry
standards. Many of these companies are signifigéantlier and more influential in affecting industtgandards than we are. Some industry
standards may not be widely adopted or implememtédrmly, and competing standards may emergerttegt be preferred by our customers
or end users. If larger companies do not supperséme industry standards that we do, or if comgetiandards emerge, market acceptance of
our products could be adversely affected which @dwarm our business.

Products for certain applications are basethdustry standards that are continually evgyi@ur ability to compete in the future will
depend on our ability to identify and ensure coanudie with these evolving industry standards. Thergance of new industry standards could
render our products incompatible with products tigwed by other suppliers. As a result, we coulddopiired to invest significant time and
effort and to incur significant expense to redesign products to ensure compliance with relevaamdrds. If our products are not in
compliance with prevailing industry standards faignificant period of time, we could miss oppoiti@s to achieve crucial design wins.

Our pursuit of necessary technological adea may require substantial time and expense. Wenwot be successful in developing or
using new technologies or in developing new pragloctproduct enhancements that achieve market e If our ICs fail to achieve mar
acceptance, our growth prospects, operating reanttssompetitive position could be adversely aédct

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Iltem 2. Properties

Our primary facilities, housing engineerisgles and marketing, administration and testaijmers, are located in Austin, Texas. Our
Austin, Texas operations currently occupy approxalya210,000 square feet of leased floor space ke terms expiring in 2013. In addit
to these properties, we lease smaller facilitiegairious locations in the United States, ChinanEea Germany,
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Hungary, India, Ireland, Italy, Japan, South Ko®iagapore, Taiwan, Turkey and the United Kingdomegineering, sales and marketing,
administrative and manufacturing support activiti®e believe that these facilities are suitable aelquate to meet our current operating
needs.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
Securities Litigation

On December 6, 2001, a class action comiplai violations of U.S. federal securities lawasafiled in the United States District Court
the Southern District of New York against us, foliour officers individually and the three invesmméanking firms who served as
representatives of the underwriters in connectidh wur initial public offering of common stock. €Consolidated Amended Complaint
alleges that the registration statement and praspéar our initial public offering did not discleshat (1) the underwriters solicited and
received additional, excessive and undisclosed dssioms from certain investors, and (2) the unditevs had agreed to allocate shares of the
offering in exchange for a commitment from the oustrs to purchase additional shares in the aft&ehat pre-determined higher prices. The
Complaint alleges violations of the Securities 8£1933 and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ddtion seeks damages in an unspecified
amount and is being coordinated with approximaB@®§ other nearly identical actions filed againsteotcompanies. A court order dated
October 9, 2002 dismissed without prejudice our faficers who had been named individually. On Deber 5, 2006, the Second Circuit
vacated a decision by the District Court grantitags certification in six of the coordinated casesich are intended to serve as test, or "focus"
cases. The plaintiffs selected these six caseghwit not include us. On April 6, 2007, the Sec@irduit denied a petition for rehearing filed
by the plaintiffs, but noted that the plaintiffsudd ask the District Court to certify more narrolasses than those that were rejected.

The parties in the approximately 300 cowatéd cases, including the parties in the casasigas, reached a settlement. On October 5,
2009, the Court granted final approval of the setént. Judgment was entered on January 10, 20&Gséfitlement approval was appealed to
the United States Court of Appeals for the Secoindu@. One appeal was dismissed and the seconegshp@s remanded to the District Court
to determine if the appellant is a class memben stiinding to appeal. The District Court ruled thatappellant lacked standing. The appellant
appealed the District Court's decision to the Sdd@incuit. Subsequently, the appellant entered ansettlement agreement with counsel for the
plaintiff class pursuant to which he dismissedagpeal with prejudice. As a result, the settlena@mbng the parties is final and the case is
concluded. The insurers for the issuer defendartisel coordinated cases will make the settlemeypat on behalf of the issuers, including
us. The settlement did not have a material impaout financial position or results of operations.

Other

We are involved in various other legal gedings that have arisen in the normal course sihbas. While the ultimate results of these
matters cannot be predicted with certainty, we aloexpect them to have a material adverse effecuortonsolidated financial position or
results of operations.

Iltem 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable
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Part Il
ltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases &quity Securities
Market Information and Holders

Our registration statement (Registration 888-94853) under the Securities Act of 1933,rasraded, relating to our initial public offering
of our common stock became effective on March 2802 Our common stock is quoted on the NASDAQ NetidMarket (NASDAQ) under
the symbol "SLAB". The table below shows the highl fow per-share sales prices of our common stockhk periods indicated, as reported
by NASDAQ. As of January 31, 2012, there were 1@6lérs of record of our common stock.

High Low

Fiscal Year 201!

First Quarte $ 49.1( $ 41.9¢

Second Quarte 53.17 39.8¢

Third Quartel 44.2¢ 34.1C

Fourth Quarte 47.47 35.6¢
Fiscal Year 201.

First Quartel $ 50.27 $ 41.4¢

Second Quarte 46.2¢ 37.5¢

Third Quartel 42.8¢ 30.3¢

Fourth Quarte 45.1( 31.92

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid any casdelids on our common stock and we do not interghtocash dividends in the foreseeable
future. We currently expect to retain any futuren@ays to fund the operation and expansion of ausiress.
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Stock Performance Graph

The graph depicted below shows a compa$@umulative total stockholder returns for anestment in Silicon Laboratories Inc.
common stock, the NASDAQ Composite Index and thesSBAQ Electronic Components Index.
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—fll— Silicon Laboratories Ine, === NASDAD Compozite
=== MNASDAQ Elactronic Companants
Company / Index 12/30/06 12/29/07 01/03/09 01/02/10 01/01/11 12/31/11
Silicon Laboratories Inc $ 100.0C $ 108.7: $ 73.77 $ 139.6: $ 132.87 $ 125.3!
NASDAQ Composite $ 100.0C $ 10857 $ 64.1: $ 92.6¢ $ 108.9( $ 107.6¢
NASDAQ Electronic
Component: $ 100.0C $ 115.2¢ $ 58.8¢ $ 959z $ 109.2: $ 98.2¢

1) The graph assumes that $100 was invested in oumconstock and in each index at the market closeesember 3C
2006, and that all dividends were reinvested. Nsha@ividends have been declared on our common.stock

(2) Stockholder returns over the indicated period sthowt be considered indicative of future stockhole¢urns.
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table summarizes repurchadesur common stock during the three months endecebhber 31, 2011 (in thousands, except
per share amounts):

Total Number of Approximate
Shares Purchased Dollar Value of
as Part of Shares that May
Average Price Publicly Yet Be Purchased
Total Number of Paid per Announced Plans Under the Plans
Period Shares Purchased Share or Programs or Programs
October 2, 201-
October 29, 201 — 3 — — % 50,00(
October 30, 2011 -
November 26, 201 — 3 — — % 50,00(
November 27, 201-
December 31, 201 — 3 — — $ 50,00(

Total — 3 — —

In October 2011, our Board of Directorshauiized a program to repurchase up to $50 millibous common stock through April 2012.
The program allows for repurchases to be madedifien market or in private transactions, includitigctured or accelerated transactions,
subject to applicable legal requirements and marteditions.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Please read this selected consolidateddinbdata in conjunction with "Management's Disios and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations,” our Consolidated FiiguStatements and the notes to those statemasitgled in this Form 10-K.

Fiscal Year
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(in thousands, except per share date

Consolidated Statements
Income Date

Revenue! $ 491,62! $ 493,34: $ 441,02( $ 415,63( $ 337,46:
Operating incom: 50,07« 86,67 66,51: 43,65¢3) 23,09
Income from continuing

operations 35,47: 73,24. 73,0942) 32,9343) 39,681

Income from discontinued

operations, net of income

taxes — — — — 165,14¢4)
Net income $ 3547: $ 73,24. $ 73,0942)$ 32,93%3)$ 204,83¢((4)

Income from continuing
operations per shar

Basic $ 08z $ 16 $ 16z $ 0.6 $ 0.7z

Diluted $ 0.7¢ ¢ 157 $ 157 $ 067 $ 0.7¢C
Consolidated Balance Sheet

Data
Cash, cash equivalents and

investments (1 $ 324,967 $ 383,36: $ 434,89¢ $ 325,36( $ 572,97¢5)
Working capital 370,21: 414,07: 435,35¢ 289,71t 599,30(
Total asset 705,99: 727,65¢ 742,83 624,24! 840,24¢
Long-term obligation: 24,21« 22,37: 24,40 48,78¢ 43,30¢
Total stockholders' equi 598,93 625,43( 629,79t 502,46( 703,54!

(1) Reflects repurchases of $110 million, $140 milli&0 million, $280 million and $163 million of oeobmmon stock in fiscal 201
2010, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

(2 Includes a benefit related to the resolution obipyear uncertain tax benefi
3 Includes a charge for-process research and development costs in connewitlo our acquisition of Integration Associat
4) Includes a gain on the sale of our Aero® produedj net of related income taxes.

(5) Includes proceeds from the sale of our Aero protines.
Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis &inancial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis afficial condition and results of operations shd@dead in conjunction with the Consolidated
Financial Statements and related notes theretaded elsewhere in this report. This discussionaioatforward-looking statements. Please see
the "Cautionary Statement" and "Risk Factors" alfoveliscussions of the uncertainties, risks arsiagptions associated with these
statements. Our fiscal year-end financial reporingods are a 52- or 53- week year ending on #tar8ay closest to December 31st. Fiscal
2011, 2010 and 2009 were 52-week years and endBeécember 31, 2011, January 1, 2011 and Janu&@1®, respectively.
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Overview

We design and develop proprietary, anatdgrisive, mixed-signal ICs for a broad range ofiapfions. Mixed-signal ICs are electronic
components that convert real-world analog sigrsish as sound and radio waves, into digital sigthaliselectronic products can process.
Therefore, mixed-signal ICs are critical componénta broad range of applications in a variety afrkets, including communications,
consumer, industrial, automotive, medical and pawanagement. Our major customers include Ciscowdijd.G Electronics, Pace,
Panasonic, Sagem, Samsung, Technicolor, Variandde8iystems and ZTE.

As a fabless semiconductor company, wearlthird-party semiconductor fabricators in Asiad to a lesser extent the United States and
Europe, to manufacture the silicon wafers thaemtfour IC designs. Each wafer contains numeragisathich are cut from the wafer to crea
chip for an IC. We rely on third parties in Asiaassemble, package, and, in most cases, testdbewes and ship these units to our customers
Testing performed by such third parties facilitefeester delivery of products to our customers {palarly those located in Asia), shorter
production cycle times, lower inventory requirengembwer costs and increased flexibility of tegpaeity.

Our expertise in analog-intensive, highfpenance, mixed-signal ICs enables us to develghlhidifferentiated solutions that address
multiple markets. We group our products into thiéofeing categories:

. Broad-based products, which include our microcdletrs, timing products (clocks and oscillators)reléss receivers, isolation
devices and human interface sensors and controllers

. Broadcast products, which include our broadcastoeaid video products;

. Access products, which include our VoIP productshedded modems and our Power over Ethernet dewnds;

. Mature products, which include certain devices #ratat the end of their respective life cycles #edefore receive minimal «

no continued research and development investmezitiding our DSL analog front end ICs and IRDA de4.

Through acquisitions and internal developtedforts, we have continued to diversify our protdportfolio and introduce next generation
ICs with added functionality and further integratidn January 2011, we acquired Spectra Linear,3pectra Linear's family of low-power,
highly programmable and small-footprint silicon@king solutions is optimized for consumer electesrand embedded applications. The
acquired products complement our existing timingdpict line by adding a broad family of ICs that bedieve will accelerate penetration in
high-volume applications.

In fiscal 2011, we introduced energy-e#fidi microcontroller and wireless microcontrollehusions for power-sensitive embedded
applications, high-performance receivers ideahfoifti-tuner car radio systems with HD Radio teclwggl, single-chip hybrid TV receivers
designed to simplify TV and set-top box designsiudti-band radio receiver that streamlines the glesif wheel-tuned radio products with
digital displays, a silicon TV tuner solution fo¥Tmakers in China and Taiwan, next generation IS@enoembedded modems with advanced
voice features for a wide range of data modem egfitins, six-channel digital isolators with isotetiratings up to 5 kV, a highly integrated,
cost-effective and power-efficient subscriber lingrface circuit (SLIC) solution for VolP gateways energy-efficient wireless sensor node
solution powered by a solar energy harvesting sgurigh-performance clock ICs for high-speed optieasport network (OTN) applications,
two microcontroller families that simplify the adidn of USB connectivity to embedded designs, rgederation infrared and ambient light
sensors for human interface applications and alyamhicrystal oscillators and voltage-controllegstal oscillators designed to minimize jitter,
system cost and design complexity for a wide rasfgegh-performance, cost-sensitive applicationg plan to
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continue to introduce products that increase thmerd we provide for existing applications, therelmabling us to serve markets we do not
currently address and expanding our total availatdeket opportunity.

During fiscal 2011 and 2009, we had ondarasr, Samsung, whose purchases across a variptpdiict areas represented 13% and 16%
of our revenues, respectively. We had no custothatsaccounted for more than 10% of our revenuesgldiscal 2010. In addition to direct
sales to customers, some of our end customers gmeqgdroducts indirectly from us through distribstand contract manufacturers. An end
customer purchasing through a contract manufactypésally instructs such contract manufactureoliéain our products and incorporate such
products with other components for sale by suctirachmanufacturer to the end customer. Althoughaeteally sell the products to, and are
paid by, the distributors and contract manufacgjnee refer to such end customer as our custonheeeTof our distributors, Edom
Technology, Avnet and Macnica, represented 24%, a8e10% of our revenues during fiscal 2011, respeg. Edom and Avnet represented
28% and 14% of our revenues during fiscal 2010,2#% and 10% of our revenues during fiscal 2008peetively. There were no other
distributors or contract manufacturers that acoedifibr more than 10% of our revenues in fiscal 2@0D10 or 2009.

The percentage of our revenues derived fyateide of the United States was 86% in fiscall2@6% in fiscal 2010 and 88% in fiscal
2009. All of our revenues to date have been denatmihin U.S. dollars. We believe that a majorityof revenues will continue to be derived
from customers outside of the United States.

The sales cycle for our ICs can be as 32 months or more. An additional three to sixithe or more are usually required before a
customer ships a significant volume of devices ihedrporate our ICs. Due to this lengthy saledesywe typically experience a significant
delay between incurring research and developmehsaliing, general and administrative expensestladorresponding sales. Consequently,
if sales in any quarter do not occur when expeaggenses and inventory levels could be disprapuately high, and our operating results for
that quarter and, potentially, future quarters wideg adversely affected. Moreover, the amountoé thetween initial research and
development and commercialization of a produatyir, can be substantially longer than the salele dgr the product. Accordingly, if we
incur substantial research and development costeuti developing a commercially successful prodoat,operating results, as well as our
growth prospects, could be adversely affected.

Because many of our ICs are designed felirusonsumer products such as televisions, sebasps, portable navigation devices and
mobile handsets, we expect that the demand fopmgtucts will be typically subject to some degréseasonal demand. However, rapid
changes in our markets and across our product araks it difficult for us to accurately estimate timpact of seasonal factors on our busir

Results of Operations
The following describes the line itemsfeeth in our Consolidated Statements of Income:

Revenues. Revenues are generated almost exclusivelyleg s&our ICs. We recognize revenue on sales alierf the following
criteria are met: 1) there is persuasive evidehaean arrangement exists, 2) delivery of goodsokasrred, 3) the sales price is fixed or
determinable, and 4) collectibility is reasonaldgared. Generally, we recognize revenue from pitogles to direct customers and contract
manufacturers upon shipment. Certain of our salesnade to distributors under agreements allowartam rights of return and price
protection on products unsold by distributors. Adbagly, we defer the revenue and cost of revenmusuzh sales until the distributors sell the
product to the end customer. Our products typicadiyy a one-year replacement warranty. Replacesree been insignificant to date. Our
revenues are subject to variation from period tdopedue to the volume of
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shipments made within a period, the mix of produessell and the prices we charge for our produdis. vast majority of our revenues were
negotiated at prices that reflect a discount frhalist prices for our products. These discourgsnaade for a variety of reasons, including: 1
establish a relationship with a new customer, Zramcentive for customers to purchase produdi@rger volumes, 3) to provide profit marg

to our distributors who resell our products ormyeésponse to competition. In addition, as a prothatures, we expect that the average selling
price for such product will decline due to the geeavailability of competing products. Our abilttyincrease revenues in the future is
dependent on increased demand for our establistoeldigts and our ability to ship larger volumeshafde products in response to such den
as well as our ability to develop or acquire neaducts and subsequently achieve customer acceptnesvly introduced products.

Cost of Revenues. Cost of revenues includes the cost of purclgafiiished silicon wafers processed by indepenftamdries; costs
associated with assembly, test and shipping ofetiposducts; costs of personnel and equipment agedaivith manufacturing support, logist
and quality assurance; costs of software royaltiger intellectual property license costs andaieracquired intangible assets; and an alloc
portion of our occupancy costs.

Research and Development. Research and development expense consistsrifyimigpersonnel-related expenses, including stbake:
compensation, new product mask, external consudtiniyservices costs, equipment tooling, equipmeptetiation, amortization of intangible
assets, as well as an allocated portion of ourpegey costs for such operations. Research andajsweht activities include the design of new
products, refinement of existing products and desigtest methodologies to ensure compliance veitfuired specifications.

Selling, General and Administrative. Selling, general and administrative expenseists primarily of personnel-related expenses,
including stock-based compensation, related alllecpbrtion of our occupancy costs, sales commissiorindependent sales representatives,
applications engineering support, professional,flegml fees and promotional and marketing expenses

Interest Income. Interest income reflects interest earned oncash, cash equivalents and investment balances.
Interest Expense. Interest expense consists of interest on oait simd long-term obligations.

Other Income (Expense), Net. Other income (expense), net consists primafifipreign currency remeasurement adjustments #sa@
other non-operating income and expenses.

Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes. Provision (benefit) for income taxes includeshbdomestic and foreign income taxes at the
applicable statutory rates adjusted for non-debletxpenses, research and development tax cegditsther permanent differences.
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The following table sets forth our Consatied Statements of Income data as a percentageeriues for the periods indicated:

Fiscal Year
2011 2010 2009

Revenue:! 100.% 100.% 100.(%
Cost of revenue 39.5 34.5 36.€
Gross margit 60.7 65.7 63.4
Operating expense

Research and developm 27.7 25.1 23.7

Selling, general and administrati 22.¢ 23.C 24
Operating expenst 50.t 48.1 48.4
Operating incomi 10.z 17.€ 15.C
Other income (expense

Interest incom: 0.3 0.4 0.7

Interest expens 0.C 0.C 0.C

Other income (expense), r 0.1 (0.3 0.C
Income before income tax 10.€ 17.7 15.7
Provision (benefit) for income tax 34 2.¢ (0.9
Net income 7.2% 14.8% 16.€%

Comparison of Fiscal 2011 to Fiscal 2010
Revenues
Fiscal Year %
(in millions) 2011 2010 Change Change
Revenue: $ 491.€ $ 493 $ (1.9 (0.9%

Unit volumes of our products decreased amexb to fiscal 2010 by 1.0%. Average selling priceseased during the same period by 1
The average selling prices of our products maytdlaie significantly from period to period. In gealeias our products become more mature
expect to experience decreases in average seliicgspWe anticipate that newly announced, highieed, next generation products and
product derivatives will offset some of these dases.

Gross Margin

Fiscal Year %
(in millions) 2011 2010 Change Change
Gross margir $ 29824 $ 3242 $ (25.9) (8.0%
Percent of revenu 60.7% 65.7%

The decrease in gross margin in fiscal 2044 primarily due to changes in product mix anarghs related to the acquisition of Spectra
Linear.

We may experience declines in the averallieg prices of certain of our products. This ¢esadownward pressure on gross margin as a
percentage of revenues and may be offset to tlemewte are able to: 1) introduce higher margin pesducts and gain market share with our
ICs; 2) achieve lower production costs from ourevafuppliers and third-party assembly and testautbactors; 3) achieve
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lower production costs per unit as a result of iowpd yields throughout the manufacturing procesd;) eeduce logistics costs.

Research and Development

Fiscal Year %
(in millions) 2011 2010 Change Change
Research and developm $ 136.C $ 123.¢ $ 12z 9.8%
Percent of revenu 27.% 25.1%

The increase in research and developmearese in fiscal 2011 was primarily due to (a) amease of $8.6 million for personnel-related
expenses, including $1.6 million for one-time pearsal costs associated with the acquisition of Spddhear, (b) an increase of $2.3 million
for amortization of intangible assets, and (c) $tilion for the impairment of intangible assetseWxpect that research and development
expense will remain relatively stable in absolutélads in the first quarter of 2012.

Recent development projects include eneffjgient microcontroller and wireless microconteslsolutions for power-sensitive embedded
applications, high-performance receivers ideahfioiti-tuner car radio systems with HD Radio teclogyl, single-chip hybrid TV receivers
designed to simplify TV and set-top box designsiuti-band radio receiver that streamlines the glesif wheel-tuned radio products with
digital displays, a silicon TV tuner solution fo¥Tmakers in China and Taiwan, next generation IS@enoembedded modems with advanced
voice features for a wide range of data modem egfidins, six-channel digital isolators with isotetiratings up to 5 kV, a highly integrated,
cost-effective and power-efficient SLIC solution féolP gateways, an energfficient wireless sensor node solution powerea lsplar energ
harvesting source, high-performance clock ICs fghfspeed OTN applications, two microcontroller ftes that simplify the addition of USB
connectivity to embedded designs, next-generatibiaried and ambient light sensors for human interfgpplications and a family of crystal
oscillators and voltage-controlled crystal osadtatdesigned to minimize jitter, system cost arglgtecomplexity for a wide range of high-
performance, cost-sensitive applications.

Selling, General and Administrative

Fiscal Year %
(in millions) 2011 2010 Change Change
Selling, general and administrati $ 112« $ 113 $ (1.9 1.2%
Percent of revenu 22.&% 23.(%

The decrease in selling, general and aditnative expense in fiscal 2011 was principally tlua) a decrease of $2.0 million for legal fees,
and (b) a decline of $1.9 million in the fair valofacquisition-related contingent consideratione Hecrease was offset in part by an increase
of $2.2 million for personnel-related expensesluding $3.0 million for one-time personnel costsasdated with the acquisition of Spectra
Linear. We expect that selling, general and adrratise expense will increase modestly in absolig#ars in the first quarter of 2012.

Interest Income

Fiscal Year
(in millions) 2011 2010 Change
Interest incom $ 1¢ $ 23 $ (049
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Interest Expense

Interest expense in fiscal 2011 was $3ushad compared to $77 thousand in fiscal 2010.
Other Income (Expense), Net

Other income (expense), net in fiscal 2@A% $0.4 million compared to $(1.3) million in f@8@010. The change was primarily due to
foreign currency remeasurement adjustments.

Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes

Fiscal Year
(in millions) 2011 2010 Change
Provision (benefit) for income tax: $ 16 $ 144 $ 25
Effective tax rate 32.2% 16.%%

The effective tax rate for fiscal 2011 eased from the prior period, primarily due to ttve ¢charge related to the intercompany license of
certain technology obtained in the acquisition pé&ra Linear and other one-time nondeductiblescassociated with the acquisition of
Spectra Linear, a decrease in the foreign taxtratefit, and a release of prior year unrecogniagdenefits in fiscal 2010 with none in fiscal
2011. These changes were partially offset by arease in the research and development tax credit.

The effective tax rates for each of thequks presented differ from the federal statutote K& 35% due to the amount of income earned in
foreign jurisdictions where the tax rate may bedothan the federal statutory rate, research anelolpment tax credits and other permanent
items including changes to the liability for unrgo@ed tax benefits.

Comparison of Fiscal 2010 to Fiscal 2009

Revenues

Fiscal Year %
(in millions) 2010 2009 Change Change
Revenue: $ 493.2 $ 441.C $ 52.: 11.%

The growth in revenues in fiscal 2010 was grimarily to improvements in the health of owwducts' end markets and increases in m
share. Unit volumes of our products increased coetptp fiscal 2009 by 2.8%. Average selling priceseased during the same period by
9.3%.

Gross Margin

Fiscal Year %
(in millions) 2010 2009 Change Change
Gross margir $ 3247 $ 279.6 $ 444 15.9%
Percent of revenu 65.7%  63.4%

The increase in the dollar amount of gmssgin in fiscal 2010 was primarily due to our isased sales. The increase in gross margin as
percent of revenue in fiscal 2010 was primarily ttuehanges in product mix, improvements in oueimery management and manufacturing
cost reductions.
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Research and Development

Fiscal Year %
(in millions) 2010 2009 Change Change
Research and developm: $ 1238 $ 1044 $ 19.4 18.6%
Percent of revenu 25.1% 23.%

The increase in research and developmearese in fiscal 2010 was principally due to anease of $15.0 million for personnel-related
expenses.

In connection with the purchase of Silic@ocks, we acquired certain in-process researctdandlopment (IPR&D) assets. IPR&D
represents acquired technology from business catibirs that had not achieved technological feasitak of the acquisition date and had no
alternative future use. IPR&D is capitalized utiié related projects are completed, then amortizedsearch and development expense over
their useful lives. IPR&D is written-off if the rafled projects are abandoned. The fair value of peaject was determined using the income
approach. The discount rate applicable to the flasls was 19.0%. This rate reflects the weightedrage cost of capital and the risks inherent
in the development process. The IPR&D recordedmmection with the acquisition consisted of thédieing (in thousands):

Fair
Project Value
Resonato $ 5,20(
Clocks 4,27(
$ 9,47(C
Selling, General and Administrative
Fiscal Year %
(in millions) 2010 2009 Change Change
Selling, general and administrati $ 113.6 $ 108.6 $ 5.C 4.5%

Percent of revenu 23.(% 24.1%

The increase in selling, general and adstriaive expense in fiscal 2010 was principally tluan increase of $2.1 million for legal fees,
primarily related to acquisition-related costs é#tigation. The decrease in selling, general anchiadstrative expense as a percent of revenues
in fiscal 2010 is due to our increased sales.

Interest Income

Fiscal Year
(in millions) 2010 2009 Change
Interest incom $ 23 $27 % (09

The decrease in interest income in fis@dl®was largely due to lower interest rates orutiaerlying instruments, partially offset by a
higher average investment balance.

Interest Expense
Interest expense in fiscal 2010 was $0llianicompared to $0.2 million in fiscal 2009.
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Other Income (Expense), Net

Other income (expense), net in fiscal 2@&8 $(1.3) million compared to $(0.1) million is¢al 2009. The change was primarily due to
foreign currency remeasurement adjustments.

Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes

Fiscal Year
(in millions) 2010 2009 Change
Provision (benefit) for income tax: $ 144 $ (41) $ 18k
Effective tax rate 16.2% (6.0%

The effective tax rate for fiscal 2010 ased from the prior period, primarily due to tegalution of uncertain tax positions as a result of
entering into an Advance Pricing Agreement withth8. Internal Revenue Service during the fourtartgr of fiscal 2009. In addition, the
effective tax rate for fiscal 2010 increased frdra prior period due to the intercompany licenseesfain technology obtained in the acquisi
of Silicon Clocks during the second quarter ofdis2010. The increase in the effective tax rate paatially offset by an increase in the federal
research and development credit in fiscal 2010.

The effective tax rates for each of thaquks presented differ from the federal statutotg &f 35% due to the amount of income earned in
foreign jurisdictions where the tax rate may bedothan the federal statutory rate, research anelolement tax credits and other permanent
items including changes to the liability for unrgo@ed tax benefits.

Business Outlook

We expect revenues in the first quarteiszial 2012 to be in the range of $120 to $125iamll Furthermore, we expect our diluted
earnings per share to be in the range of $0.20.@4%

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal sources of liquidity as ofd@nber 31, 2011 consisted of $307.5 million in ¢casish equivalents and short-term
investments, of which approximately $141.7 millwas held by our U.S. entities. The remaining baamas held by our foreign subsidiaries.
Our cash equivalents and short-term investmentsisoof corporate bonds, municipal bonds, moneyketdunds, variable-rate demand notes,
U.S. government agency bonds, U.S. Treasury bifiset-backed securities, U.S. government bond#jcaes of deposit and international
government bonds.

Our long-term investments consist of auctiate securities. Early in fiscal 2008, auctiomsrhany of our auction-rate securities failed
because sell orders exceeded buy orders. As ofriieme31, 2011, we held $19.2 million par value muctate securities, all of which have
experienced failed auctions. These securities hamgactual maturity dates ranging from 2029 to®04e are receiving the underlying cash
flows on all of our auction-rate securities. Thapipal amounts associated with failed auctionsrateexpected to be accessible until a
successful auction occurs, the issuer redeemstheity, a buyer is found outside of the auctiongess or the underlying securities mature
are unable to predict if these funds will becomailable before their maturity dates. We do not expe need access to the capital represented
by any of our auction-rate securities prior to theaturities.

Net cash provided by operating activitiesv$88.7 million during fiscal 2011, compared tbcash provided of $117.9 million during
fiscal 2010. Operating cash flows during fiscal 20&flect our net income of $35.5 million, adjustrteeof $62.0 million for depreciation,
amortization, stoclbased compensation and deferred income taxes, aedcash outflow of $8.8 million due to changestim operating asse
and liabilities.
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Accounts receivable increased to $55.4ionilat December 31, 2011 from $45.0 million at Jagul, 2011. The increase in accounts
receivable resulted primarily from an increasehipsients during the last quarter of fiscal 2011 parad to the last quarter of fiscal 2010. Our
average days sales outstanding (DSO) was 39 d&yscaimber 31, 2011 and 36 days at January 1, 2011.

Inventory decreased to $34.8 million at &aber 31, 2011 from $39.4 million at January 1,2@ur inventory level is primarily
impacted by our need to make purchase commitmersisgport forecasted demand and variations betfagecasted and actual demand. Our
average days of inventory (DOI) was 63 days at Ddxsr 31, 2011 and 87 days at January 1, 2011.

Net cash used in investing activities was.8$ million during fiscal 2011, compared to netltased of $55.2 million during fiscal 2010.
The decrease in cash outflows was principally due decrease of $19.8 million in net purchaseswfstments.

We anticipate capital expenditures of agpnately $8 to $12 million for fiscal 2012. Additially, as part of our growth strategy, we
expect to evaluate opportunities to invest in auéie other businesses, intellectual property dntelogies that would complement or expand
our current offerings, expand the breadth of ourketa or enhance our technical capabilities.

Net cash used in financing activities wa8%2 million during fiscal 2011, compared to nastc used of $119.9 million during fiscal 20
The decrease in cash outflows was principally due decrease of $30.3 million for repurchases oftommon stock, offset by a decrease of
$10.4 million from proceeds from the issuance ohown stock, net of shares withheld for taxes apdyanent of $7.2 million on debt acqui
in the acquisition of Spectra Linear. In Octobet 20our Board of Directors authorized a programefmurchase up to $50 million of our
common stock through April 2012.

Contractual Obligations
The following table summarizes our contwatobligations as of December 31, 2011 (in thodsgn

Payments due by perioc
Total 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Thereafter

Operating lease
obligations (1, $ 1767C $ 6,63C $ 3,347 $ 1,66¢ $ 1,51t $ 151¢ $ 2,99
Purchase obligatior

(2) 25,41 25,377 34 — — — -
Other lon¢-term
obligations (3 8,06z — 5,801 1,991 — — 264

1) Operating lease obligations include amounts fosdddacilities.

(2) Purchase obligations include contractual arrangésriarthe form of purchase orders with supplieresetthere is a fixed n-
cancelable payment schedule or minimum paymentsvithea reduced delivery schedule.

(3)  We are unable to make a reasonably reliable estiasato when or if cash settlement with taxing eties will occur for our
unrecognized tax benefits. Therefore, our liabitify$10.9 million for unrecognized tax benefitsis included in the table above. See
Note 15,ncome Taxedp the Consolidated Financial Statements for amiufti information.

Our future capital requirements will depemdmany factors, including the rate of sales ghpwiarket acceptance of our products, the
timing and extent of research and development pt®j@otential acquisitions of companies or tecbgigls and the expansion of our sales and
marketing activities. We believe our existing casld investment balances are sufficient to meetapital requirements through at least the
next 12 months, although we could be requiredpaidelect, to
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seek additional funding prior to that time. We nesiyer into acquisitions or strategic arrangementkeé future which also could require us to
seek additional equity or debt financing.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In March 2006, we entered into an operaliage agreement and a related participation agneteior a facility at 400 W. Cesar Chavez
("400 WCC") in Austin, Texas for our corporate hgadrters. The lease has a term of seven yearhd3werent for the term of the lease is an
amount equal to the interest accruing on $44.3onilat 110 basis points over the three-month LIB@Rich would be approximately
$0.9 million over the remaining term assuming LIB@®erages 0.56% during such term).

In March 2008, we entered into an operal#age agreement and a related participation agnetefor a facility at 200 W. Cesar Chavez
("200 WCC") in Austin, Texas for the expansion af eorporate headquarters. The lease has a tefiregfears. The base rent for the term of
the lease is an amount equal to the interest atgn $50.1 million at 155 basis points over thre¢hmonth LIBOR (which would be
approximately $1.3 million over the remaining teassuming LIBOR averages 0.56% during such term).

We have granted certain rights and remddiéise lessors in the event of certain defauttsiuiding the right to terminate the leases, to
bring suit to collect damages, and to compel yaurghase the facilities. The leases contain othstotnary representations, warranties,
obligations, conditions, indemnification provisioasd termination provisions, including covenants the shall maintain unencumbered cash
and highly-rated short-term investments of at 1&3& million. If our unencumbered cash and higlated short-term investments are less than
$150 million, we must also maintain a ratio of fedddebt to earnings before interest expense, in¢axres, depreciation, amortization, lease
expense and other non-cash charges (EBITDAR) dnefour prior fiscal quarters of no greater thao 2. As of December 31, 2011, we
believe we were in compliance with all covenantthefleases.

During the terms of the leases, we havgaing options to purchase the buildings for pureh@asces of approximately $44.3 million for
400 WCC and $50.1 million for 200 WCC. Alternatiyelve can cause each such property to be soldrtbghrties provided we are not in
default under that property's lease. We are coetitlg liable on a first dollar loss basis for uph@5.3 million to the extent that the 400 WCC
sale proceeds are less than the $44.3 million pebption and up to $40.0 million to the exteat the 200 WCC sale proceeds are less than
the $50.1 million purchase option.

We determined that the fair value assodiati¢th the guaranteed residual values was $1.Gamifor 400 WCC and $1.2 million for 200
WCC, as of the inception of the leases. These atsouere recorded in "Other assets, net" and "Lengrobligations and other liabilities™ in
the Consolidated Balance Sheets and are being iaetbdver the term of the leases.

We are required to periodically evaluate ¢lxpected fair value of each facility at the ehthe lease terms. If we determine that it is
estimable and probable that the expected fair galikk be less than $44.3 million for 400 WCC argD$#. million for 200 WCC, we will
ratably accrue the loss up to a maximum of appreaséty $35.3 million and $40.0 million, respectivebywer the remaining lease terms as
additional rent expense. As of December 31, 20Eldavnot believe that a loss contingency accruaddsired for either property. However, a
prolonged economic downturn could increase thdiliked of such a loss accrual.

In connection with our headquarters leagesng fiscal 2008 we entered into interest ratagsagreements as a hedge against the variabl
rent under the leases. Under the terms of the ssgegements, we have effectively converted the berigents to fixed rents through March
2011 for 400

39




Table of Contents

WCC and March 2013 for 200 WCC. See Not®érivative Financial Instrumentsto the Consolidated Financial Statements for tamithl
information.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements acmbmpanying notes in conformity with U.S. gerlgratcepted accounting principles requires
that we make estimates and assumptions that affee@mounts reported. Changes in facts and cireumoss could have a significant impact on
the resulting estimated amounts included in therfaial statements. We believe the following criteecounting policies affect our more
complex judgments and estimates. We also have ptiigies that we consider to be key accountingcpes, such as our policies for revenue
recognition, including the deferral of revenues aast of revenues on sales to distributors; howehese policies do not meet the definition of
critical accounting estimates because they do eoérglly require us to make estimates or judgmihatsare difficult or subjective.

Inventory valuatior—We assess the recoverability of inventories thraihghapplication of a set of methods, assumptioidsestimates. |
determining net realizable value, we write dowreimwory that may be slow moving or have some formbsfolescence, including inventory
that has aged more than 12 months. We also adstaluation of inventory when its standard costeexls the estimated market value less
selling costs. We assess the potential for anyualuistomer returns based on known quality oriassi issues and write-off inventory losses
for scrap or non-saleable material. Inventory nibeowise identified to be written down is compate@n assessment of our 12-month
forecasted demand. The result of this methodolegympared against the product life cycle and caityEesituations in the marketplace to
determine the appropriateness of the resultingntorg levels. Demand for our products may fluctuggmificantly over time, and actual
demand and market conditions may be more or lessdhle than those that we project. In the eveatt distual demand is lower or market
conditions are worse than originally projected,iiddal inventory write-downs may be required.

Stock-based compensatietWe recognize the fair-value of stock-based comgiéms transactions in the Consolidated Statement of
Income. The fair value of our full-value stock adswith the exception of market-based performaweards) equals the fair market value of
our stock on the date of grant. The fair value wf market-based performance award grants is egdratthe date of grant using a Motarlo
simulation. The fair value of our stock option dmhployee Stock Purchase Plan grants is estimatie afate of grant using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model. In addition, we are requitedestimate the expected forfeiture rate of ouclstgrants and only recognize the expense for
those shares expected to vest. If our actual expesidiffers significantly from the assumptionscusecompute our stock-based compensation
cost, or if different assumptions had been usednag have recorded too much or too little stockebdasompensation cost. See Note 3@ ck-
Based Compensatic, to the Consolidated Financial Statements fortaatdil information.

Investments in auction-rate securitie$Ve determine the fair value of our investmentadation-rate securities using a discounted cash
flow model. The assumptions used in preparing theadinted cash flow model include estimates farigst rates, amount of cash flows,
expected holding periods of the securities andseadint to reflect our inability to liquidate thecseties. For available-for-sale auction-rate
securities, if the calculated value is below theyiag amount of the securities, we then deternifitiee decline in value is other-than-
temporary. We consider various factors in detemgnivhether an impairment is other-thi@mporary, including the severity and durationie
impairment, changes in underlying credit ratingsetasted recovery, our intent to sell or the iil@d that we would be required to sell the
investment before its anticipated recovery in maviedue and the probability that the scheduled gaghments will continue to be made. When
we conclude that an other-than-temporary impairrhastoccurred, we assess whether we intend to sell

40




Table of Contents

the security or if it is more likely than not thaée will be required to sell the security beforeawery. If either of these two conditions is met,
recognize a charge in earnings equal to the edifierence between the security's amortized cosiskand its fair value. If we do not intend to
sell a security and it is not more likely than tiwt we will be required to sell the security befoecovery, the unrealized loss is separated into
an amount representing the credit loss, whichdegrized in earnings, and the amount related totha#r factors, which is recorded in
accumulated other comprehensive loss.

Acquired intangible assetsWhen we acquire a business, a portion of the @selprice is typically allocated to identifiablégingible
assets, such as acquired technology and custotagonships. Fair value of these assets is detesghpmimarily using the income approach,
which requires us to project future cash flows apgly an appropriate discount rate. We amortizenigible assets with finite lives over their
expected useful lives. Our estimates are based agpgumptions believed to be reasonable but whieimaerently uncertain and unpredictable.
Assumptions may be incomplete or inaccurate, amohticipated events and circumstances may occunriect estimates could result in future
impairment charges, and those charges could beialateour results of operations.

Impairment of goodwill and other long-livadsets—We review long-lived assets which are held andlugeluding fixed assets and
purchased intangible assets, for impairment whanghwenges in circumstances indicate that the aagrgmount of the assets may not be
recoverable. Such evaluations compare the cargmmgunt of an asset to future undiscounted net ftasis expected to be generated by the
asset over its expected useful life and are sigpnitly impacted by estimates of future prices amldmes for our products, capital needs,
economic trends and other factors which are inhiréifficult to forecast. If the asset is considdrto be impaired, we record an impairment
charge equal to the amount by which the carryirigevaf the asset exceeds its fair value determiyeeither a quoted market price, if any, or a
value determined by utilizing a discounted caskiwftechnique.

We test our goodwill for impairment annyak of the first day of our fourth fiscal quarderd in interim periods if certain events occur
indicating that the carrying value of goodwill mlag impaired. The goodwill impairment test is a tstep process. The first step of the
impairment analysis compares our fair value tormtrbook value. In determining fair value, the astong guidance allows for the use of
several valuation methodologies, although it stgtested market prices are the best evidence of&dire. If the fair value is less than the net
book value, the second step of the analysis commpghesimplied fair value of our goodwill to its cging amount. If the carrying amount of
goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, we recagnan impairment loss equal to that excess amount.

Income taxes-We are required to calculate income taxes in @the jurisdictions in which we operate. This mss involves
calculating the actual current tax liability togettwith assessing temporary differences in recagnitf income (loss) for tax and accounting
purposes. These differences result in deferred$agts and liabilities, which are included in oon§blidated Balance Sheet. We then asse
likelihood that the deferred tax assets will beokezed from future taxable income and, to the extenbelieve that recovery is not likely, we
establish a valuation allowance against the delaar asset.

We recognize liabilities for uncertain f@ositions based on a two-step process. The fgtrgtquires us to determine if the weight of
available evidence indicates that the tax positias met the threshold for recognition; therefore must evaluate whether it is more likely tl
not that the position will be sustained on audituding resolution of any related appeals orditign processes. The second step requires us tc
measure the tax benefit of the tax position takemxpected to be taken, in an income tax retuth@fargest amount that is more than 50%
likely of being realized upon ultimate settlemerttiis measurement step is inherently complex andires| subjective estimations of such
amounts to determine the probability of varioussilde outcomes. We re-evaluate
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the uncertain tax positions each quarter baseaaors including, but not limited to, changes iat$aor circumstances, changes in tax law,
expirations of statutes of limitation, effectivedgttled issues under audit, and new audit actiitich a change in recognition or measurement
would result in the recognition of a tax benefitaoradditional charge to the tax provision in teeqd.

Although we believe the measurement ofliailities for uncertain tax positions is reasoleqlmo assurance can be given that the final
outcome of these matters will not be different thdrat is reflected in the historical income taxyismns and accruals. If additional taxes are
assessed as a result of an audit or litigaticcguld have a material effect on our income tax @ion and net income in the period or periods
for which that determination is made. We operathiwimultiple taxing jurisdictions and are subjeztiudit in these jurisdictions. These audits
can involve complex issues which may require aeredeéd period of time to resolve and could resuftdditional assessments of income tax.
We believe adequate provisions for income taxeg l@en made for all periods.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2011, the Financial Accountitgndards Board (FASB) issued FASB Accounting StedglUpdate (ASU) No. 2011-11,
Balance Sheet (Topic 2:—Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabditi@SU 2011-11 requires an entity to disclose infation about
offsetting and related arrangements to enable wséts financial statements to understand theceé those arrangements on its financial
position. Entities are required to disclose botbsgrand net information about these instrumentsl 2&1L1-11 is effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, iat@im periods within those annual periods. Thepidn of this ASU is not expected to h:
a material impact on our financial statements.

In September 2011, the FASB issued FASB ABU2011-08)ntangibles—Goodwill and Other (Topic 350)—Test@agpdwill for
Impairment. ASU 201108 permits an entity to first assess qualitativetdies to determine whether it is more likely tha that the fair value
a reporting unit is less than its carrying amounédasis for determining whether it is necessapetform the two-step goodwill impairment
test. If an entity determines it is more likely thaot that the fair value of a reporting unit isdehan its carrying amount, then it is required to
perform the two-step impairment test. If an entitpcludes otherwise, then the two-step impairmesttis not required. ASU 2011-08 is
effective for annual and interim goodwill impairntéests performed for fiscal years beginning aftecember 15, 2011, with early adoption
permitted. The adoption of this ASU is not expedteave a material impact on our financial stateisie

In June 2011, the FASB issued FASB ASU 2A811-05,Comprehensive Income (Topic 220)—Presentation afffehensive Income
This ASU requires that all non-owner changes icldtolders' equity be presented either in a singtgiouous statement of comprehensive
income or in two separate but consecutive statesnanthe two-statement approach, the first stat¢rsieould present total net income and its
components followed consecutively by a second istae that should present total other comprehensoame, the components of other
comprehensive income, and the total of comprehernssome. In December 2011, the FASB issued FASB AS. 2011-12Comprehensive
Income (Topic 22—Deferral of the Effective Date for AmendmenteoRresentation of Reclassifications of ltems @éa@umulated Other
Comprehensive Income in Accounting Standards Updat€011-05 ASU 2011-12 defers the effective date pertaitiingresenting
reclassification adjustments by component in bbéhstatements where net income and other comprigeensome are presented. ASU 2011-
05 and ASU 2011-12 are effective for fiscal years] interim periods within those years, beginnifigradDecember 15, 2011 and are to be
applied retrospectively. The adoptions of these A&ké not expected to have a material impact offimamcial position or results of
operations, but will result in an additional stagrnof other comprehensive income.
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In May 2011, the FASB issued FASB ASU N012-04,Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820)—Amendments hdeke Common Fair
Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements® GAAP and IFRS$his ASU provides a consistent definition of failwe between
U.S. GAAP and International Financial Reportingrist@rds. Additionally, the ASU changes certain Yailue measurement principles and
expands the disclosures for fair value measuremAsts 2011-04 is effective for interim and annuatipds beginning after December 15,
2011 and is to be applied prospectively. The adoptif this ASU is not expected to have a matenmgdact on our financial statements.

Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about Market Risk
Interest Income¢

Our investment portfolio includes cash hcequivalents, short-term investments and long-fesastments. Our main investment
objectives are the preservation of investment ahpitd the maximization of aftésx returns on our investment portfolio. Our ingri@come i
sensitive to changes in the general level of Lh&rest rates. Our investment portfolio holdingsfa®ecember 31, 2011 and January 1, 2011
yielded less than 100 basis points. A decline @idyto zero basis points on our investment podfbbldings as of December 31, 2011 .
January 1, 2011 would decrease our annual interesine by approximately $1.9 million and $2.2 moifij respectively. We believe that our
investment policy meets our investment objectibesh in the duration of our investments and thelitiguality of the investments we hold.

Headquarters Lease Re

We are exposed to interest rate fluctuatiorthe normal course of our business, includimmgugh our corporate headquarters leases. The
base rents for these leases are calculated usiagadble interest rate based on the three-montlfORBWe entered into interest rate swap
agreements with notional values of $44.3 milliod &50.1 million and, effectively, fixed the rentyp@aent amounts on these leases through
March 2011 and March 2013, respectively. In MarothZ2 the Company's swap agreement with a noticedlakbvof $44.3 million matured and
was not renewed. The fair value of the remainingrigst rate swap agreement at December 31, 2014 $29€ million obligation. An
immediate 100 basis point increase in the threetmbHBOR would increase the annual base rent ofle@ase that is no longer hedged by
approximately $0.4 million.

Investments in Aucti-rate Securities

Beginning in fiscal 2008, auctions for mafyour auction-rate securities failed becauseaelrs exceeded buy orders. As of
December 31, 2011, we held $19.2 million par valuetion-rate securities, all of which have experéhfailed auctions. The principal
amounts associated with failed auctions are notetel to be accessible until a successful auctioars, the issuer redeems the securities, a
buyer is found outside of the auction process erithderlying securities mature. We are unable ¢dipt if these funds will become available
before their maturity dates. Additionally, if wetdemine that an other-than-temporary decline infélirevalue of any of our available-for-sale
auction-rate securities has occurred, we may bainetjto adjust the carrying value of the investtag¢hrough an impairment charge.

Iltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary &a

The Financial Statements and supplemetaty required by this item are included in Partltéin 15 of this Form 18 and are present:
beginning on page F-1.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accotants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

We have performed an evaluation under tipevision and with the participation of our managet, including our Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO), thie effectiveness of our disclosure controls amd@dures, as defined in Rule 13a-15(e)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the Brgle Act). Based on that evaluation, our managerreraiding our CEO and CFO,
concluded that our disclosure controls and procesiwere effective as of December 31, 2011 to peokgdsonable assurance that information
required to be disclosed by us in the reports filedubmitted by us under the Exchange Act is b processed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in the SEC's sud@d forms. Such disclosure controls and procedootude controls and procedures desi
to ensure that information required to be disclaseatcumulated and communicated to our managemnehiding our CEO and CFO, to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosuresr&twas no change in our internal controls duriregfiscal quarter ended December 31, 2011
that materially affected, or is reasonably likedynhaterially affect, our internal controls overdircial reporting.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Finangal Reporting

Our management is responsible for estahlisand maintaining adequate internal control diemncial reporting. Our internal control
system was designed to provide reasonable assu@ooe management and Board of Directors regarttiagreparation and fair presentation
of published financial statements.

Our management assessed the effectivefiess mternal control over financial reporting @sDecember 31, 2011. In making this
assessment, it used the criteria set forth by thar@ittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tregd@ammission (COSO) imternal
Control—Integrated FrameworkBased on our assessment we concluded that,Zesceinber 31, 2011, our internal control over finahc
reporting is effective based on those criteria.

Our independent registered public accogrfitm, Ernst & Young LLP, issued an attestatiopa® on our internal control over financial
reporting. This report appears on page F-1.

Iltem 9B. Other Information
None.
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Part 11l

Certain information required by Part lllasitted from this report because we intend todilgefinitive Proxy Statement pursuant to
Regulation 14A (the "Proxy Statement") no latenth20 days after the end of the fiscal year covesethis report, and certain information to
be included therein is incorporated herein by egfee.

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corprate Governance

Set forth below is information regarding #xecutive officers and directors of Silicon Ladtories as of January 31, 2012.

Name Age Position

Navdeep S. Sooc 49 Chairman of the Boar

Necip Sayine 46 Chief Executive Officer, President and Direc
Paul V. Walsh, Jr 47  Chief Financial Officer and Vice President of Fina
G. Tyson Tuttle 44  Chief Operating Officer and Senior Vice Presic
Jonathan D. lveste 56 Senior Vice President of Worldwide Operatic
Kurt W. Hoff 54  Vice President of Worldwide Sal

David R. Wellanc 56 Vice President and Directi

William G. Bock 61 Director

Harvey B. Casl 73 Director

R. Ted Enloe IlI 73 Director

Kristen M. Onker 62 Director

Laurence G. Walke 63 Director

William P. Wood 56 Director

Navdeep S. Sooch co-founded Silicon Laloies in August 1996 and has served as ChairméredBoard since our inception.
Mr. Sooch served as our Chief Executive Officenfrour inception through the end of fiscal 2003 aan/ed as interim Chief Executive
Officer from April 2005 to September 2005. From kta 985 until founding Silicon Laboratories, Mr.d8h held various positions at Crystal
Semiconductor/Cirrus Logic, a designer and manufactof integrated circuits, including Vice Presitlef Engineering, as well as Product
Planning Manager of Strategic Marketing and De&ggineer. From May 1982 to March 1985, Mr. Soock w@®esign Engineer with AT&T
Bell Labs. Since October 2011, Mr. Sooch has seagdthe CEO of FireFly Green Technologies, Inprigate company in the field of solid
state lighting. Mr. Sooch holds a B.S. in Electrigagineering from the University of Michigan, Dearn and an M.S. in Electrical Engineel
from Stanford University. Mr. Sooch's prior expege as our Chief Executive Officer as well as aisenductor designer provides him with
extensive insight into our industry and our op@ratiand qualifies him to serve as Chairman of mar8 of Directors.

Necip Sayiner has served as director, 8eesiand Chief Executive Officer of Silicon Laband¢s since September 2005. Prior to joining
Silicon Laboratories, Mr. Sayiner held various lewthip positions at Agere Systems Inc. From Aug08¥ to September 2005, Mr. Sayiner
served as Vice President and General Manager afe’sgEnterprise and Networking Division and fromrtta2002 to August 2004 he served
as Vice President and General Manager of Agerewdtking IC Division. Mr. Sayiner holds a B.S. iteEtrical Engineering and Physics fr
Bosphorus University in Turkey, an M.S. in Electi€ngineering from Southern lllinois Universityncaa Ph.D. in Electrical Engineering frc
the University of Pennsylvania. Mr. Sayiner's eigeee and understanding of our business gainedghrhbis role as our President and Chief
Executive Officer qualifies him to serve as a mendfeour Board of Directors.
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Paul V. Walsh, Jr. has served as Chiefriiiz Officer of Silicon Laboratories since JulylA0 Mr. Walsh served as Vice President of
Finance and Chief Accounting Officer from NovemB806 to July 2011. Mr. Walsh previously served agp@rate Controller from March
2005. From January 2009 through September 2010\WdIsh served on the Board of Directors of Rio Hadd, Inc. (previously Grande
Communications, Inc.), a provider of cable, Intém@ed phone services, where he also served ashidien@an of the Audit Committee and as a
member of the Finance Committee. Prior to joiniflgc@ Laboratories, Mr. Walsh was Site Controffiesm February 2003 to January 2004
with PerkinElmer, a supplier to the health sciersned photonics markets. From 1992 to 2003, Mr. Whkdd various operational, finance and
management roles at Analog Devices and TeradyribeiBoston area. Mr. Walsh received his B.S. ichémical Engineering from the
University of Maine, and an M.B.A from Boston Unigéy.

G. Tyson Tuttle was appointed as Chief @peg Officer for Silicon Laboratories in May 20IMr. Tuttle served as Chief Technical
Officer from January 2010 to May 2011. From May 200 December 2009, he was the Vice President @m@l Manager of Broadcast
products including the audio and video product feasi Mr. Tuttle joined Silicon Laboratories in I98s a senior design engineer. From 1999
to 2005, Mr. Tuttle served in a variety of prodo@nagement, marketing and business leadershipqmssiPreviously, Mr. Tuttle held senior
design engineering positions at Crystal Semicorat€irrus Logic and Broadcom Corporation where daued on high-speed mixed-signal
circuit design for hard disk drive read channel Etioernet applications. Mr. Tuttle holds an M.SElectrical Engineering from UCLA and a
B.S. in Electrical Engineering from Johns Hopkinsversity.

Jonathan D. Ivester has served as Seng® Riesident of Worldwide Operations since Juné&2B@ served as Vice President of
Worldwide Operations since May 2005. He joinedc®iti Laboratories in September 1997 as Vice PresiBeaviously, Mr. Ivester was with
Applied Materials, a supplier of equipment and &y to the semiconductor industry, and servedigecior of Manufacturing and Director of
U.S. Procurement in addition to various engineeand manufacturing management positions. Mr. Ivedt® was a scientist at Bechtel
Corporation, an engineering and construction compand at Abcor, Inc., an ultrafiltration compamdasubsidiary of Koch Industries.

Mr. Ivester holds a B.S. in Chemistry from the Madausetts Institute of Technology and an M.B.AnfriStanford University.

Kurt W. Hoff has served as Vice Presiddnitoridwide Sales for Silicon Laboratories sincéyZ2007. From 2005 until July 2007, he
managed the company's European sales and oper@immsto joining Silicon Laboratories in 2005, Mioff served as president, Chief
Executive Officer and director of Cognio. Mr. Hafiso managed the operations and sales of C-Popo@udion, a network processor company
acquired by Motorola in May 2000. Additionally, Mioff spent 10 years in various sales positionSMD. Mr. Hoff holds a B.S. in Physics
from the University of Illinois and an M.B.A. frothe University of Chicago.

David R. Welland co-founded Silicon Laborés in August 1996, has served as a Vice Presatehdirector since our inception and was
appointed Fellow in March 2004. From November 1@6fil founding Silicon Laboratories, Mr. Wellandltiezarious positions at Crystal
Semiconductor/Cirrus Logic, a designer and manufeactof integrated circuits, including Senior Deskngineer. Mr. Welland holds a B.S. in
Electrical Engineering from the Massachusetts timtgtiof Technology. Mr. Welland's years of expetias a semiconductor designer provide
him with extensive insight into our operations apdlifies him to serve as a member of our BoarDicéctors.

William G. Bock rejoined Silicon Laboratesi Board of Directors in July of 2011. He servedCaief Financial Officer from November
2006 to July 2011, and Senior Vice President odf@e and Administration through December 2011.diteefl Silicon Laboratories as a
director in March 2000, and served as Chairmahefudit committee until November 2006 when hemdmlown from the
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Board of Directors to assume the CFO role. Fromil2001 to November 2006, Mr. Bock participatedhe venture capital industry,
principally as a partner with CenterPoint Ventufeg®m February 1997 to March 2001, Mr. Bock led EAZCorporation, a provider of
electronic information delivery systems, initiallg its President and Chief Executive Officer artissquent to its acquisition by Hewlett-
Packard in June 1999 as an HP Vice President andr@léVlanager. Prior to 1997, Mr. Bock served aefdDperating Officer of Tivoli
Systems, a client server software company acqbiyd@8M in March 1996, in senior sales and finanolnagement positions with Convex
Computer Corporation and began his career with §éxstruments. Mr. Bock has served on the Boaldi@fctors of Convio, Inc., a provider
of on-demand constituent engagement solutionsdoprofit organizations, since January 2008, chairofahe board since April 2011 and as
lead independent director since January 2010. MckBiolds a B.S. in Computer Science from lowaeStativersity and an M.S. in Industrial
Administration from Carnegie Mellon University. MBock's extensive financial and executive expegegad his in-depth knowledge of
Silicon Laboratories qualify him to serve as a memtf our Board of Directors.

Harvey B. Cash has served as a direct8ilion Laboratories since June 1997. Mr. Cashseaged as general partner of InterWest
Partners, a venture capital firm, since 1986. MrsiCcurrently serves on the Board of Directordieffollowing public companies: Ciena
Corporation, a designer and manufacturer of dersselength division multiplexing systems for fibgatic networks; Argo Group International
Holdings, Ltd., a specialty insurance company; Binst Acceptance Corp, a provider of low-cost dagurance. Mr. Cash holds a B.S. in
Electrical Engineering from Texas A&M Universitydan M.B.A. from Western Michigan University. Mragh's independence and
experience as a director of various public comparas well as his prior operational experiencenasxacutive, qualifies him to serve as a
member of our Board of Directors.

R. Ted Enloe Ill has served as a direct@ilicon Laboratories since April 2003. Mr. Enlecurrently the Managing General Partner of
Balquita Partners, Ltd., a family investment fiffreviously, Mr. Enloe served as President and etutive Officer of Optisoft, Inc., a
provider of intelligent traffic signal platforms.MEnloe formerly served as Vice Chairman and merobghe office of chief executive of
Compaqg Computer Corporation. He also served asderdsof Lomas Financial Corporation and Libertédstors for more than 15 years.

Mr. Enloe co-founded a number of other publiclychi#ims, including Capstead Mortgage Corp., Tylab6t Mortgage Securities Corp., and
Seaman's Corp. Mr. Enloe currently serves on therdof Directors of Leggett & Platt, Inc. and LiMation, Inc. Mr. Enloe holds a B.S. in
Engineering from Louisiana Polytechnic Universitdaa J.D. from Southern Methodist University. Mnl&e's combination of independence,
qualification as an audit committee financial exg@erd his experience, including past experienanaaxecutive officer and current and past
experience as a director of various public compamjealifies him to serve as a member of our Bo&ildirectors.

Kristen M. Onken has served as a direct@ilacon Laboratories since September 2007. Mkédrwas elected to the Board of Directors
of Seagate Technology plc in November 2011, whieeeadso serves as a member of the Audit CommitlseOnken retired from Logitech in
May 2006, a maker of electronics peripherals, wisbeserved as Senior Vice President, FinanceChief Financial Officer from February
1999 to May 2006. From September 1996 to Februa®@ 1Ms. Onken served as Vice President of Finah&aljitsu PC Corporation, the U.S.
subsidiary of the Japanese electronics manufactarem 1991 to September 1996, Ms. Onken was eraglby Sun Microsystems initially as
Controller of the Southwest Area, and later as @aeof Finance, Sun Professional Services. Ms.ddrftolds a B.S. from Southern Illinois
University, and an M.B.A. in Finance from the Umisigy of Chicago. Ms. Onken's independence and goiperience as the Chief Financial
Officer of Logitech and her finance roles with atlechnology companies qualifies her to serve member of our Board of Directors.
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Laurence G. Walker has served as a direft8ilicon Laboratories since June 2003. Previpudlr. Walker co-founded and served as
Chief Executive Officer of QRort Corporation, a pioneer in the network processtustry, which was acquired by Motorola in 20B86llowing
the acquisition, Mr. Walker served as Vice PresiaddrStrategy for Motorola's Network and ComputBgstems Group and then as Vice
President and General Manager of the Network amdpising Systems Group until 2002. From August 1@0Blay 1997, Mr. Walker served
as Chief Executive Officer of CertCo, a digitaltdfération supplier. Mr. Walker served as Vice Rdemt and General Manager, Network
Products Business Unit, of Digital Equipment Cogtimn, a computer hardware company, from Janua®y 1® July 1996. From 1998 to 20(
he served on the Board of Directors of McData Cafion, a provider of storage networking solutiofisom 1981 to 1994, he held a variety of
other management positions at Digital Equipmentp@ation. Mr. Walker holds a B.S. in Electrical Emgpring from Princeton University and
an M.S. and Ph.D. in Electrical Engineering frora Massachusetts Institute of Technology. Mr. Waskeombination of independence and his
experience, including past experience as an execafficer, qualifies him to serve as a memberwfBoard of Directors.

William P. Wood has served as a directoBiti€on Laboratories since March 1997 and as LRiaelctor since December 2005. Since
1996, Mr. Wood has also served as general parfnerimus funds associated with Silverton Partnangenture capital firm. From 1984 to
2003, Mr. Wood was a general partner, and for oeftands created since 1996, a special limitedngartof various funds associated with
Austin Ventures, a venture capital firm. Mr. Woaalds a B.A. in History from Brown University and &B.A. from Harvard University.
Mr. Wood's combination of independence and his B&pee, including past experience as an investaumerous semiconductor and
technology companies, qualifies him to serve agmber of our Board of Directors.

The remaining information required by the&m is incorporated by reference to the Proxye®tent under the sections captioned "Prof.
One: Election of Directors”, "Executive Compensaltjd'Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reportingn@liance” and "Code of Ethics."

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information under the caption "Execetffompensation” and "Proposal One: Election of @ines" appearing in the Proxy Statement,
is incorporated herein by reference.

Iltem 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficibOwners and Management and Related Stockholder M&trs

The information under the caption "Ownepshii Securities" and "Equity Compensation Plan imfation" appearing in the Proxy
Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Trarections, and Director Independence

The information under the caption "Certelationships and Related Transactions, and Dirdatiependence" appearing in the Proxy
Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

Iltem 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information under the caption "Propdsab: Ratification of Appointment of Independentd®aered Public Accounting Firm"
appearing in the Proxy Statement is incorporatedihdy reference.
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Part IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedes
(@ 1. Financial Statemen
Index
Page
Report of independent registered public accourfiing F-1
Report of independent registered public accourfiing F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2@l Jamuary 1, 201 F-3
Consolidated Statements of Income for the fiscatyended December 31, 2011, January 1,
2011 and January 2, 20 F-4
Consolidated Statements of Changes in StockholHersty for the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2011, January 1, 2011 and Janua@/A®, F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for thelfigears ended December 31, 2011, Janue
2011 and January 2, 20 F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem: F-7

2. Schedules

All schedules have been omitted sincetif@rination required by the schedule is not appleaty is not present in amounts
sufficient to require submission of the schedutdhacause the information required is includechn€onsolidated Financial Stateme
and notes thereto.

3. Exhibits

The exhibits listed on the accompanyingintb exhibits immediately following the ConsoliddtFinancial Statements are filed as
part of, or hereby incorporated by reference itiits Form 10-K.
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(b) Exhibits

Exhibit
Number
2.1*  Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated January 22|, 281 and among Silicc
Laboratories Inc., Sophia Merger Sub, Inc., Spedtmaar, Inc. and Shareholder
Representative Services LLC (filed as Exhibit 2.tHe Form 8-K filed January 26,
2011).

3.1*  Form of Fourth Amended and Restated Certificatmodrporation of Silicor
Laboratories Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Regint's Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (Securities and Exchange Commission File383-94853) (the "IPO
Registration Statement")

3.2 Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of Silicon Latbdes Inc (filed as Exhibit 3.2
the Registrant's Annual Report on Forn-K for the fiscal year ended January 3, 20!

4.1*  Specimen certificate for shares of common stodkdfas Exhibit 4.1 to the IP
Registration Statemen

10.7*  Form of Indemnification Agreement between Silicaxbbratories Inc. and each of
directors and executive officers (filed as Exhilfit1 to the IPO Registration Stateme

10.2+ Silicon Laboratories Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Ffiled as Exhibit 99.1 to th
Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-8ui@&s and Exchange Commission
File No. 33:-60794) filed on May 11, 2001

10.2+ Form of Stock Option Agreement and Notice of Graftock Option under Registran
2000 Stock Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.3he Registrant's Annual Report on
Form 1(-K for the year ended January 1, 20(

10.24+ Form of Addendum to Stock Option Agreement undegifeant's 2000 Stock Incenti
Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant's AaihReport on Form 10-K for the year
ended January 1, 200!

10.2+ Form of Stock Issuance Agreement under Registra@08 Stock Incentive Plan (filed
Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant's Annual Report @nrfr 10-K for the year ended
January 1, 2005

10.¢*+ Form of Addendum to Stock Issuance AgreementuiiRegistrant's 2000 Stock
Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the Regist's Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended January 1, 20(

10.7+ Employment Agreement dated August 30, 2005 betv@&ilgon Laboratories Inc. ar
Dr. Necip Sayiner (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the fof-K filed September 12, 200%

10.&* Lease, Deed of Trust and Security Agreement ditacth 30, 2006 among Silicon
Laboratories Inc., BAL Investment & Advisory, Iremd Gary S. Farmer (filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Current ReporfFomm ¢-K filed on April 5, 2006).

10.¢*  Participation Agreement dated March 30, 2006 agnSiticon Laboratories Inc., BAL
Investment & Advisory, Inc., Wells Fargo Bank Nosibst, National Association and
various other financial institutions named theriled as Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's
Current Report on Formr-K filed on April 5, 2006).

10.1¢*  Sale and Purchase Agreement dated February g, 2p@nd between NXP B.V., NXP
Semiconductors France SAS, Silicon Laboratoriesdnd Silicon Laboratories
International Pte. Ltd. (filed as Exhibit 10.1 teetRegistrant's Current Report on Form 8-
K filed on February 9, 2007
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Exhibit
Number
10.17 Intellectual Property License Agreement datedfaslarch 23, 2007, by and among
Silicon Laboratories Inc., Silicon Laboratoriesdmtational Pte. Ltd., NXP B.V. and
NXP Semiconductors France SAS (filed as Exhibil 16.the Registrant's Curre
Report on Form -K filed on March 29, 2007
10.1* Lease, Deed of Trust and Security Agreement ditacth 14, 2008 among Silicon
Laboratories Inc., BA Leasing BSC, LLC and Gary&tmer (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to
the Registrant's Current Report on Foi-K filed on March 19, 2008
10.13*  Participation Agreement dated March 14, 2008 anfiigon Laboratories Inc., B,
Leasing BSC, LLC, Wells Fargo Bank Northwest, NagibAssociation and various
other financial institutions named therein (filexiExhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's
Current Report on Formr-K filed on March 19, 2008

10.14#+ Silicon Laboratories Inc. 2009 Stock IncentivarP(filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the
Registrant's Current Report on For-K filed on April 27, 2009)

10.1%*+ Silicon Laboratories Inc. 2009 Employee Stockdhase Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to
the Registrant's Current Report on Foi-K filed on April 27, 2009)

10.1¢+ Form of Restricted Stock Units Grant Notice andtReted Stock Units Awari
Agreement under Registrant's 2009 Stock Incentiaa filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the
Registrant's Current Report on For-K filed on April 27, 2009)
10.1*+ Form of Stock Option Grant Notice and Stock ©ptAward Agreement under
Registrant's 2009 Stock Incentive Plan (filed akiBkix 10.4 to the Registrant's Current
Report on Form -K filed on April 27, 2009)
21 Subsidiaries of the Registral
23.1  Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.
24 Power of Attorney (included on signature page te Borm 1(-K).

31.1 Certification of the Principal Executive Officers eequired by Section 302 of t
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of the Principal Financial Officers aequired by Section 302 of t
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification as required by Section 906 of theb@ae-Oxley Act of 2002
101.INS** XBRL Instance Documer
101.SCk* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum
101.CAL** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntr
101.LAB** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum
101.PRP* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

101.DEF* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurh

* Incorporated herein by reference to the indicailethf

*x The information in these exhibits shall not be dedno be "filed" for purposes of Section 18 of 8ecurities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, or otherwise subjectedi#ility of that section. The information comntad therein shall not
incorporated by reference into any filing with tHeS. Securities and Exchange Commission made mo8il
Laboratories, whether made before or after the ldateof, regardless of any general incorporatioguage in such filing

+ Management contract or compensatory plan or arraegt
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, ribgistrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduolp authorized, in Austin, Texas, on February 20 2.

SILICON LABORATORIES INC.

By: /s NECIP SAYINER

Necip Sayiner
President and Chief Executive Offic

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, thatleperson whose signature appears below constangeappoints Necip Sayiner
and Paul V. Walsh, Jr., and each of them, actidiyidually, as his or her attorney-in-fact, eachhafull power of substitution and
resubstitution, for him or her and in his or hemea place and stead, in any and all capacitiesigtoany and all amendments to this annual
report on Form 10-K and other documents in conoadtierewith and therewith, and to file the saméh il exhibits thereto, with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, granting uaitbattorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of tfiéhpower and authority to do and
perform each and every act and thing requisitereogssary to be done in connection herewith arrehilign and about the premises, as fully to
all intents and purposes as he or she might odadailin person, hereby ratifying and confirmingth#t said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or
any of them, or their or his substitute or subgtgumay lawfully do or cause to be done by vittaeeof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beenesidgrelow by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#ites indicated:

Name Title Date

/sl NAVDEEP S. SOOCH
Chairman of the Board February 15, 2012

Navdeep S. Sooc

/s/ NECIP SAYINER . . . .
President, Chief Executive Officer and February 15, 2012

Director (Principal Executive Officer)

Necip Sayine

/s PAUL V. WALSH, JR.

Vice President and Chief Financial February 15, 2012

Paul V. Walsh, Ji Officer (Principal Financial Officer)

/s/ DAVID R. WELLAND
Vice President and Director February 15, 2012

David R. Wellanc
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Name

/sl WILLIAM G. BOCK

William G. Bock

/sl HARVEY B. CASH

Harvey B. Casl

/sl ROBERT TED ENLOE, IlI

Robert Ted Enloe, Il

/sl KRISTEN M. ONKEN

Kristen M. Onker

/sl LAURENCE G. WALKER

Laurence G. Walke

/s/ WILLIAM P. WOOD

William P. Wood

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Title

Date

February 15, 2012

February 15, 2012

February 15, 2012

February 15, 2012

February 15, 2012

February 15, 2012
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Silicorh.aboratories Inc.

We have audited Silicon Laboratories Ingtie Company) internal control over financial repw as of December 31, 2011, based on
criteria established in Internal Control—Integralgdmework issued by the Committee of Sponsorimga@irations of the Treadway
Commission (the COSO criteria). Silicon Laboratstfiiec.'s management is responsible for maintaiaffegtive internal control over financial
reporting, and for its assessment of the effecégsrof internal control over financial reportinglirded in the accompanying Management's
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporti@gr responsibility is to express an opinion o @ompany's internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance wWithdtandards of the Public Company Accounting Qgetr8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigifenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®@tsr audit included obtaining an understanding tdrimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etésting and evaluating the design and operatifeg®@feness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsreg considered necessary in the circumstancefeliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over finangigborting is a process designed to provide reddersssurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company's internal control over financial repogtincludes those policies and procedures thai€ftpin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgegaparation of financial statements in accor@awith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®itbmpany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasaabsurance regarding prevention or timely deteatfainauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of the company's assets that could hawaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, inedroontrol over financial reporting may not preventetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periodssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Silicon Laboratories Incamtained, in all material respects, effective iing control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2011, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Ogbtdoard (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Silicon Laboratdniesas of December 31, 2011 and January 1, 2fd the related consolidated statemen
income, changes in stockholders' equity and castsffor each of the three fiscal years in the pkeinded December 31, 2011 of Silicon
Laboratories Inc. and our report dated Februar20%2 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLF

Austin, Texas
February 15, 201
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Silicorh.aboratories Inc.

We have audited the accompanying conselitlbalance sheets of Silicon Laboratories Inc. Qthmpany) as of December 31, 2011 and
January 1, 2011, and the related consolidatednséates of income, changes in stockholders' equitgt,cash flows for each of the three fiscal
years in the period ended December 31, 2011. Tiresecial statements are the responsibility of @menpany’'s management. C
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting €igat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &madbtain reasonable assurance about whethdinthecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting principged and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statementieneed to above present fairly, in all materialpests, the consolidated financial position of
Silicon Laboratories Inc. at December 31, 2011 ambary 1, 2011, and the consolidated results afpierations and its cash flows for each of
the three fiscal years in the period ended Decer®be?011, in conformity with U.S. generally acazpaccounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstandards of the Public Company Accounting OgatdBoard (United States), Silicon
Laboratories Inc.'s internal control over financighorting as of December 31, 2011, based on ieriéstablished in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commissiaha@ur report dated February 15,
2012 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLF

Austin, Texas
February 15, 201
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except per share data)

December 31, January 1,
2011 2011

Assets

Current asset:

Cash and cash equivale $ 94,96¢ $ 138,56°
Shor-term investment 212,52¢ 227,29
Accounts receivable, net of allowances for doutdftdounts of $72
at December 31, 2011 and $772 at January 1, 55,35 45,03(
Inventories 34,77¢ 39,45(
Deferred income taxe 11,56: 9,14(
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 43,86 34,44
Total current asse 453,04¢ 493,92¢
Long-term investment 17,471 17,50(
Property and equipment, r 25,141 29,94*
Goodwill 115,48¢ 112,29¢
Other intangible assets, r 60,00¢ 53,24:
Other assets, n 34,83( 20,74¢
Total asset $ 705,99. $ 727,65

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl $ 26,35¢ $§ 24,430
Accrued expense 30,851 25,60¢
Deferred income on shipments to distribut 24,96: 26,127
Income taxe: 665 3,692
Total current liabilities 82,83t 79,85¢
Long-term obligations and other liabiliti¢ 24,21« 22,37:
Total liabilities 107,05. 102,22¢

Commitments and contingenci
Stockholders' equity
Preferred stock—$0.0001 par value; 10,000 sharémared; no
shares issued and outstand — —
Common stoc—$0.0001 par value; 250,000 shares authori
42,068 and 43,933 shares issued and outstandibecamber 31,

2011 and January 1, 2011, respecti\ 4 4
Additional paic-in capital 14,74¢ 49,94’
Retained earning 586,65: 579,12°
Accumulated other comprehensive I (2,467) (3,64¢)

Total stockholders' equi 598,93¢ 625,43(
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 70599 $ 727,65¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktlEssolidated Financial Statements.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Income
(In thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended
December 31 January 1, January 2,
2011 2011 2010

Revenue: $ 491,62' $ 493,34: $ 441,02
Cost of revenue 193,17¢ 169,097 161,26°
Gross margir 298,44t 324,24 279,75
Operating expense

Research and developme 135,95: 123,82: 104,39:

Selling, general and administrati 112,41¢ 113,75: 108,84
Operating expenst 248,37 237,57 213,24;
Operating incomi 50,07 86,67 66,51:
Other income (expense

Interest incomt 1,85¢ 2,31¢ 2,72¢

Interest expens (37) (77) (180)

Other income (expense), r 444 (1,259 (90
Income before income tax 52,34( 87,65¢ 68,96¢
Provision (benefit) for income tax 16,86¢ 14,417 (4,12¢)
Net income $ 35,47. $ 73,24. $ 73,09:
Earnings per shar

Basic $ 0.8z $ 16 $ 1.62

Diluted $ 0.7¢ $ 157 $ 1.57
Weighte-average common shares outstand

Basic 43,42 44,84¢ 45,02:

Diluted 44,83: 46,74: 46,54

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktlEmsolidated Financial Statements.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in StockholderSquity

(In thousands)

Common Stock
Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Retained
Earnings

Par
Value

Number
of Shares

Comprehensive

Accumulated
Other Total
Stockholders'

Loss Equity

Balance as of January
2009
Comprehensive
income:
Net income
Unrealized gains o
available-for-sale
securities, net of
tax of $(522,
Unrealized gains o
cash flow hedges,
net of tax of $(38¢

Total comprehensiv
income

Stock issuances und
employee plans, ne
of shares withheld
for taxes

Income tax benefit
from employee
stock-based award

Repurchases of
common stocl

Stoclk-basec
compensatiol

Balance as of January
2010
Comprehensive
income:
Net income
Unrealized gains or
available-for-sale
securities, net of
tax of $(143)
Unrealized gains o
cash flow hedges,
net of tax of $(23¢

Total comprehensiv
income
Stock issuances und
employee plans, ne
of shares withheld
for taxes
Income tax benefit
from employee
stock-based award
Repurchases of
common stocl
Stoclk-basec
compensatiol
Balance as of January :
2011
Comprehensive
income:
Net income

Unrealized gains o

44.61: $

1,66¢

(639)

12¢

4 $ 7571 $432,79

— 73,09:

25,18¢ —

3,89( —
(20,18) —

43,65¢ —

$

(6,046 $  502,46(

— 73,09:

96¢

723 72%

74,78¢

— 25,18

— 3,89(
— (20,182)

— 43,65¢

45,77

1,45:

(3,297)

128,26: 505,88!

— 73,24

18,05¢ —

3,271 —
(140,33) —

40,68¢ —

(4,356) 629,79(

— 73,24

26¢€ 26€

442 44z

73,95(

— 18,05¢

— 3,271
— (140,33

— 40,68¢

43,93

49,94, 579,127

— 35,47:

(3,645 625,43

— 35,47:



available-for-sale

securities, net of

tax of $(1) — — — — 3 3
Unrealized gains or

cash flow hedges,

net of tax of $(63¢ — — — — 1,17¢ 1,17¢
Total comprehensiv
income 36,65

Stock issuances und

employee plans, ne

of shares withheld

for taxes 1,29( — 7,66( — — 7,66(
Income tax benefit

from employee

stock-based award — — 2,707 — — 2,707
Repurchases of
common stocl (3,155 — (82,110 (27,946 — (110,067
Stock-based
compensatiol — — 36,55: — — 36,55:
Balance as c
December 31, 201 42,06¢ $ 4 $ 14,74¢ $586,65! $ (2,467 $ 598,93

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktlEmsolidated Financial Statements.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(In thousands)

Year Ended
December 31 January 1, January 2,
2011 2011 2010

Operating Activities
Net income $ 35,47 $ 73,24. $ 73,09:
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash pravioe

operating activities

Depreciation of property and equipm 13,57( 11,79; 11,88
Amortization of other intangible assets and otteses 11,03( 7,494 7,84:
Impairment of lon-lived asset: 1,322 — —
Stoclk-based compensation expel 36,11°¢ 40,32 43,97
Income tax benefit from employee st-based award 2,81¢ 3,29t 2,42:
Excess income tax benefit from employee s-basec
awards (2,409 (2,417) (1,867)
Deferred income taxe (44£) (552) 1,89¢
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl (8,567) 11,34 (19,65
Inventories 5,33¢ (7,817 (3,216
Prepaid expenses and other as (5,94¢) (5,300 3,39t
Accounts payabl (2,17¢) (777) 8,03¢
Accrued expense (1,320 (2,590 (825)
Deferred income on shipments to distribut (1,915 (2,349 6,871
Income taxe: 5,85¢ (7,779 (12,91
Net cash provided by operating activit 88,74 117,93! 120,94:
Investing Activities
Purchases of availat-for-sale investment (178,67¢  (357,77) (237,969
Proceeds from sales and maturities of marketaloigrgies 193,47: 352,77¢ 153,27!
Purchases of property and equipm (8,690 (13,850 (8,947
Purchases of other ass (4,01% (8,372 (6,40¢)
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acqt (27,262) (28,02) (4,300
Net cash used in investing activiti (25,172) (55,24) (104,34

Financing Activities
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net oes

withheld for taxes 7,66( 18,05¢ 25,181
Excess income tax benefit from employee stock-basec

awards 2,40¢ 2,41: 1,86z
Repurchases of common stc (110,069  (140,33) (20,18))
Payments on del (7,179 — —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi (207,17) (119,869 6,86¢
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivi (43,609 (57,170 23,46"
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe 138,56° 195,73 172,27
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 94,96: $ 138,56 $ 195,73
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Interest paic $ 35 $ €qC $ 27¢
Income taxes pai $ 8,241 $ 20,78 $  4,50(

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktiEssolidated Financial Statements.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011

1. Description of Business

Silicon Laboratories Inc. (the "Company)Delaware corporation, develops and markets méigaial analog intensive integrated circuits
(ICs) for a broad range of applications for glotmarkets. Within the semiconductor industry, the @any is known as a "fabless" company
meaning that the ICs are manufactured by thirdydadndry semiconductor companies.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidia

The Company prepares financial statememts $2-53 week year that ends on the Saturdaystits®ecember 31. Fiscal 2011, 2010 and
2009 were 52veek years and ended on December 31, 2011, Jahu2ad 1 and January 2, 2010, respectively. Therapaaying Consolidate
Financial Statements include the accounts of thagamy and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All siggaht intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Foreign Currency Transactior

The Company's foreign subsidiaries are idened to be extensions of the U.S. Company. Thetfonal currency of the foreign
subsidiaries is the U.S. dollar. Accordingly, gaémsl losses resulting from remeasuring transactiensminated in currencies other than U.S.
dollars are included in other income (expense)jmtie Consolidated Statements of Income.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statementsdnformity with accounting principles generally eapted in the United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondféattae amounts reported in the financial statet:iand accompanying notes. Among
the significant estimates affecting the financtatements are those related to inventories, staskedhcompensation, investments in auctate-
securities, acquired intangible assets, goodwiligHived assets and income taxes. Actual resaltfdadiffer from those estimates, and such
differences could be material to the financialesta¢nts.

Reclassification:
Certain reclassifications have been magwity year financial statements to conform to entryear presentation.
Fair Value of Financial Instrumen

The fair values of the Company's finangiatruments are recorded using a hierarchal disptoBamework based upon the level of
subjectivity of the inputs used in measuring asaetsliabilities. The three levels are describeldwe

Level 1—Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices iivaeharkets for identical assets or liabilitieshs measurement date.

Level 2—Inputs are inputs other than quoted prinekided within Level 1 that are observable for &sset or liability, either directly or
indirectly.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 (Continued)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Level 3—Inputs are unobservable for the assetabilify and are developed based on the best infiomavailable in the
circumstances, which might include the Company's deta.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cephgits, money market funds and investments in skhirities with original maturities of nin
days or less when purchased.

Investment:

The Company's investments typically havgioal maturities greater than ninety days as efdhte of purchase and are classified as eithe
available-for-sale or trading securities. Investtaén available-forsale securities are reported at fair value, wittrealized gains and losses,
of tax, recorded as a component of accumulated etiraprehensive loss in the Consolidated BalanezSinvestments in trading securities
are reported at fair value, with both realized ancealized gains and losses recorded in other irgaxpense), net in the Consolidated
Statement of Income. Investments in which the Comifeas the ability and intent, if necessary, taitigte in order to support its current
operations (including those with contractual maiesigreater than one year from the date of pugrea® classified as short-term. The
Company's long-term investments consist of auatida-securities.

The Company reviews its available-for-saleestments as of the end of each reporting pddodther-than-temporary declines in fair
value based on the specific identification methidie Company considers various factors in deterrgimihether an impairment is other-than-
temporary, including the severity and durationhaf impairment, changes in underlying credit ratifigsecasted recovery, its intent to sell or
the likelihood that it would be required to sektimvestment before its anticipated recovery inkatvalue and the probability that the
scheduled cash payments will continue to be madenihe Company concludes that an other-than-teamponpairment has occurred, the
Company assesses whether it intends to sell theigeor if it is more likely than not that it wilbe required to sell the security before recovery.
If either of these two conditions is met, the Compeecognizes a charge in earnings equal to theedtifference between the security's
amortized cost basis and its fair value. If the @any does not intend to sell a security and ibismore likely than not that it will be required
to sell the security before recovery, the unredlioss is separated into an amount representingréait loss, which is recognized in earnings,
and the amount related to all other factors, wisatecorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss

Derivative Financial Instrumenti

The Company uses derivative financial instents to manage exposures to the variability tef@st rates used to calculate base rents for
its corporate headquarters leases. The Comparjgstivk is to offset increases and decreases iaresgs resulting from changes in interest
rates with gains and losses on the derivative aotgy thereby reducing volatility of earnings. TW@mpany does not use derivative contract
speculative purposes. The effective portion ofghim or loss on interest rate swaps is recordegt@éamulated other comprehensive loss as a
separate component of stockholders' equity andldsexjuently recognized in earnings when the hedgpdsure affects earnings. Cash flows
from derivatives are classified as cash flows fiagerating activities in the Consolidated Statenvéi@ash Flows.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 (Continued)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of abstermined using the first-in, firstit method, or market. The Company writes dowrctreying
value of inventory to net realizable value for estied obsolescence or unmarketable inventory basaad assumptions about the age of
inventory, future demand and market conditionsehtery impairment charges establish a new cossliasinventory and charges are not
subsequently reversed to income even if circumstitater suggest that increased carrying amouetseaoverable.

Property and Equipmet

Property and equipment are stated at nesipf accumulated depreciation. Depreciation immated using the straight-line method over
the useful lives of the assets ranging from thoeféve years. Leasehold improvements are depret@ter the contractual lease period or their
useful life, whichever is shorter.

Long-Lived Assets

Purchased intangible assets are statemsgtret of accumulated amortization, and are drsattusing the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives, ranging from two to tweyears. Fair values are determined primarily usirgibhcome approach, in which the Comg
projects future expected cash flows and appliespgmopriate discount rate.

Long-lived assets "held and used" by thenGany are reviewed for impairment whenever eventhanges in circumstances indicate that
their net book value may not be recoverable. Wheh $actors and circumstances exist, the Compampaces the projected undiscounted
future cash flows associated with the related asmsgtoup of assets over their estimated usefakliwgainst their respective carrying amounts.
Impairment, if any, is based on the excess of #rgying amount over the fair value of those asartkis recorded in the period in which the
determination was made.

The carrying value of goodwill is reviewatleast annually by the Company for possible immpant. The goodwill impairment test is a
two-step process. The first step of the impairnagralysis compares the fair value of the reportinig to the net book value of the reporting
unit. In determining fair value, several valuatimethodologies are allowed, although quoted markeép are the best evidence of fair value. If
the results of the first step demonstrate thah#itebook value is greater than the fair value @Gbenpany must proceed to step two of the
analysis. Step two of the analysis compares thdieahfair value of goodwill to its carrying amoutitthe carrying amount of goodwill exceeds
its implied fair value, an impairment loss is resizgd equal to that excess. The Company tests gbddmimpairment annually as of the first
day of its fourth fiscal quarter and in interim joes if events occur that would indicate that therying value of goodwill may be impaired.

Revenue Recognitic

Revenues are generated almost exclusiyedales of the Company's ICs. The Company recogmeaeenue when all of the following
criteria are met: 1) there is persuasive evidehatdn arrangement exists, 2) delivery of goodsobaarred, 3) the sales price is fixed or
determinable, and 4) collectibility is reasonabdgared. Generally, revenue from product salesrextdcustomers and contract manufacture
recognized upon shipment.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 (Continued)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

A portion of the Company's sales are mad#idtributors under agreements allowing certajhts of return and price protection related to
the final selling price to the end customers. Adaagly, the Company defers revenue and cost ofmee®n such sales until the distributors
the product to the end customers. The net balahdeferred revenue less deferred cost of revensecaged with inventory shipped to a
distributor but not yet sold to an end customeerded in the deferred income on shipments toiloligors liability on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet. Such net deferred income balaneetethe Company's estimate of the impact of sigifitreturn and price protection.

Shipping and Handling
Shipping and handling costs are classéi®@ component of cost of revenues in the Congdetidatatements of Income.
Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has stock-based compensatims plvhich are more fully described in Note 3®yck-Based Compensatiomhe Company
accounts for those plans using a fair-value metiratirecognizes the expense in its Consolidate@rgtait of Income.

Research and Developme

Research and development costs are expeassadurred. Research and development expensisisopsmarily of personnel-related
expenses, including stock-based compensation, nedupt mask, external consulting and services cesgtsipment tooling, equipment
depreciation, amortization of intangible assetayels as an allocated portion of our occupancy £fmt such operations. Assets purchased to
support the Company's ongoing research and developactivities are capitalized when related to potsl which have achieved technological
feasibility or have an alternative future use, anelamortized over their estimated useful lives.

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incuskdgertising expenses were $1.6 million, $1.4 roilliand $1.5 million in fiscal 2011, 2010 and
2009, respectively.

Income Taxe

The Company accounts for income taxes usiag@sset and liability method whereby deferredatset and liability account balances are
determined based on differences between finanegarting and the tax bases of assets and liabiktiel are measured using the enacted tax
laws and related rates that will be in effect whendifferences are expected to reverse. Theserdiftes result in deferred tax assets and
liabilities, which are included in the Company'snSolidated Balance Sheet. The Company then asdbgsieslinood that the deferred tax
assets will be recovered from future taxable incofealuation allowance is established against mefetax assets to the extent the Company
believes that recovery is not likely based on &wel of historical taxable income and projectiomsféiture taxable income over the periods in
which the temporary differences are deductible.

Uncertain tax positions must meet a mdeeli-than-not threshold to be recognized in thaffitial statements and the tax benefits
recognized are measured based on the largest bratfhas
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 (Continued)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
a greater than 50% likelihood of being realizedrufinal settlement. See further discussion in Ndidncome Taxes
Recent Accounting Pronounceme

In December 2011, the Financial Accounttgndards Board (FASB) issued FASB Accounting StedelUpdate (ASU) No. 2011-11,
Balance Sheet (Topic 2:—Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabditi@SU 2011-11 requires an entity to disclose infation about
offsetting and related arrangements to enable wééts financial statements to understand thecefdé those arrangements on its financial
position. Entities are required to disclose bottsgrand net information about these instrumenttl 2811-11 is effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, iat@im periods within those annual periods. Thepidn of this ASU is not expected to h:
a material impact on the Company's financial stetem

In September 2011, the FASB issued FASB ARU2011-08|ntangibles—Goodwill and Other (Topic 350)—Test&apdwill for
Impairment. ASU 201108 permits an entity to first assess qualitativdies to determine whether it is more likely tha that the fair value
a reporting unit is less than its carrying amounédasis for determining whether it is necessapetform the two-step goodwill impairment
test. If an entity determines it is more likely th@ot that the fair value of a reporting unit isdehan its carrying amount, then it is required to
perform the two-step impairment test. If an entitycludes otherwise, then the two-step impairmesttis not required. ASU 2011-08 is
effective for annual and interim goodwill impairntéests performed for fiscal years beginning aftecember 15, 2011, with early adoption
permitted. The adoption of this ASU is not expedtetiave a material impact on the Company's firdrstatements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued FASB ASU 281.1-05,Comprehensive Income (Topic 220)—Presentation ofgtehensive Income
This ASU requires that all non-owner changes igldtolders' equity be presented either in a singtgiouous statement of comprehensive
income or in two separate but consecutive statesnanthe two-statement approach, the first stat¢rsieould present total net income and its
components followed consecutively by a second rstaie that should present total other compreheriso@ne, the components of other
comprehensive income, and the total of compreherissome. In December 2011, the FASB issued FASB AS. 2011-12Comprehensive
Income (Topic 22(—Deferral of the Effective Date for AmendmenteoRresentation of Reclassifications of ltems @éa@umulated Other
Comprehensive Income in Accounting Standards Updat€2011-05 ASU 2011-12 defers the effective date pertainingresenting
reclassification adjustments by component in bbéhstatements where net income and other comprigeensome are presented. ASU 2011-
05 and ASU 2011-12 are effective for fiscal years] interim periods within those years, beginnifigraDecember 15, 2011 and are to be
applied retrospectively. The adoptions of these A8ké not expected to have a material impact o€tmpany's financial position or result:
operations, but will result in an additional stagrnof other comprehensive income.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 (Continued)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

In May 2011, the FASB issued FASB ASU N012-04,Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820)—Amendments hdeke Common Fair
Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements® GAAP and IFRS$his ASU provides a consistent definition of failwe between
U.S. GAAP and International Financial Reportingrist@rds. Additionally, the ASU changes certain Yailue measurement principles and
expands the disclosures for fair value measuremAsts 2011-04 is effective for interim and annuatipds beginning after December 15,
2011 and is to be applied prospectively. The adopiif this ASU is not expected to have a matenmgdact on the Company's financial
statements.

3. Earnings Per Share

The following table sets forth the compiagtatof basic and diluted earnings per share (inshods, except per share data):

Year Ended
December 31, January 1, January 2,
2011 2011 2010
Net income $ 35,47. $ 73,24: $ 73,09:
Shares used in computing basic earnings per 43,42: 44,84t 45,02:
Effect of dilutive securities
Stock options and awart 1,411 1,897 1,51¢
Shares used in computing diluted earnings per ¢ 44,83: 46,74 46,54
Earnings per shar
Basic $ 0.8z $ 163 $ 1.62
Diluted $ 0.7¢ $ 157 $ 1.57

Approximately 0.4 million, 0.6 million ari1 million weighted-average dilutive potential sigof common stock have been excluded
from the diluted earnings per share calculatiorfitwal years ended December 31, 2011, Januar§11, @nd January 2, 2010, respectively, as
they were anti-dilutive.

4. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

The Company's cash equivalents and shortitevestments as of December 31, 2011 consistedrpbrate bonds, municipal bonds,
money market funds, variable-rate demand notes, gb&rnment agency bonds, U.S. Treasury billetdsacked securities, U.S. government
bonds, certificates of deposit and internationalsgoment bonds. The Company's long-term investnmnisist of auctiomate securities. Earl
in fiscal 2008, auctions for many of the Compamyistion-rate securities failed because sell ordecgeded buy orders. As of December 31,
2011, the Company held $19.2 million par value iauetate securities, all of which have experienfaléd auctions. The underlying assets of
the securities consisted of student loans and npaiibonds, of which $17.2 million were guarantbgdhe U.S. government and the remai
$2.0 million were privately insured. As of DecemBé&r 2011, $17.2 million of the auction-rate setiesihad credit ratings of AAA and
$2.0 million had a credit rating of A. These setiesi have contractual maturity dates ranging fr@2%to 2046 and with current yields of
0.21% to 3.14% per year at December 31, 2011. T™mepany is receiving the
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4. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Contindg

underlying cash flows on all of its auctioate securities. The principal amounts associaitfdfailed auctions are not expected to be accks
until a successful auction occurs, the issuer made@e securities, a buyer is found outside ofatltion process or the underlying securities
mature. The Company is unable to predict if thesel$ will become available before their maturityeda

The Company does not expect to need atoeke capital represented by any of its auctide-sacurities prior to their maturities. The
Company does not intend to sell, and believesribtamore likely than not that it will be requiremisell, its auction-rate securities before their
anticipated recovery in market value or final settént at the underlying par value. The Companebes that the credit ratings and credit
support of the security issuers indicate that theeye the ability to settle the securities at pdumeaAs such, the Company has determined th
other-than-temporary impairment losses existed &eoember 31, 2011.

The Company's cash, cash equivalents aredtments consist of the following (in thousands):

December 31, 2011

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Losses Gains Fair Value
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on han $ 44,117 % — $ — $ 44,11¢
Available-for-sale securities
Money market fund 50,85 — — 50,85
Total cash and cash equivale $ 9496: $ — 3 — $ 94,96¢
Short-term Investments:
Available-for-sale securities
Corporate bond $ 75,18¢ $ (363 $ 234 $ 75,06(
Municipal bonds 56,91¢ (12 81 56,98
Variable-rate demand note 41,28( — — 41,28(
U.S. government agen 19,82( (12 28 19,83¢
U.S. Treasury bill: 8,60( — — 8,60(
Asse-backed securitie 5,74: 5) 1 5,73¢
U.S. government bonc 2,507 — — 2,507
Certificates of depos 1,57(C — — 1,57¢
International government bon 95C — — 95(
Total shor-term investment $ 212,57: $ (392) $ 344 $ 212,52t
Long-term Investments:
Available-for-sale securities
Auction rate securitie $ 19,22t $ (1,74%) $ — $ 17,47
Total lon¢-term investment $ 19,22t $ (1,74¢ $ — $ 1747
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4. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Contindg

January 1, 2011

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Losses Gains Fair Value
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on han $ 40,64¢ $ — $ — $ 40,64«
Available-for-sale securities
U.S. Treasury bill: 50,09¢ — 1 50,091
Money market fund 45,167 — — 45,167
Commercial pape 2,65¢ — — 2,65¢
Total availabl-for-sale securitie 97,92: — 1 97,92:
Total cash and cash equivale $ 138,56t $ — $ 1 $ 138,56
Short-term Investments:
Available-for-sale securities
Corporate bond $ 88,18: $ (46) $ 381 $ 88,51¢
Variable-rate demand notse 39,42t — — 39,42¢
Municipal bonds 38,40¢ (18) 24 38,41«
U.S. government agen 34,63t 5) 50 34,68(
International government bon 10,79: — 38 10,83(
U.S. Treasury bill: 6,99¢ — 1 6,99¢
Certificates of depos 5,74¢ 2 — 5,74z
Commercial pape 2,687 — — 2,681
Total shor-term investment $ 226,87 $ (71) $ 494 $ 227,29!
Long-term Investments:
Available-for-sale securities
Auction rate securitie $ 19,728 $ (2,22%) $ — $ 17,50(
Total lon¢-term investment $ 19,72t $ (2,22%) $ — $ 17,50(

The available-for-sale investments thatenara continuous unrealized loss position, agdesghy length of time that individual securities
have been in a continuous loss position, were [&safe (in thousands):

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total
Gross Gross Gross

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
As of December 31, 201 Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Corporate bond $ 25,43t $ (363 $ — 3 — $ 2543t $ (363)
Auction rate securitie — — 17,47 (1,74% 17,47 (1,749
Municipal bonds 10,43: (12 — — 10,43: (12
U.S. government agent 5,772 (12 — — 5,772 (12
Asse-backed securitie 4,53¢ 5) — — 4,53¢ 5)

$ 46,18¢ $ (392) $ 17.47. $ (1,746 $ 63,66: $ (2,140
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4. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Contindg

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total
Gross Gross Gross
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
As of January 1, 2011 Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Municipal bonds $ 2227. % (18) $ — $ — $2227: % (18)
Corporate bond 17,53¢ (44) 1,29¢ (2) 18,83¢ (46)
Auction rate
securities — — 17,50( (2,225  17,50( (2,225
U.S. government
agency 17,007 5) — — 17,007 (5)
Certificates of
deposit 1,56¢ 2 — — 1,56¢ 2

$ 5838 $ (69) $ 1879 $ (2,227 $ 77,18 $ (2,296

The gross unrealized losses as of DeceBthet011 and January 1, 2011 were due primaritiedlliquidity of the Company's auction-
rate securities and, to a lesser extent, to changasarket interest rates.

The following summarizes the contractualentying maturities of the Company's available-4afe investments at December 31, 2011 (in
thousands):

Fair

Cost Value
Due in one year or le: $ 148,64. $ 148,73«
Due after one year through ten ye 78,25¢ 78,11
Due after ten yeal 55,75t 54,001

$ 282,65( $ 280,85¢

5. Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company is exposed to interest ratltions in the normal course of its businessuiing through its corporate headquarters
leases. The base rents for these leases are ¢attuking a variable interest rate based on tleethronth LIBOR. The Company has entered
into interest rate swap agreements with notionklesaof $44.3 million and $50.1 million and, effgety, fixed the rent payment amounts on
these leases through March 2011 and March 2013ectsgely. The Company's swap agreement with anativalue of $44.3 million matured
in March 2011 and was not renewed. The interestaahp agreements are designated and qualify hgloashedges.

The Company estimates the fair values df/dBves based on quoted prices and market oblskendata of similar instruments. If the lease
agreements or the interest rate swap agreementsrari@ated prior to maturity, the fair value oétimterest rate swaps recorded in accumu
other comprehensive loss may be recognized in tmsdlidated Statement of Income based on an assessfithe agreements at the time of
termination. The Company did not discontinue arshddow hedges in any of the periods presented.

The Company measures the effectiveneds ofgh flow hedges by comparing the change invédire of the hedged item with the change
in fair value of the interest rate swap. The Conyp@tognizes ineffective portions of the hedgewal as amounts not included in the
assessment of effectiveness, in the ConsolidaerSent of Income. As of December 31, 2011, ndqodf the gains or losses from the

Company's hedging instrument was excluded fronaisessment of effectiveness. There was no hediecitieeness for any of the periods
presented.
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5. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued)

The Company's derivative financial instrumneonsisted of the following (in thousands):

Fair Value
Balance Sheet December 31, January 1,
Location 2011 2011
Interest rate swap Accrued expense $ — $ 344
Long-term obligations an
other liabilities 1,99¢ 3,461
Total $ 199 $ 3,811

The before-tax effect of derivative instemts in cash flow hedging relationships was a®¥al (in thousands):

Loss Reclassifiec

Loss Recognized ir Location from Accumulated
OCI on Derivatives of Loss OCIl into Income
(Effective Portion) Reclassified (Effective Portion)
during the Year Ended into Income during the Year Ended
December 31, January 1, January 2, December 31, January 1, January 2,
2011 2011 2010 2011 2011 2010
Interes
rate
swap $ (424 $ (2,640 $ (1,68)) Rentexpens $ (2,237) $ (3,32) $ (2,799

The Company expects to reclassify $1.7iomlbf its interest rate swap losses included tuawlated other comprehensive loss as of
December 31, 2011 into earnings in the next 12 hgnthich is offset by lower rent payments.

The Company's interest rate swap agreeowréins provisions that require it to maintainncenbered cash and highly-rated short-term
investments of at least $150 million. If the Comyamnencumbered cash and highly-rated short-tevestments are less than $150 million, it
would be required to post collateral with the cauparty in the amount of the fair value of the iest rate swap agreements in net liability
positions. The Company's interest rate swap wasniet liability position at December 31, 2011. Mdateral has been posted with the
counterparty as of December 31, 2011.
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6. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following summarizes the valuationte Company's financial instruments (in thousariflsg. tables do not include either cash on
hand or assets and liabilities that are measurbistatrical cost or any basis other than fair value

Fair Value Measurements
at December 31, 2011 Using

Quoted Prices in Significant Other Significant
Active Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Assets:
Cash Equivalents:

Money market fund $ 50,85. $ — 3 — $ 50,85:
Total cash equivalen $ 50,85, $ — $ — $ 50,85:
Short-term Investments:

Corporate bond $ — $ 75,060 $ — $ 75,06(

Municipal bonds — 56,98¢ — 56,98¢

Variable-rate demand note — 41,28( — 41,28(

U.S. government agen: — 19,83¢ — 19,83¢

U.S. Treasury bill: 8,60( — — 8,60(

Asse-backed securitie — 5,73¢ — 5,73¢

U.S. government bonc 2,507 — — 2,507

Certificates of depos — 1,57C — 1,57C

International government

bonds — 95C — 95C

Total shor-term investment $ 11,107 $ 201,41¢ $ — $ 212,52¢
Long-term Investments:

Auction rate securitie $ — 9 — 3 17,477 $ 17,47

Total lon¢-term investment $ — 3 — 17,470 $ 17,477
Total $ 61,95¢ $ 201,41¢ $ 17,47 $ 280,85:
Liabilities:
Derivative instrument $ — $ 1,99¢ $ — $ 1,99¢
Contingent consideratic — — 87¢€ 87¢€
Total $ — 3 1,99¢ $ 87¢ $ 2,87«
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6. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

Fair Value Measurements at January 1, 2011 Using

Quoted Prices in Significant Other Significant
Active Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (1) (Level 3) Total
Assets:
Cash Equivalents:
U.S. Treasury bill: $ 50,097 $ — $ — $ 50,097
Money market fund 45,167 — — 45,167
Commercial pape — 2,65¢ — 2,65¢
Total cash equivalen $ 95,26¢ $ 2,65¢ $ — $ 97,92¢
Short-term Investments:
Corporate bond $ — $ 88,51¢ $ — $ 88,51¢
Variable-rate demand notse — 39,42¢ — 39,42t
Municipal bonds — 38,41« — 38,41«
U.S. government agenu — 34,68( — 34,68(
International government
bonds — 10,83( — 10,83(
U.S. Treasury bill: 6,99¢ — — 6,99¢
Certificates of depos — 5,74 — 5,74z
Commercial pape — 2,68 — 2,681
Total shor-term investment $ 6,99¢ $ 220,29¢ $ — $ 227,29
Long-term Investments:

Auction rate securitie $ — $ — 17,50 $ 17,50(
Total lon¢-term investment $ — 3 — $ 17,50 $ 17,50(
Total $ 102,260 $ 222,95 $ 17,50C $ 342,71¢
Liabilities:

Derivative instrument $ — $ 3,811 $ — $ 3811
Contingent consideratic — — 1,78( 1,78(C
Total $ — $ 3,811 $ 1,78C $ 5,591

(1) The Company previously classified all of its caghiigalents and she-term investments as using Level 1 inputs. The Caoypbas
determined that the pricing methods for certaitheke investments use significant other obseniaplgs. Accordingly, such
investments held in prior periods have been prggeesented as Level 2. The reclassification hathpact on the fair value of
investments in any of the periods presented.

F-18




Table of Contents

Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 (Continued)

6. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

The Company's cash equivalents and shortditevestments that are classified as Level 1 ateed using quoted prices and other relevant
information generated by market transactions inmgi\dentical assets. Cash equivalents and short-tevestments classified as Level 2 are
valued using non-binding market consensus pricasatte corroborated with observable market dateteglmarket prices for similar
instruments in active markets; or pricing modelshsas a discounted cash flow model, with all digant inputs derived from or corroborated
with observable market data. Investments classigtevel 3 are valued using a discounted cashiflodel. The assumptions used in
preparing the discounted cash flow model includenedes for interest rates, amount of cash flowpgeted holding periods of the securities
and a discount to reflect the Company's inabitityiquidate the securities.

The Company's derivative instruments ateadiusing a discounted cash flow model. The asiongpused in preparing the discounted
cash flow model include quoted interest swap ratesmarket observable data of similar instrumérte. Company's contingent consideration
is valued using a probability weighted discountestcflow model. The assumptions used in prepahiagliscounted cash flow model include
estimates for possible outcomes if certain milestgoals are achieved, the probability of achiedagh outcome and discount rates.

The following summarizes the activity inMe¢ 3 financial instruments for the years endedddauer 31, 2011 and January 1, 2011 (in
thousands):

Auction Rate

Assets Securities

Balance at January 1, 20 $ 17,50(

Settlement: (500)

Unrealized gain 477

Balance at December 31, 2C $ 17,47

Auction Rate Put
Securities Option Total

Balance at January 2, 20 $ 45578 $ 3,090 $ 48,66¢
Settlements (1 (31,149  (2,22¢) (33,369
Unrealized gain 17¢ — 17¢
Net recognized gains (losse 2,88¢ (867) 2,021
Balance at January 1, 20 $ 17,500 $ — $ 17,50(
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6. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

Contingent
Liabilities Consideration
Balance at January 1, 20 $ 1,78(
Issuance (2 1,02t
Recognized gain (¢ (1,929
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 87¢€
Net gain for period included in earnings attriblgato
contingent consideration still held at DecemberZf1: $ 1,92¢
Contingent
Consideration
Balance at January 2, 20 $ —
Issuance (2 1,84(
Recognized gai (60)
Balance at January 1, 20 $ 1,78(
Gain for period included in earnings attributalue t
contingent consideration still held at January@1 2 $ 60

@

@)

@)

The Company previously held $23.5 million par vahuetior-rate securities purchased through UBS AG. Duriagdli 2010, th
Company sold these securities to UBS at par vatgeuan agreement which provided the Company veittam rights to sell to UBS
the auction-rate securities that were purchaseditiir them. Recognized gains and losses on thesgtigescand the related UBS put
option were recorded in other income (expense)imigte Consolidated Statement of Income.

In connection with the acquisitions of Spectra lainand ChipSensors, the Company recorded contimgaisideration based upon 1
achievement of certain milestone goals. Changéset@air value of contingent consideration dueltarges in assumptions used in
preparing the discounted cash flow model are resbid selling, general and administrative expemnsése Consolidated Statement of
Income. Changes resulting from foreign currencyaasurement adjustments to the contingent consideriébility are recorded in
other income (expense), net.

The Company reduced the estimated fair value dfimgent consideration because certain milestonésgeare either not achieved
are less likely to be achieved.

The Company's other financial instrumeimtsiuding cash, accounts receivable and accounyahba, are recorded at amounts that

approximate their fair values due to their shorturides.
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7. Balance Sheet Details
The following tables show the details dested Consolidated Balance Sheet items (in thalgan
Inventories

December 31 January 1,

2011 2011
Work in progres: $ 28,02: $ 32,97
Finished good 6,75¢ 6,47

$ 34,77¢ ' $ 39,45(

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current As

December 31, January 1,

2011 2011
Distributor advance $ 23,227 $ 9,88
Other 20,64¢ 24,56(

$ 43,867 $ 34,44

Property and Equipmet

December 31, January 1,

2011 2011
Equipment $ 43,93¢ $ 40,52
Computers and purchased softw 28,37 29,50:
Furniture and fixture 3,35¢ 3,051
Leasehold improvemen 21,83: 21,04

97,49: 94,11«
Accumulated depreciatic (72,357 (64,169

$ 25,141 $ 29,94t

Accrued Expense

December 31 January 1,

2011 2011
Accrued compensation and bene $ 17,94¢ $ 15,11¢
Other 12,90¢ 10,48¢

$ 30,857 $ 25,60
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7. Balance Sheet Details (Continued)
Longterm Obligations and Other Liabilities

December 31, January 1,

2011 2011

Unrecognized tax benefits (including intere $ 10,94: $ 10,18:
CAD software license accrue 6,041 42C
Other 7,22¢ 11,76

$ 24,21« $ 22,37

8. Risks and Uncertainties

Financial Instrument:

Financial instruments that potentially ®dbjthe Company to significant concentrations eflitrrisk consist primarily of cash equivalents,
investments, accounts receivable and derivativies.Jompany places its cash equivalents and invessmpemarily in corporate bonds,
municipal bonds, money market funds, variable-dseand notes, U.S. government agency bonds, Ue&siiry bills, asset-backed securities,
U.S. government bonds, certificates of depositiatetnational government bonds and auction-ratar#ées. Concentrations of credit risk with
respect to accounts receivable are primarily dusugtomers with large outstanding balances. Thepgaoyls customers that accounted for
greater than 10% of accounts receivable consiteofollowing:

December 31, January 1,

2011 2011
Edom Technolog 2% 11%
Avnet 13% 18%
Macnica *x 14%

*k Less than 10% of accounts receive

The Company performs periodic credit evédues of its customers' financial condition and gratly requires no collateral from its
customers. The Company provides an allowance faanpial credit losses based upon the expectedatibliéty of such receivables. Losses
have not been significant for any of the periodsspnted.

Distributor Advance:

On sales to distributors, the Company'sygayt terms often require the distributor to settitounts owed to the Company for an amou
excess of their ultimate cost. The Company's gaies to its distributors may be higher than theoant that the distributors will ultimately o
the Company because distributors often negotiate peductions after purchasing the product from@ompany and such reductions are often
significant. These negotiated price discounts ategranted until the distributor sells the prodiacthe end customer, which may occur after the
distributor has paid the original invoice amountiie Company. Payment of invoices prior to recg\an associated discount can have an
adverse impact on the working capital of the Comyfsadistributors. Accordingly, the Company has esdento agreements with certain
distributors whereby it advances cash to the
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8. Risks and Uncertainties (Continued)

distributors to reduce the distributor's workingital requirements. The advance amounts are bas#wkedistributor's inventory balance, and
are adjusted quarterly. Such amounts are recordprkpaid expenses and other current assets Dahsolidated Balance Sheet. The terms of
these advances are set forth in binding legal ageets and are unsecured, bear no interest on leasktlances and are due upon demand. The
agreements governing these advances can be cahibglthe Company at any time.

Suppliers

A significant portion of the Company's pucts are fabricated by Taiwan Semiconductor Manufawy Co. (TSMC) or its affiliates. The
inability of TSMC to deliver wafers to the Compaoiy a timely basis could impact the production e @ompany's products for a substantial
period of time, which could have a material adveffect on the Company's business, financial cosrdiand results of operations.

Customers

The Company sells directly to end customdisgributors and contract manufacturers. AlthotlghCompany actually sells the products
and is paid by, distributors and contract manufaety the Company refers to the end customer asistomer. None of the Company's contract
manufacturers accounted for greater than 10% @&me during fiscal 2011, 2010 or 2009. The Compgaaryt customers and distributors that
accounted for greater than 10% of revenue consigtee following:

Year Ended
December 31, January 1, January 2,
2011 2011 2010

End Customer
Samsung’ 13% *x 16%
Distributors
Edom Technolog 24% 28% 27%
Avnet 12% 14% 10%
Macnica 10% *x *x

* Samsung's purchases were across a variety of grackas.

i Less than 10% of reveni
9. Acquisitions
Spectra Linear

On January 25, 2011, the Company acquipsttga Linear, Inc., a late-stage private compdferiag integrated timing solutions. The
Company acquired Spectra Linear for approximat@®.@ million, including contingent consideratiorthvan estimated fair value of
$1.0 million at the date of acquisition. In additjghe Company assumed approximately $8.0 millio8pectra Linear net liabilities in
connection with the acquisition.
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9. Acquisitions (Continued)

The Company paid an additional approxinya$dl.5 million of consideration to certain Spedtiaear employees in connection with an
agreement between the employees and Spectra Liffgaragreement provided that upon the sale of tpé&mear, a portion of the proceeds
would be paid to such employees as bonuses. Teemgnt was accounted for as a transaction segeratéhe business combination base!
its economic substance and was recorded as pogdiitation compensation expense in the Company'sdiahstatements during fiscal 2011.

Approximately $6.0 million of the considéea was deposited in escrow as security for breadi representations and warranties and
certain other expressly enumerated matters.

The Company recorded the purchase of Speatear using the acquisition method of accoungéind accordingly, recognized the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at their fair ealas of the date of the acquisition. The restl&pectra Linear's operations are included in the
Company's consolidated results of operations béujnnith the date of the acquisition. Revenues @euthings from this acquisition and pro
forma financial information have not been presettechuse the results of Spectra Linear's operatiens not material. Acquisition-related
costs were not significant.

The Company believes that the acquisitidasaa broad family of timing ICs that will enabiéd accelerate penetration in high-volume
applications, while further scaling the Companyigieeering team. These factors contributed to almsge price that was in excess of the fair
value of the net assets acquired and, as a résellGompany recorded goodwill. The goodwill wasedited to the Company's operating
segment and is not deductible for tax purposes.plinehase price was allocated as follows (in thondsa

Weighted-Average
Amortization Period

Amount (Years)
Intangible asset:
Core and developed technolc $ 16,56( 9.€
Customer relationshif 1,40(C 10.C
17,96(
Accounts receivabl 1,75¢
Inventories 1,19¢
Other current asse 1,65¢
Goodwill 4,097
Deferred tax asse—nor-current 12,31¢
Other nol-current assei 597
Notes payab—current portior (4,647
Current liabilities (3,1172)
Non-current liabilities (3,259
Total purchase pric $ 28,57¢

One of the Company's directors, Harvey BslG is a General Partner with InterWest PartneddrterWest Partners was one of the
principal stockholders of Spectra Linear. Mr. CabiBtained from the decision-making process witheaetsto the acquisition.
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9. Acquisitions (Continued)
Silicon Clocks

In April 2010, the Company acquired Silid@locks, Inc., a privately held company that des@yand developed microelectromechanical
system (MEMS) technology to enable the manufaatfislicon resonators and sensors directly on stethdomplementary metal oxide
semiconductor (CMOS) wafers. The Company acquiikcb8 Clocks for approximately $21.0 million in sfa

The Company recorded the purchase of Sili€lmcks using the acquisition method of accoun#éind accordingly, recognized the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at their fair ealas of the date of the acquisition. The restil&ilizon Clocks' operations are included in the
Company's consolidated results of operations béujnnith the date of the acquisition. Revenues @euthings from this acquisition and pro
forma financial information have not been preseitechuse the results of Silicon Clocks' operatioaise not material. Acquisition-related
costs were not significant.

The Company believes that the acquisitidhemable the Company to accelerate its entry theolow end timing market while further
scaling the Company's engineering team. Theserfactmtributed to a purchase price that was inexoéthe fair value of the net assets
acquired and, as a result, the Company recordedvgbhoThe goodwill was allocated to the Compargperating segment and is not deductible
for tax purposes. The purchase price was alloadddllows (in thousands):

Weighted-Average
Amortization Period

Amount (Years)
Intangible asset:
In-process research and developn $ 9,47C Not amortizec
Developed technolog 23C 3.0
Customer relationshig 3C 2.0
9,73(
Cash and cash equivalel 514
Other current asse 473
Deferred tax asse—nor-current 11,52:
Other nol-current assei 322
Goodwill 3,20¢
Current liabilities (1,339%)
Deferred tax liabilitie—nor-current (3,406
Total purchase pric $ 21,02t

In-process research and development (IPR&pPesents acquired technology that had not aetiitachnological feasibility as of the
acquisition closing date and had no alternativertitise. These costs were recorded as indefimgd-Intangible assets. The assets are tested
for impairment through their completion and theroatized to research and development expense ogerubeful lives. IPR&D is writteroff if
the related projects are abandoned. The fair v@leach project was determined using the incomeaagp. The discount rate applicable to the
cash flows was 19.0%. This rate reflects the weidtatverage cost of capital and the risks inheretité development process.
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9. Acquisitions (Continued)

The Company is developing the IPR&D praggacting MEMS technology. The IPR&D recorded in aeetion with the acquisition
consisted of the following (in thousands):

Project Fair Value

Resonato $ 5,20(

Clocks 4,27(
$ 9,47(

ChipSensors

In October 2010, the Company acquired Céips8rs Ltd, a privately held company for approxaha$11.7 million, including contingent
consideration with an estimated fair value of $hiion at the date of acquisition. ChipSensorsated innovative single-chip CMOS sensors
designed to detect temperature, humidity and gd$esCompany recorded the purchase of Silicon Glarding the acquisition method of
accounting and accordingly, recognized the assepsied and liabilities assumed at their fair valas of the date of the acquisition. The
purchase price was allocated as follows: intangilsets—$9.1 million; goodwill—$3.1 million; andtriangible assets—$(0.5) million.
Revenues and earnings from this acquisition andgsroa financial information have not been preséiitecause the results of ChipSensors'
operations were not material.
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10. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
Goodwill

The following summarizes the activity inoglwill for the years ended December 31, 2011 andaky 1, 2011 (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31, January 1,
2011 2011
Beginning balanc $ 112,29¢ $ 105,10¢
Additions due to business combinatic 4,097 7,187
Adjustments (904) —
Ending balanci $ 11548¢ $ 112,29¢

Other Intangible Assets

The gross carrying amount and accumulateattization of other intangible assets are as ¥adldin thousands):

December 31, 201 January 1, 2011
Weighted-Average
Amortization Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated
Period (Years) Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Intangible asset:
Subject to amortizatior
Core and developed 9.4
technology $ 79,50C $ (30,437 $ 64,27C $ (22,38))
Customel 9.9
relationships 2,51( (523) 3,41( (1,76€)
Patents — — — 2,89¢ (2,657%)
9.4 82,01( (30,955  70,57¢ (26,80¢)
Not subject to
amortization:
In-process resear( Not amortizec
and developmer 8,95( — 9,47( —
Total intangible asse $ 90,96( $ (30,959 $ 80,04¢ $ (26,80¢)

Gross intangible assets increased $18Ibmih fiscal 2011 due to the acquisition of Spadtinear. This increase was offset by the
removal of $2.9 million of fully amortized assetsda$4.2 million of impaired assets (which had aagrnimg unamortized balance of
$1.3 million, resulting in a $1.3 million chargeamerily to research and development expense ilCtivesolidated Statement of Income). The
impaired assets were written down to zero.
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10. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (Continuel

Amortization expense related to intang#msets for fiscal 2011, 2010 and 2009 was $9.%omjl$7.5 million and $7.8 million,
respectively. The estimated aggregate amortizatkpense for intangible assets subject to amonizdtr each of the five succeeding fiscal
years is as follows (in thousand

Fiscal Year

2012 $ 9,05¢
2013 7,68(
2014 6,84(
2015 6,44¢
2016 5,71¢

11. Stockholders' Equity
Common Stock

The Company issued 1.3 million shares ofitmn stock during fiscal 2011, net of 0.2 millidrases withheld to satisfy employee tax
obligations for the vesting of certain stock gramede under the Company's stock incentive plans.

Share Repurchase Programs

In October 2011, the Board of Directors@éd a share repurchase program to repurchase$ftmillion of the Company's common
stock through April 2012. The Company's repurchasgram announced in July 2010, authorized therodyase of up to $150 million of the
Company's common stock through 2011, and was caetpie August 2011. The Company's repurchase pnogranounced in October 2009
authorized the repurchase of up to $150 milliothefCompany's common stock through 2010, and wasrtated upon the adoption of the
July 2010 program. The Company's repurchase prograraunced in October 2008 authorized the repuecbigp to $100 million of the
Company's common stock over a 12-month period waasicompleted in November 2009. These programw dtlorepurchases to be made in
the open market or in private transactions, inclgditructured or accelerated transactions, sutgeayiplicable legal requirements and market
conditions. The Company repurchased 3.2 milliorresti8.3 million shares and 0.6 million sharesotommon stock for $110.1 million,
$140.3 million and $20.2 million during fiscal 2012010 and 2009, respectively.
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11. Stockholders' Equity (Continued)
Accumulated Other Comprehensive L

The components of accumulated other congm&ikie loss, net of taxes, were as follows (in Hamals):

Net Unrealized

Unrealized Losses
Losses on Cash on Available-
Flow Hedges For-Sale Securities Total
Balance at January 3, 20 $ (3,647 $ (2,406) $ (6,049
Change associated with current period transact
net of tax (1,092) 96¢ (123)
Amount reclassified into earnings, net of 1,81¢ — 1,81t
Balance at January 2, 20 (2,919 (1,437 (4,356
Change associated with current period transact
net of tax (1,71¢ 18t (1,537
Amount reclassified into earnings, net of 2,15¢ 81 2,23¢
Balance at January 1, 20 (2,477) (1,171 (3,64%)
Change associated with current period transactic
net of tax (27€) 3 (279)
Amount reclassified into earnings, net of 1,45¢ — 1,45¢
Balance at December 31, 2C $ (1,299) $ (1,16¢) $ (2,467

12. Stock-Based Compensation

In fiscal 2009, the stockholders of the @amy approved the 2009 Stock Incentive Plan (t@®9Z2Plan") and the 2009 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan (the "2009 Purchase Plan"). The RG0Bis currently effective, and no further gramit be issued under the Company's 2000
Stock Incentive Plan (the "2000 Plan") as of tHfeaive date of the 2009 Plan. The 2009 Plan hasna of 10 years from the shareholders'
approval date. The 2009 Purchase Plan becameieffeqion the termination of the previous Employémc Purchase Plan (the "Purchase
Plan"), on April 30, 2010. There is no provisiom &m automatic share reserve increase in eithe2@f@ Plan or the 2009 Purchase Plan.

2009 Stock Incentive Plan

Under the 2009 Plan, the following may benged: stock options, stock appreciation righésfggmance shares, performance stock units,
restricted stock units (RSUSs), restricted stockrawgdRSAS), performance-based awards and othedaweollectively, all such grants are
referred to as "awards"). Awards of stock optiong stock appreciation rights each deduct one ghamethe 2009 Plan shares available for
issuance for each share granted, and full valuedsy@wards other than for which the participametpuired to pay at least the fair market
value of the underlying shares on the date of §ideduct 1.55 shares from the 2009 Plan sharelblafor issuance for each share granted.
Awards granted under the 2009 Plan generally conv@sting provisions ranging from three to fourngedhe exercise price of stock options
offered under the 2009 Plan may not be less th8f61dX the fair market value of a share of our comrstck on the date of grant. To the
extent awards
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12. Stock-Based Compensation (Continued)

granted under the 2009 Plan terminate, expirepseldor any reason, or are settled in cash, slsatgsct to such awards will again be available
for grant.

2000 Stock Incentive Plan

In fiscal 2000, the Company's Board of Dioes and stockholders approved the 2000 Plan20h8 Plan contains programs for (i) the
discretionary granting of stock options to empla/gen-employee board members and consultantbdgrurchase of shares of the Company's
common stock, (ii) the discretionary issuance ohown stock directly (as granted under direct issaahares in RSAs and RSUSs), (iii) the
granting of special below-market stock optionsxeceitive officers and other highly compensated eygxs of the Company for which the
exercise price can be paid using payroll deductank(iv) the automatic issuance of stock optiensan-employee board members. The
discretionary issuance of common stock, RSUs aseksiptions generally contain vesting provisionsgiag from three to eight years. If
permitted by the Company, stock options can beotsed immediately and, similar to the direct isaigashares, are subject to repurchase rights
which generally lapse in accordance with the vegstithedule. The repurchase rights provide that gpaiain defined events, the Company can
repurchase unvested shares at the price paid paex.sFhe term of each stock option is no more tharyears from the date of grant.

Stock Grants and Modifications

The Company granted to its employees OliBomj 0.8 million and 0.2 million shares of fulblue awards and no stock options from the
2009 Plan during fiscal 2011, 2010 and 2009, respdg. The Company granted to its employees 0aniof full value awards from the
2000 Plan during fiscal 2009. There were no sigaiit modifications made to any stock grants dutfirege periods.

Included in the full value awards grantedier the 2009 Plan in fiscal 2011 were a total®ftousand market-based stock awards. The
awards, also known as Market Stock Units (MSUS)yjale the rights to acquire a number of shareoofroon stock for no cash consideration
based upon achievement of specified levels of maxieditions. The requisite service period for hdSUs is also the vesting period, whic
generally three years. The performance criterih®MSUs measure the difference between the tatekisolders' return of the Company
against that of the Philadelphia Semiconductor@ebotal Return Index.

2009 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The rights to purchase common stock granteter the 2009 Purchase Plan are intended teatgett as either (i) purchase rights granted
under an "employee stock purchase plan," as thatitedefined in Section 423(b) of the Internal Bewe Code (the "423(b) Plan"), or
(ii) purchase rights granted under an employeekgtocchase plan that is not subject to the terndscamditions of Section 423(b) of the
Internal Revenue Code (the "Non-423(b) Plan"). Teepany will retain the discretion to grant purahaghts under either the 423(b) Plan or
the Non-423(b) Plan. Eligible employees may purefeamited number of shares of the Company's comstback at no less than 85% of the
fair market value of a share of common stock asgnibed purchase intervals during an offering gkrieach offering period will be comprised
of a series of one or more successive and/or qyairig purchase intervals and has a maximum ter2d ehonths. During fiscal 2011 and 20
the

F-30




Table of Contents

Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 (Continued)
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Company issued 169 thousand and 75 thousand shespectively, under the 2009 Purchase Plan eniigloyees. The weighted-average fair
value for purchase rights granted under the 2008Hase Plan for fiscal 2011 was $10.98 per share.

Employee Stock Purchase P!

The Purchase Plan was adopted by the CoytgpBoard of Directors in fiscal 2000. Eligible eloyees could purchase a limited numbe
shares of the Company's common stock at 85% ahtir&et value during a series of offering periodactioffering period is divided into semi-
annual purchase intervals and has a maximum te@4 afonths. During fiscal 2011, 2010 and 2009,Gbepany issued zero, 79 thousand
148 thousand shares, respectively, under the PagdPlan to its employees. There were no purchgbkesrgranted under the Purchase Plan for
fiscal 2011.

Accounting for Stoc-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation costs are basttkdair values on the date of grant for stockas and on the date of enrollment for the
employee stock purchase plans, estimated by us@Btack-Scholes option-pricing model. The fairues of stock awards and RSUs equal
their intrinsic value on the date of grant. The failues of market-based performance awards géyeral estimated using a Monte Carlo
simulation based on the date of grant.

The Black-Scholes valuation calculationuiegs the Company to estimate key assumptions asi¢titure stock price volatility, expected
terms, risk-free rates and dividend yield. Expeatiedtk price volatility is based upon a combinatidioth historical volatility and implied
volatility derived from traded options on the Compa stock in the marketplace. Expected term iszvddrfrom an analysis of historical
exercises and remaining contractual life of optidriee risk-free rate is based on the U.S. Treagiadyd curve in effect at the time of grant. The
Company has never paid cash dividends and doesurreintly intend to pay cash dividends, thus it &ssumed a 0% dividend yield.

The Monte Carlo simulation used to calaulie fair value of the MSUs simulates the presahte of the potential outcomes of future
stock prices of the Company and the PhiladelphraiS&anductor Sector Total Return Index over the igitpiservice period. The projection of
stock prices are based on the risk-free rate afmethe volatilities of the stock price of the Guamy and the Index, and the correlation of the
stock price of the Company with the Index.

The Company must estimate potential fanfes of stock grants and adjust compensation ecstded accordingly. The estimate of
forfeitures will be adjusted over the requisitevigr period to the extent that actual forfeiturdfed, or are expected to differ, from such
estimates. Changes in estimated forfeitures armgrézed through a cumulative catap-adjustment in the period of change and will &spac
the amount of stock-based compensation expense tecbgnized in future periods.

The fair values of stock options and RSkésaanortized as compensation expense on a sti@ghtasis over the vesting period of the
grants. The fair values of RSAs are fully expenisetthe period of grant, when shares are immediassiyed with no vesting restrictions. The
fair values of MSUs are amortized as compensatipese on a straight-line basis over the performaeciod of
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12. Stock-Based Compensation (Continued)
the grants. Compensation expense recognized isrstmotlie operating activities section of the Cortlibd Statements of Cash Flows.

The fair values estimated from the Black@®@es option-pricing model were calculated usirgyfthllowing assumptions:

Year Ended
December 31, January 1, January 2,
2011 2011 2010

2009 Employee Stock Purchase PI

Expected volatility 27% 32% n/e

Risk-free interest rate ¢ 0.2% 0.4% n/e

Expected term (in month 11 15 n/e

Dividend yield — — n/e
Employee Stock Purchase Pl:

Expected volatility n/e n/e 44%

Risk-free interest rate ¢ n/e n/e 0.2%

Expected term (in month n/e n/e 8

Dividend yield n/e n/e —

n/a—Not applicable
There were no stock options granted dufisxal 2011, 2010 or 2009.

A summary of stock-based compensation igtivith respect to fiscal 2011 follows:

Weighted- Weighted-Average Aggregate

Average Remaining Intrinsic
Shares Exercise Contractual Term Value
Stock Options (000s) Price (In Years) (000s)
Outstanding at January 1, 20 3,000 $ 33.2¢
Granted — 8 —
Exercisec (484) $ 25.9¢
Cancelled or expire (31) $ 52.9¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 2,48t $ 34.4¢ 35 $ 24,68t
Vested at December 31, 2011 and expected
vest 248t $ 34.4¢ 3.t $ 24,68¢
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 244¢ $ 34.4: 35 $ 24,37t
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Weighted- Weighted-Average Aggregate

Average Remaining Intrinsic
Shares Purchase Vesting Term Value
RSAs, RSUs and MSUs (000s) Price (In Years) (000s)
Outstanding at January 1, 20 2,206 $ 0.0C
Granted 755 ¢ 0.0C
Issuec (87¢) $ 0.0C
Cancelled or expire 92 $ 0.0C
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 1,98 $ 0.0C 1.1 $ 86,36
Outstanding at December 31, 2011 and expt
to vest 1,86¢ $ 0.0C 1.1 $ 81,02¢

The following summarizes the Company's Waid average fair value at the date of grant:

Year Ended
December 31 January 1, January 2,
2011 2011 2010
Per grant of RSAs, RSUs and MS $ 447 $ 4488 $ 27.4t

The following summarizes the Company'sistogsed payment and stock option values (in thaisgan

Year Ended
December 31, January 1, January 2,
2011 2011 2010

Intrinsic value of stock options exercis $ 8,62 $ 14,087 $ 14,54¢
Intrinsic value of RSAs and RSUs tt

vested $ 38,76¢ $ 32,10¢ $ 23,98:
Grant date fair value of RSAs and RS
that vestec $ 29,48¢ $ 25,39¢ $ 22,76

The Company had approximately $41.0 milliériotal unrecognized compensation costs relateddck options and stock awards at
December 31, 2011 that are expected to be recafjpizr a weighted-average period of 1.4 years.dtvere no significant stock-based
compensation costs capitalized into assets in athegeriods presented.

The Company received cash of $7.7 millienthe issuance of common stock, net of sharesheifthfor taxes, during fiscal 2011. The
Company issues shares from the shares reserveditsid®ck plans upon the exercise of stock ogtigsuance of RSAs, vesting of RSUs

purchases through employee stock purchase plaesCo®mpany does not currently expect to repurchiaaess from any source to satisfy such
obligation.
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The following table presents details ofcktbased compensation costs recognized in the Gdata Statements of Income (in
thousands):

Year Ended
December 31 January 1, January 2,
2011 2011 2010

Cost of revenue $ 1,31¢ $ 1,43t $ 1,453
Research and developmt 14,87: 17,015 13,86¢
Selling, general and administrati 19,92« 21,87: 28,65
36,11°¢ 40,32¢ 43,97«

Income tax benefi 3,951 5,462 6,221

$ 32,15¢ $ 34,86: $ 37,75

As of December 31, 2011, the Company hadrued shares of common stock for future issuasdellaws (in thousands):

2000 Stock Incentive Ple 3,05k
2009 Stock Incentive Ple 6,35(
2009 Employee Stock Purchase F 1,00¢
Total shares reserve¢ 10,41

13. Employee Benefit Plan

The Company maintains a defined contributo401(k) Plan for its qualified U.S. employeRarticipants may contribute a percentage of
their compensation on a pre-tax basis, subjectnb@damum annual contribution imposed by the InteRevenue Code. The Company may
make discretionary matching contributions as weldiscretionary profit-sharing contributions to #@l (k) Plan. The Company contributed
$2.7 million, $2.6 million and $2.2 million to tR®1(k) Plan during fiscal 2011, 2010 and 2009, eetipely.

14. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases

The Company leases its facilities underaiireg lease agreements that expire at variousdateugh 2019. Some of these arrangements
contain renewal options and require the Comparpatotaxes, insurance and maintenance costs.

Rent expense under operating leases wasdilion, $5.0 million and $5.1 million for fiscal011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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14. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

The minimum annual future rentals undertéiens of these leases as of December 31, 201dsdm#lows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year

2012 $ 6,63(
2013 3,341
2014 1,664
2015 1,51¢
2016 1,51¢
Thereaftel 2,99¢
Total minimum lease paymer 17,67(
Minimum sublease rental incon (3,795
Total net minimum lease paymel $ 13,87¢

Headquarters Leases

In March 2006, the Company entered intoperating lease agreement and a related participatireement for a facility at 400 W. Cesar
Chavez ("400 WCC") in Austin, Texas for its corperaeadquarters. The lease has a term of seves yider base rent for the term of the lease
is an amount equal to the interest accruing on3pddllion at 110 basis points over the three-mdidBOR (which would be approximately
$0.9 million over the remaining term assuming LIB@®erages 0.56% during such term).

In March 2008, the Company entered intoperating lease agreement and a related participaireement for a facility at 200 W. Cesar
Chavez ("200 WCC") in Austin, Texas for the expansif its corporate headquarters. The lease haxsradf five years. The base rent for the
term of the lease is an amount equal to the intaesuing on $50.1 million at 155 basis pointsrate three-month LIBOR (which would be
approximately $1.3 million over the remaining teassuming LIBOR averages 0.56% during such term).

The Company has granted certain rightsrangedies to the lessors in the event of certaiaudtsf, including the right to terminate the
leases, to bring suit to collect damages, and mapeb the Company to purchase the facilities. Thsde contain other customary
representations, warranties, obligations, condii@gmdemnification provisions and termination psgins, including covenants that the
Company shall maintain unencumbered cash and higitdyl short-term investments of at least $75 anillif the Company's unencumbered
cash and highly-rated short-term investments a®tlean $150 million, it must also maintain a rafidunded debt to earnings before interest
expense, income taxes, depreciation, amortizaéase expense and other nzash charges (EBITDAR) over the four prior fiscahders of n
greater than 2 to 1. As of December 31, 2011, tmgany believes it was in compliance with all cauets of the leases.

During the terms of the leases, the Compesyon-going options to purchase the buildingpfochase prices of approximately
$44.3 million for 400 WCC and $50.1 million for 200CC. Alternatively, the Company can cause each puoperty to be sold to third parties
provided it is not in default under that propertgase. The Company is contingently liable on st fiollar loss basis for

F-35




Table of Contents

Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 (Continued)

14. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

up to $35.3 million to the extent that the 400 W&xAIe proceeds are less than the $44.3 million pecloption and up to $40.0 million to the
extent that the 200 WCC sale proceeds are lesghiee$60.1 million purchase option.

The Company determined that the fair valssociated with the guaranteed residual valuesbiv@smillion for 400 WCC and $1.2 million
for 200 WCC, as of the inception of the leases s€remounts were recorded in "Other assets, net"Lammj-term obligations and other
liabilities" in the Consolidated Balance Sheets arelbeing amortized over the term of the leases.

The Company is required to periodicallylaase the expected fair value of each facilitytet €nd of the lease terms. If the Company
determines that it is estimable and probable tiaekpected fair values will be less than $44.3oniffor 400 WCC and $50.1 million for 200
WCC, it will ratably accrue the loss up to a maximaf approximately $35.3 million and $40.0 millimespectively, over the remaining lease
terms as additional rent expense. As of Decembe2@l1, the Company does not believe that a lossrgency accrual is required for either
property. However, a prolonged economic downtunnaincrease the likelihood of such a loss accrual.

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

In connection with its headquarters leadasng fiscal 2008 the Company entered into irgerate swap agreements as a hedge agair
variable rent under the leases. Under the terntiseo$wap agreements, the Company effectively coedéhe variable rents to fixed rents
through March 2011 for 400 WCC and March 2013 fa@ 2VCC. See Note Rerivative Financial Instrumentsfor additional information.

Litigation
Securities Litigation

On December 6, 2001, a class action comiplar violations of U.S. federal securities lawasifiled in the United States District Court
the Southern District of New York against the Compdour officers individually and the three invesint banking firms who served as
representatives of the underwriters in connectigh the Company's initial public offering of commetock. The Consolidated Amended
Complaint alleges that the registration statemadtgospectus for the Company's initial public offg did not disclose that (1) the
underwriters solicited and received additional,essive and undisclosed commissions from certaiesitovs, and (2) the underwriters had
agreed to allocate shares of the offering in exghdor a commitment from the customers to purclaasitional shares in the aftermarket at
pre-determined higher prices. The Complaint allegelations of the Securities Act of 1933 and tlee&ities Exchange Act of 1934. The
action seeks damages in an unspecified amountsamelrg coordinated with approximately 300 otherlyeidentical actions filed against otl
companies. A court order dated October 9, 2002 idied without prejudice the four officers of thengany who had been named
individually. On December 5, 2006, the Second Gircaicated a decision by the District Court gragtitass certification in six of the
coordinated cases, which are intended to servestsor "focus” cases. The plaintiffs selectedetss cases, which do not include the
Company. On April 6, 2007, the Second Circuit dérdepetition for rehearing filed by the plaintiffayt noted that the plaintiffs could ask the
District Court to certify more narrow classes tltaose that were rejected.
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The parties in the approximately 300 cowatid cases, including the parties in the casastgie Company, reached a settlement. On
October 5, 2009, the Court granted final approvdhe settlement. Judgment was entered on Jan@a3010. The settlement approval was
appealed to the United States Court of Appealshi®iSecond Circuit. One appeal was dismissed andetbond appeal was remanded to the
District Court to determine if the appellant islass member with standing to appeal. The Distratr€Cruled that the appellant lacked stand
The appellant appealed the District Court's denisiothe Second Circuit. Subsequently, the appediatered into a settlement agreement with
counsel for the plaintiff class pursuant to whiehdismissed his appeal with prejudice. As a rethdtsettlement among the parties is final and
the case is concluded. The insurers for the isdefendants in the coordinated cases will make étteement payment on behalf of the issuers,
including the Company. The settlement did not heveaterial impact to the Company's financial positr results of operations.

Other

The Company is involved in various otheyaleproceedings that have arisen in the normalseoaf business. While the ultimate results of
these matters cannot be predicted with certaihtyQompany does not expect them to have a maselvarse effect on its consolidated
financial position or results of operations.

Discontinued Operations Indemnificati

In fiscal 2007, the Company sold its Agamsceiver, AeroFONE™ single-chip phone and powspldier product lines (the "Aero
product lines") to NXP B.V. and NXP SemiconductBrance SAS (collectively "NXP"). In connection withe sale of the Aero product lines,
the Company agreed to indemnify NXP with respediatailities for certain tax matters. There is rantractual limit on exposure with respec
such matters. As of December 31, 2011, the Compadyno material liabilities recorded with respecttis indemnification obligation.
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Significant components of the provisionr(efit) for income taxes are as follows (in thousgnd

Year Ended
December 31, January 1, January 2,
2011 2011 2010

Current:

Domestic $ 14,46¢ $ 10,82¢ $ (11,560

Internationa 2,84¢ 4,14¢ 5,563¢

Total Current 17,31 14,96¢ (6,022)
Deferred:

Domestic (70 (192) 2,23¢

Internationa (375) (360) (33§

Total Deferrec (44%) (552) 1,89¢

$ 16,86¢ $ 14,417 $ (4,12¢)

The Company's provision (benefit) for inataxes differs from the expected tax expense atremmputed by applying the statutory
federal income tax rate to income before incomegas a result of the following:

Year Ended
December 31, January 1, January 2,
2011 2011 2010

Federal statutory ra 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
Foreign tax rate benet (11.0 (15.¢) (16.7)
Research and development tax cre (8.5) (6.2) 3.1
Release of prior year unrecognized

benefits — (3.6) (23.9
Intercompany technology licen 10.4 4.4 —
Excess officer compensatis 3.2 2.C 1.8
Nondeductible acquisition cos 2.¢ — —
Other 0.2 0.3 0.4

32.2% 16.2% 6.0%

The effective tax rate for fiscal 2011 ased from the prior period, primarily due to tiwe ¢harge related to the intercompany license of
certain technology obtained in the acquisition pé&ra Linear and other one-time nondeductiblescassociated with the acquisition of
Spectra Linear, a decrease in the foreign taxtratefit, and a release of prior year unrecogniagdenefits in fiscal 2010 with none in fiscal
2011. These changes were partially offset by arease in the research and development tax crdditeffective tax rate for fiscal 2010
increased from fiscal 2009, primarily due to thgotation of uncertain tax positions as a resukmtering into an Advance Pricing Agreement
with the U.S. Internal Revenue Service during fi€9. In addition, the effective tax rate forci$ 2010 increased from the prior period due
to the intercompany license of certain technologtamed in the acquisition of Silicon Clocks duriiigeal 2010. The increase in the effective
tax rate was partially offset by an increase infdueral research and development credit in fi26aD.
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Income before income taxes included appnaxély $4.1 million, $40.1 million and $39.5 milligelated to foreign operations in fiscal
2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Foreign incoaferk income taxes decreased from fiscal 201Gst@fi2011 predominantly due to changes
in product mix, an increase in research and devedop expense and an increase in the intercompahpdogy license payments made by a
foreign subsidiary.

At the end of fiscal 2011, undistributedréiags of the Company's foreign subsidiaries ofrapipately $265.3 million are considered
permanently reinvested. Accordingly, no provision¥.S. federal and state income taxes has beep.radermination of the amount of the
unrecognized deferred tax liability on these unt&diearnings is not practicable.

Significant components of the Company'sdefl taxes as of December 31, 2011 and Janu@611,are as follows (in thousands):

December 31 January 1,

2011 2011

Deferred tax asset
Net operating loss carryforwar $ 21,47¢ $ 10,92
Research and development tax credit carryforw 5,55¢ 4,88(
Stoclk-based compensatic 9,96: 10,20¢
Depreciable asse 34,76 31,48¢
Reserves and allowanc 122 13¢€
Unrealized losses on availa-for-sale securitie 62¢ 631
Unrealized losses on cash flow hed 69¢ 1,33¢
Deferred income on shipments to distribut 3,89t 3,29¢
Accrued liabilities and othe 5,85¢ 4,55¢

82,96( 67,45¢
Less: Valuation allowanc — —

82,96( 67,45¢

Deferred tax liabilities

Acquired intangible: 18,56: 15,53¢
Long term obligations for tax purpos 33,02: 33,02:
Prepaid expenses and otl 913 1,23¢

52,49¢ 49,79:
Net deferred tax asse $ 30,46 $ 17,66¢

As of December 31, 2011, the Company hddrfd net operating loss and research and develdpenedit carryforwards of approximatt
$52.5 million and $0.3 million, respectively, aseault of the Cygnal Integrated Products, Silicdocks and SpectraLinear acquisitions. These
carryforwards expire in fiscal years 2019 througB@ Recognition of these loss and credit carryéods is subject to an annual limit, which
may cause them to expire before they are used.

The Company also had state loss and rdseaact development credit carryforwards of approxélya$60.6 million and $8.0 million,
respectively. A portion of these loss and credit
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carryforwards was generated by the Company andtepavas acquired through the Integration Ass@saSilicon Clocks and SpectraLinear
acquisitions. Certain of these carryforwards expiriiscal years 2014 through 2030 and others derpire. Recognition of some of these loss
and credit carryforwards is subject to an annumait)iwhich may cause them to expire before theyuges.

Deferred income taxes reflect the net féects of temporary differences between the cagyialue of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the values used for incameurposes. During 2011, the Company recordedefetred tax assets of approximately
$0.9 million related to the acquisition of Silic@bocks and net deferred tax assets of approxim&kEly2 million related to the acquisition of
SpectraLinear due to differences between book andddses of acquired assets and assumed liabiMesagement believes that the
Company's results of future operations will gereraifficient taxable income such that it is "madkelly than not" that the deferred tax assets
will be realized.

The Company's operations in Singapore @bgst to reduced tax rates through 2019, as lsmgeeain conditions are met. The income
benefit from the reduced Singapore tax rate redtkat earnings was approximately $2.5 million (esggnting $0.06 per diluted share) in fiscal
2011, approximately $6.1 million (representing 80pkr diluted share) in fiscal 2010 and approxitye$6.3 million (representing $0.13 per
diluted share) in fiscal 2009.

The following table reflects changes in timeecognized tax benefits (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31 January 1, January 2,
2011 2011 2010

Beginning balanc $ 10,78¢ $ 12,16( $ 32,69t
Additions based on tax positions relate

current yea 757 1,742 —
Additions based on tax positions relate

prior years — — 4,127
Reductions for tax positions related

prior years (603%) (3,119 (14,959
Reductions for tax positions as a resul

a lapse of the applicable statute of

limitations — — (2,199
Reductions for settlements with taxi

authorities — — (8,517
Ending balanc $ 10,94: $ 10,78¢ $ 12,16(

As of December 31, 2011, January 1, 20HlJamuary 2, 2010, the Company had gross unrecatjtax benefits of $10.9 million,
$10.8 million and $12.2 million, respectively, aflwhich would affect the effective tax rate if cgmized. The Company recognizes interes
penalties related to unrecognized tax benefitaénprovision for income taxes. The Company didraobgnize any interest in the provision for
income taxes in fiscal 2011 and 2010. During fis@09, the Company recognized $0.8 million of iesgy net of tax, in the provision for
income taxes. In addition, the Company had decseafs@terest, net of tax, of $0.1 million in fi$@010, and of $1.8 million in fiscal 2009.
The Company has not made an accrual for the payafémterest related to unrecognized tax positiatthe end of fiscal 2011 and 2010.
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The Company believes it is reasonably fxesshat the gross unrecognized tax benefits weitlrdase by approximately $3.5 million in the
next 12 months due to the lapse of the statuteniidtions applicable to a tax deduction claimedagurior year foreign tax return.

The tax years 2005 through 2011 remain épexamination by the major taxing jurisdictionsathich the Company is subject. The
Company is not currently under audit in any magoairig jurisdiction.

16. Segment Information

The Company has one operating segment,dagignal analog intensive ICs, consisting of nurnsrproduct areas. The Company's chief
operating decision maker is considered to be iiefExecutive Officer. The chief operating decisimaker allocates resources and assesses
performance of the business and other activitieseabperating segment level.

Revenue is attributed to a geographic besgd on the shipped-to location. The following suarizes the Company's revenue by
geographic area (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31 January 1, January 2,
2011 2011 2010

United State! $ 67,43: $ 69,75 $ 54,06¢
China 152,53 137,70¢ 105,50¢
South Kore: 70,25: 65,40¢ 91,97«
Taiwan 59,20¢ 76,99! 68,32(
Japar 50,27( 34,031 28,87
Rest of worlc 91,93( 109,45 92,27¢
Total $ 491,62' $ 493,34 $ 441,02

The following summarizes the Company's prgpand equipment, net by geographic area (ingaods):

December 31 January 1,

2011 2011
United State: $ 17,29 $ 20,55¢
Singapore 6,22( 8,017
Rest of worlo 1,62¢ 1,36¢
Total $ 2514. $ 29,94
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Quarterly financial information for fiscaD11 and 2010 is as follows. All quarterly perioeported here had 13 weeks (in thousands,
except per share amounts):

Fiscal 2011
Fourth Third Second First
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Revenue: $ 126,69: $ 119,10 $ 126,197 $ 119,63
Gross margit 77,17¢ 72,891 76,21: 72,15¢
Operating incomi 15,22 13,92¢ 15,98¢ 4,93¢
Net income (loss $ 12,80t $ 11,25 $ 13,37 $ (1,960
Earnings (loss) per shal
Basic $ 031 $ 0.2¢ $ 03C $ (0.09
Diluted $ 0.2¢ $ 0.2¢ $ 0.2¢ $ (0.09)
Fiscal 2010
Fourth Third Second First
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Revenue: $ 111,89. $ 120,15« $ 134,57° $ 126,71
Gross margit 71,091 78,67( 90,89: 83,59(
Operating incom 11,01 19,34¢ 30,64 25,66¢
Net income $ 12,88: $ 18,23: $ 21,047 $ 21,07¢

Earnings per shar
Basic $ 0.2¢ $ 041 $ 0.4¢€
Diluted $ 0.2¢ $ 0.4C $ 0.44

0.4¢
0.44
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Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Shenzhen Silicon Laboratories Technology Co. |
Silicon Laboratories France S/

Silicon Laboratories Gmbl

Silicon Laboratories Asia Pacific, Limite

Silicon Laboratories Hungary Korlatolt Felelésségiisasay
Silicon Laboratories Semiconductors India Private. L
ChipSensors Limite

Silicon Laboratories Ireland Limite

Silicon Laboratories Italy, S.r.|

Silicon Laboratories Y.K.

Spectralinear Japan K.k

Silicon Laboratories International Pte. Lt

Silicon Laboratories Teknoloji Limited Sirke
Silicon Laboratories UK Limite:

IC Works, Inc.

International Microcircuits, Inc

Silicon Labs Integration, Inc

Silicon Labs Spectra, Inc

Silicon Laboratories Technology, LL

Silicon Labs CP, Inc

Silicon Labs HV, Inc.

Organized Under Law Of

China

France

Germany

Hong Kong
Hungary

India

Ireland

Ireland

Italy

Japar

Japar

Singapore
Turkey

United Kingdom
State of Californice
State of Californic
State of Californie
State of Californic
State of Delawar
State of Delawar
State of Texa
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Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by refeeeincthe Registration Statements (Form S-8 Nos-32528, 333-45682, 333-60794, 383844
333-104771, 333-112324, 333-122845, 333-131700,1288B62, 333-149104 and 333-158938) pertainingé¢cstock incentive and employee
stock purchase plans of Silicon Laboratories Ifi@us reports dated February 15, 2012, with respettie consolidated financial statements of
Silicon Laboratories Inc., and the effectivenesmtdrnal control over financial reporting of Sie Laboratories Inc., included in this Annual
Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended Decembei281,1.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLF

Austin, Texas
February 15, 2012




QuickLinks
Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing



QuickLinks-- Click here to rapidly navigate through this dioant

Exhibit 31.1
Certification to the Securities and Exchange Commgon
by Registrant's Chief Executive Officer, as requiré by Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
I, Necip Sayiner, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Silidaaboratories Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététde a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtagisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$,oéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officers andé aesponsible for establishing and maintainingld&ae controls and procedures
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd ave have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and proceduiies ttesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneszh

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finaha@gaorting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataoee with generally accepted accounting principles

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant'slaisire controls and procedures and presentedsimetport our conclusior
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaants procedures as of the end of the period cougyrelis report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regitsanternal control over financial reporting tloacurred during the registran
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigital quarter in the case of an annual repod) lttas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regisit's internal control over financial reportingpan

5. The registrant's other certifying officers and Véalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluafioriaynal control over financit
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thatauommittee of registrant's board of directorsgersons fulfilling the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contralerdinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the itegig's ability to record, process, summarize aprt financial information; ar

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a signifrodain the registrant
internal controls over financial reporting.

Date: February 15, 201

/s NECIP SAYINER

Necip Sayine
President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2
Certification to the Securities and Exchange Commgon
by Registrant's Chief Financial Officer, as requirel by Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
[, Paul V. Walsh, Jr., certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Silidaaboratories Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététde a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtagisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$,oéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officers andé aesponsible for establishing and maintainingld&ae controls and procedures
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd ave have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and proceduiies ttesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneszh

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finaha@gaorting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataoee with generally accepted accounting principles

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant'slaisire controls and procedures and presentedsimetport our conclusior
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaants procedures as of the end of the period cougyrelis report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regitsanternal control over financial reporting tloacurred during the registran
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigital quarter in the case of an annual repod) lttas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regisit's internal control over financial reportingpan

5. The registrant's other certifying officers and Véalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluafioriaynal control over financit
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thatauommittee of registrant's board of directorsgersons fulfilling the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contralerdinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the itegig's ability to record, process, summarize aprt financial information; ar

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a signifrodain the registrant
internal controls over financial reporting.

Date: February 15, 201

/s PAUL V. WALSH, JR.

Paul V. Walsh, Jr.
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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Exhibit 32.1
Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as create8dayion 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002herche undersigned officers of Silicon
Laboratories Inc. (the "Company") hereby certifgtth

(i) the accompanying Annual Report omrd0-K of the Company for the fiscal year ended¢@meber 31, 2011 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Repautly €omplies with the requirements of Section }3(@Section 15(d), as
applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1984

(i) the information contained in the Repfairly presents, in all material respects, financial condition and results of operations
of the Company.

A signed original of this written statemeadjuired by Section 906 has been provided to tiragany and will be retained by the Company
and furnished to the Securities Exchange Commissiars staff upon request.

Date: February 15, 2012

/s NECIP SAYINER

Necip Sayine
President and Chief Executive Offic

/s PAUL V. WALSH, JR.

Paul V. Walsh, Jr.
Vice President and Chief Financial Offic
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